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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1.

Check the appropriate box:

X

Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement

2.

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter –
MANILA BROADCASTING COMPANY

3.

METRO MANILA
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4.

SEC Identification Number – 1674

5.

BIR Tax Identification Code – 000-479-027-000

6.

MBC Bldg., V. Sotto St., CCP Complex, Pasay City
Address of principal office
Postal Code – 1307

7.

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code - (632) 832-61-49 TO 50

8.

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders
Date 6 October 2016
Time 3:00 p.m.
Place - Star Theater, Star City, V. Sotto St.,
CCP Complex, Pasay City 1307 Philippines

9.

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders – 15 SEPTEMBER 2016

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants):
Title of Each Class

Common P1.00 par value
Debt

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt
Outstanding
402,682,990 shares
P442,905,923

3

`

11. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes

X

No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange – Common Shares

4
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&KDQJHVLQDQG'LVDJUHHPHQWVZLWK$FFRXQWDQWVDQG)LQDQFLDO'LVFORVXUH

7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQDQGGLVDJUHHPHQWVZLWK$FFRXQWDQWVRQ$FFRXQWLQJDQG)LQDQFLDO
'LVFORVXUH

0DQDJHPHQW·V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLVRU3ODQRI2SHUDWLRQ








0DQDJHPHQW·V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLVDVRI-XQH


3OHDVHVHHWKHDWWDFKHG6(&)RUP44XDUWHUO\5HSRUWIRUWKH5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQVDQG.H\3HUIRUPDQFH
,QGLFDWRUVDVRI-XQH

YV

 5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV

7KH&RPSDQ\·VWRWDOUHYHQXHDPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQWKDWLVKLJKHUWKDQWKHUHYHQXH
SRVWHG ODVW \HDU PDLQO\ GXH WR DGYHUWLVHPHQW VSHQGLQJ E\ SROLWLFDO FDQGLGDWHV LQ OLQH ZLWK WKHLU
HOHFWLRQFDPSDLJQ&RVWRIVHUYLFHVLQFUHDVHGE\PLOOLRQRUGXHWRVHUYLFHIHHVLQFXUUHG
DVDUHVXOWRIKLJKHUUHYHQXHV2SHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQIURP3PLOOLRQLQ
7KHGHFUHDVHLQLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZDVPDLQO\GXHWRGHFUHDVHGEDGGHEWVDQGSURYLVLRQ
IRULQYHQWRU\REVROHVFHQFH

,QWHUHVWLQFRPHGHFUHDVHGE\FRPSDUHGWRODVW\HDU·VDPRXQWPDLQO\GXHWRUHGXFHGDYHUDJH
LQYHVWPHQWEDODQFHRQPRQH\PDUNHWSODFHPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDU7KHSURFHVVLQJLQFRPHGHFUHDVHG
E\RUPLOOLRQPDLQO\GXHWRWKHGHFUHDVHLQFRPPRQH[SHQVHVVKDUHGE\VWDWLRQVZKLFK
ZDVELOOHGWRWKHPE\WKH&RPSDQ\

$V D UHVXOW WKH &RPSDQ\ UHJLVWHUHG D QHW LQFRPHRI 3 PLOOLRQ LQ  DQ LQFUHDVH RI 3
PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ


 )LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG&KDQJHVLQ)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQ

0%&LVQRWKDYLQJRUGRHVQRWDQWLFLSDWHKDYLQJZLWKLQWKHQH[WPRQWKVDQ\FDVKIORZRUOLTXLGLW\
SUREOHPV QHLWKHU LV LW LQ GHIDXOW RU LQ EUHDFK RI DQ\ QRWH ORDQ OHDVH RU RWKHU LQGHEWHGQHVV RU
ILQDQFLQJDUUDQJHPHQWUHTXLULQJLWWRPDNHSD\PHQWVQRUDVLJQLILFDQWDPRXQWRIWKHUHJLVWUDQW·V
WUDGHSD\DEOHVKDYHQRWEHHQSDLGZLWKLQWKHVWDWHGWUDGHWHUPV

 &DXVHVRI0DWHULDO&KDQJHVIURP3HULRGWR3HULRG  

D &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR
3PLOOLRQLQPDLQO\GXHWRFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHVDQGLQFUHDVHLQDGYDQFHVWRRIILFHUV
3OHDVHVHHVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVRIWKHDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
E 'XH IURP DIILOLDWHV UHSUHVHQWV WKH LQWHUHVWIUHH DGYDQFHV PDGH E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WR (OL]DOGH
+ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ &HEX %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ 3KLOLSSLQH %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ DQG
3DFLILF%URDGFDVWLQJ6\VWHP,QFDOORIZKLFKDUHDIILOLDWHGFRPSDQLHV SOHDVHVHHQRWHDQG
RI DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  7KH EDODQFH DV RI 'HFHPEHU   DPRXQWHG WR 3
PLOOLRQZKLFKLVKLJKHUIURPODVW\HDU·VEDODQFHRI3PLOOLRQ
F 0DWHULDOV DQG VXSSOLHV LQFUHDVHG E\  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH GHFUHDVH LQ WKH DOORZDQFH IRU
LQYHQWRU\REVROHVFHQFHDWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU
G 3UHSDLGH[SHQVHVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHSUHSDLGWD[HV
H 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDWFRVWLQFUHDVHGE\PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ
WR3PLOOLRQLQPDLQO\GXHWRDGGLWLRQDODFTXLVLWLRQVGXULQJWKH\HDU
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3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDWUHYDOXHGDPRXQWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQ,WLVPDLQO\GXHWRWKH
LQFUHDVHLQYDOXDWLRQDVSHUWKHDSSUDLVDOFRQGXFWHGE\LQGHSHQGHQWDSSUDLVDOFRPSDQLHV
,QYHVWPHQWSURSHUWLHVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU7KLVDPRXQWUHSUHVHQWVGHSUHFLDWLRQ
FKDUJHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
,QWDQJLEOH DVVHWV DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. ZKLFK EHFDPH HIIHFWLYH RQ
2FWREHU7KHGHFUHDVHRI3PLOOLRQRUUHSUHVHQWVDPRUWL]DWLRQFRVWVGXULQJ
WKH\HDU
2WKHUQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWVLQFUHDVHGIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR3PLOOLRQLQDQLQFUHDVHRI
3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKHEDODQFHRILQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGV
$FFRXQWV SD\DEOH DQG $FFUXHG H[SHQVHV LQFUHDVHG E\  PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR
LQFUHDVHGDGYDQFHVIURPVSRQVRUVDQGDFFUXHGVHUYLFHIHHV3OHDVHVHH1RWHRIDXGLWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
'LYLGHQGVSD\DEOHGHFUHDVHGE\PDLQO\GXHWRSD\PHQWRIGLYLGHQGV

$FFUXHGUHQWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUZKLFKUHSUHVHQWVWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKH
UHQWH[SHQVHFRPSXWHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVDQGWKHDFWXDOUHQWDOSD\PHQWVPDGH
5HWDLQHGHDUQLQJVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHQHWHIIHFWRILQFRPH
DQGWKHGHFODUDWLRQRIFDVKGLYLGHQGVGXULQJWKH\HDU3OHDVHVHHVWDWHPHQWVRIFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\
RIDXGLWHG)6












 3ODQ2I2SHUDWLRQ

7KH &RPSDQ\ KDV HDUPDUNHG 3 0LOOLRQ IRU FDSLWDO H[SHQGLWXUH WKLV \HDU QDPHO\ IRU WKH
DFTXLVLWLRQ RI EUDQG QHZ WUDQVPLWWHUV WR UHSODFH DQGRU XSJUDGH H[LVWLQJ XQLWV 5+79 EURDGFDVW
FRYHUDJHH[SDQVLRQRYHUYDULRXVFDEOHDQG79FKDQQHOVDXGLRDQGYLGHRVWUHDPLQJRYHUWKHLQWHUQHW
OHDVHKROG LPSURYHPHQW RI RXU +HDG 2IILFH DQG 0DQLOD VWXGLRV DQG YDULRXV LQLWLDWLYHV RQ GLJLWDO
SODWIRUP7KLVZLOOEHIXQGHGE\FDVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

7KHSDFHRIFKDQJHLQWKHEXVLQHVVDUHQDWRGD\FDQEHFKDOOHQJLQJHVSHFLDOO\LQWKHGLJLWDOVRFLDO
QHWZRUNDUHQDIRUWKLVZLOOGHILQLWHO\KDYHDQLPSDFWRQRXUOLVWHQHUVKLSUDWLQJV7RUHVSRQGWRWKH
FKDOOHQJH RI VWD\LQJ RQ WKH WRS WKH FRPSDQ\ KDV VWDUWHG WR EXLOG WKH EDFNERQH WR KDUQHVV WKH
SRWHQWLDORILWVGLJLWDOUHVRXUFHV:HKDYHUHYLWDOL]HGWKHZHEVLWHVRIRXU0DQLODVWDWLRQV/RYH5DGLR
<HV)0 (DV\ 5RFN DQG '=5+ 6RFLDO QHWZRUNLQJ FRQWHQW SURYLGHG E\ RXU OHDGLQJ '-V LQFOXGH
)DFHERRN7ZLWWHUDQG,QVWDJUDP2XUFDSDELOLW\WRGRYLGHRFRQWHQWFRQWLQXHVWREHGHYHORSHGWR
FDWHUWRWKHGLJLWDOPHGLDUHTXLUHPHQWVRIRXUFOLHQWVDQGWKHLUDGYHUWLVLQJDJHQFLHV$VZHPRYHRQ
WRDPRUHGLJLWDOODQGVFDSHLQWKH3KLOLSSLQHVLQWKHQHDUIXWXUHSDUWQHUVKLSVZLWKOHDGLQJDGYHUWLVLQJ
DJHQFLHV DUH HQYLVLRQHG 7KLVZLOO HQVXUH WKDWRXUFRQWHQW DV D SXEOLVKHU VKDOO EHRSWLPL]HG WR LWV
PD[LPXPWKURXJKWKHLUDGYDQFHGGLJLWDOSURJUDPPDWLFEX\LQJSODWIRUPV


:KLOHWKHWHFKQRORJ\WKHSURGXFWLRQSURFHVVDQGWKHPHGLXPXVHGWRDFFHVVFRQWHQWHYROYH0%&·V

FRUHFRPSHWHQF\WRFUHDWHTXDOLW\FRQWHQWWKDWWRXFKHVDQGHPSRZHUVLWVOLVWHQHUVDQGYLHZHUVZLOO

UHPDLQFRQVWDQW
 2WKHU'LVFORVXUHPDWWHUV

D 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV
E 7KHUHDUHQRXVXDOLWHPVDIIHFWLQJDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVHTXLW\QHWLQFRPHRUFDVKIORZV
F 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRULQWHULPSHULRGVRIWKHFXUUHQW
ILQDQFLDO\HDURULQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRUILQDQFLDO\HDUV
G 7KHUHDUHQRPDWHULDOHYHQWVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHHQGRIWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGWKDWKDYHQRWEHHQ
UHIOHFWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHSHULRG
H 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQWKHFRPSRVLWLRQRIWKHLVVXHUGXULQJWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGLQFOXGLQJ
EXVLQHVV FRPELQDWLRQV DFTXLVLWLRQ RU GLVSRVDO RI VXEVLGLDULHV DQG ORQJWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV
UHVWUXFWXULQJVDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
I 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVRUFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVVLQFHWKHODVWDQQXDOEDODQFH
VKHHWGDWH
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J 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO FRQWLQJHQFLHV DQG DQ\ HYHQWV RU WUDQVDFWLRQV WKDW DUH PDWHULDO WR WKH
XQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHFXUUHQWLQWHULPSHULRG
K 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ WUHQGV GHPDQGV FRPPLWPHQWV HYHQWV RU XQFHUWDLQWLHV WKDW ZLOO KDYH D
PDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VOLTXLGLW\
L 7KHUHDUHQRNQRZQWUHQGVHYHQWVRUXQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDWKDGRUWKDWDUHUHDVRQDEO\H[SHFWHGWR
KDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHQHWVDOHVRUUHYHQXHVRULQFRPHIURPFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
M 7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW HOHPHQWV RI LQFRPH RU ORVV WKDW GLG QRW DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V
FRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
N 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV
O 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO WULJJHU GLUHFW RU FRQWLQJHQW ILQDQFLDO REOLJDWLRQ WKDW LV
PDWHULDOWRWKH&RPSDQ\LQFOXGLQJDQ\GHIDXOWRUDFFHOHUDWLRQRIDQREOLJDWLRQ
P 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO RIIEDODQFH VKHHW WUDQVDFWLRQV DUUDQJHPHQWV REOLJDWLRQV LQFOXGLQJ
FRQWLQJHQWREOLJDWLRQV DQGRWKHUUHODWLRQVKLSVRIWKH&RPSDQ\ZLWKXQFRQVROLGDWHGHQWLWLHVRU
RWKHUSHUVRQVFUHDWHGGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
Q 7KHUHDUHQREXVLQHVVRIJHRJUDSKLFDOVHJPHQWVIRUZKLFKLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHSRUWHGWRWKH
%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV %2' DQGFKLHIH[HFXWLYHRIILFHU
R 7KHUHZHUHQRFKDQJHVLQDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGIRUVHJPHQWUHSRUWLQJWKDWKDYHDPDWHULDO
HIIHFWRQVHJPHQWLQIRUPDWLRQ

) 2WKHU'LVFORVXUH5HTXLUHPHQWV3HU$QQH[0SDUDJUDSKHRI5XOH

D 0DUNHWDEOH6HFXULWLHV
7KHDJJUHJDWHFRVWRUPDUNHWYDOXHRIVKRUWWHUPLQYHVWPHQWVFRQVWLWXWHVOHVVWKDQRIWRWDO
DVVHWVDVRI'HFHPEHU
E 7KHDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHRIPRUHWKDQ3RURQHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVIURP'LUHFWRUV
2IILFHUV(PSOR\HHV5HODWHG3DUWLHVDQG3ULQFLSDO6WRFNKROGHUV -RVH07DUXF-U²3 
F 7KHDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVRI3LQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWGRHVQRWH[FHHG
ILYHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVDQGKDYHQRPDWHULDOFKDQJHVLQWKHLQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGWREHILOHG
IURPWKDWODVWSUHYLRXVO\UHSRUWHG
G 7KHDPRXQWVGXHIURPDIILOLDWHVRI3LQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWH[FHHGVWKHILYH
SHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWV7KH(OL]DOGH+ROGLQJV&RUSRUDWLRQRXWVWDQGLQJUHFHLYDEOHLQFUHDVHGIURP
3PLOOLRQWR3PLOOLRQ3OHDVHVHHQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
H ,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV2WKHU$VVHWV²3OHDVHUHIHUWRQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
I /RQJWHUP'HEW²1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
J ,QGHEWHGQHVVWR5HODWHG3DUWLHV²33OHDVHUHIHUWR1RWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
K *XDUDQWHHVRI6HFXULWLHVRI2WKHU,VVXHUV²1RWDSSOLFDEOH
L &DSLWDO6WRFN²WKHUHZHUHQRVLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHVVLQFHWKHGDWHRIWKHODVWEDODQFHVKHHWILOHG

7LWOHRI,VVXH
&RPPRQ6KDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHDXWKRUL]HG
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVLVVXHGDQGRXWVWDQGLQJ
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVUHVHUYHGIRURSWLRQVZDUUDQWV
1,/
FRQYHUVLRQDQGRWKHUULJKWV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\UHODWHGSDUWLHV
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\GLUHFWRUVRIILFHUVDQG
VKDUHV
HPSOR\HHV
2WKHUV
VKDUHV

.(<),1$1&,$/,1',&$7256
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'LVFXVVLRQRQ.H\3HUIRUPDQFH,QGLFDWRUV   

D 526GHFUHDVHGIURPWRSULPDULO\GXHWRKLJKHUSURSRUWLRQDWHLQFUHDVHLQFRVWRI
VHUYLFHVYLVjYLVLQFUHDVHLQVDOHV
E 7KH(36LQFUHDVHGE\3SHUVKDUHGXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQQHWLQFRPHIRUWKH\HDUZLWKWKHWRWDO
QXPEHURXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW
F &XUUHQW UDWLR LQFUHDVHG IURP  WR  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ SUHSDLG H[SHQVHV DQG
UHFHLYDEOHIURPDIILOLDWHV\HDUHQGEDODQFHV
G 7KHGHEWHTXLW\UDWLRLQFUHDVHG WR  IURP LQ PDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKH
FRPSDQ\·VOLDELOLWLHVSDUWLFXODUO\WKH&RPSDQ\·VDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGH[SHQVHV
H 7KH ERRN YDOXH SHU VKDUH LQFUHDVHG E\  7KLV LV PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ UHYDOXDWLRQ
LQFUHPHQW RQ ODQG DQG WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ UHWDLQHG HDUQLQJV GXULQJ WKH \HDU ZLWK WKH QXPEHU RI
RXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW





YV

 5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV

7KH &RPSDQ\·V WRWDO UHYHQXH DPRXQWHG WR 3 PLOOLRQ WKDW LV  KLJKHU WKDQ WKH UHYHQXH
SRVWHGODVW\HDU2QWKHRWKHUKDQGFRVWRIVHUYLFHVGHFUHDVHGE\UHVXOWLQJWRDQLQFUHDVHRI
LQWKH&RPSDQ\·VJURVVSURILW2SHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQIURP3
PLOOLRQLQ7KHLQFUHDVHLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZDVPDLQO\GXHWRLQFUHDVHGYDULDEOHH[SHQVHVDV
DUHVXOWRILQFUHDVHGUHYHQXHVWKLV\HDU

2WKHULQFRPHQHWGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHOHVVHULQFRPHJHQHUDWHGE\
WKH&RPSDQ\IURPLWVVSRQVRUVKLSVLQVHYHUDOVKRZVFRQFHUWVGXULQJWKH\HDUDVFRPSDUHGZLWKWKH
SUHYLRXV\HDU'LYLGHQGLQFRPHDPRXQWLQJWR3PLOOLRQLVWKHLQFRPHJHQHUDWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
IURPLWVLQYHVWPHQWLQ(OL]DOGH+ROGLQJV&RUSRUDWLRQVVKDUHVRIVWRFN,QWHUHVWLQFRPHGHFUHDVHGE\
FRPSDUHGWRODVW\HDU·VDPRXQWPDLQO\GXHWRUHGXFHGDYHUDJHLQYHVWPHQWEDODQFHRQPRQH\
PDUNHWSODFHPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDU7KH&RPSDQ\DOVRJHQHUDWHGSURFHVVLQJLQFRPHDPRXQWLQJWR
3 PLOOLRQ ZKLFK UHSUHVHQWV WKH VWDWLRQ·V VKDUH RQ FRPPRQ H[SHQVHV ELOOHG WR WKHP E\ WKH
&RPSDQ\





C

$V D UHVXOW WKH &RPSDQ\ UHJLVWHUHG D QHW LQFRPHRI 3 PLOOLRQ LQ  DQ LQFUHDVH RI 3
PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ

 )LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG&KDQJHVLQ)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQ

0%&LVQRWKDYLQJRUGRHVQRWDQWLFLSDWHKDYLQJZLWKLQWKHQH[WPRQWKVDQ\FDVKIORZRUOLTXLGLW\
SUREOHPV QHLWKHU LV LW LQ GHIDXOW RU LQ EUHDFK RI DQ\ QRWH ORDQ OHDVH RU RWKHU LQGHEWHGQHVV RU
ILQDQFLQJDUUDQJHPHQWUHTXLULQJLWWRPDNHSD\PHQWVQRUDVLJQLILFDQWDPRXQWRIWKHUHJLVWUDQW·V
WUDGHSD\DEOHVKDYHQRWEHHQSDLGZLWKLQWKHVWDWHGWUDGHWHUPV

 &DXVHVRI0DWHULDO&KDQJHVIURP3HULRGWR3HULRG  

D &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR
3PLOOLRQLQPDLQO\GXHWRLQFUHDVHGQHWFDVKIORZVJHQHUDWHGIURPRSHUDWLRQV3OHDVH
VHHVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVRIWKHDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
E 5HFHLYDEOHV LQFUHDVHG IURP 3 PLOOLRQ ODVW \HDU WR 3 PLOOLRQ WKLV \HDU HTXLYDOHQW WR
LQFUHDVH7KLVLVPDLQO\GXHWRWKHKLJKHUUHYHQXHJHQHUDWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\GXULQJWKH
\HDU
F 'XH IURP DIILOLDWHV UHSUHVHQWV WKH LQWHUHVWIUHH DGYDQFHV PDGH E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WR (OL]DOGH
+ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ &HEX %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ 3KLOLSSLQH %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ DQG
3DFLILF%URDGFDVWLQJ6\VWHP,QFDOORIZKLFKDUHDIILOLDWHGFRPSDQLHV SOHDVHVHHQRWHDQG
RI DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  7KH EDODQFH DV RI 'HFHPEHU   DPRXQWHG WR 3
PLOOLRQZKLFKLVORZHUIURPODVW\HDU·VEDODQFHRI3PLOOLRQ
G 0DWHULDOVDQGVXSSOLHVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKH
DOORZDQFHIRULQYHQWRU\REVROHVFHQFHDWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU
H 3UHSDLGH[SHQVHVDQGRWKHUFXUUHQWDVVHWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUWKLVLVPDLQO\
GXHWRWKHFXUUHQW\HDU·VDPRUWL]DWLRQRISUHSDLGDGYHUWLVLQJH[SHQVHV
I 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDWFRVWGHFUHDVHGIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR3PLOOLRQLQ
PDLQO\GXHWRGHSUHFLDWLRQGXULQJWKH\HDU
J 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDWUHYDOXHGDPRXQWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU,WLVPDLQO\
GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ YDOXDWLRQ DV SHU WKH DSSUDLVDO FRQGXFWHG E\ LQGHSHQGHQW DSSUDLVDO
FRPSDQLHV
K ,QYHVWPHQWSURSHUWLHVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU7KLVDPRXQWUHSUHVHQWVGHSUHFLDWLRQ
FKDUJHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
L ,QWDQJLEOH DVVHWV DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. ZKLFK EHFDPH HIIHFWLYH RQ
2FWREHU7KHGHFUHDVHRI3PLOOLRQRUUHSUHVHQWVDPRUWL]DWLRQFRVWVGXULQJ
WKH\HDU
M 2WKHUQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWVGHFUHDVHGIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR3PLOOLRQLQDGHFUHDVH
RI3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHGHFUHDVHLQWKHEDODQFHRILQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGV
N 7DOHQWIHHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQVSD\DEOHGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRSURPSW
SD\PHQWVRIDFFRXQWVGXULQJWKH\HDU
O ,QFRPH WD[SD\DEOH LQFUHDVHGE\ 3PLOOLRQRU GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQQHWLQFRPH
JHQHUDWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\GXULQJWKH\HDU
P $FFUXHGUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRUHPHDVXUHPHQW
JDLQ RQ DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV FORVHG WR HTXLW\ FRQVLVWLQJ RI DFWXDULDO JDLQV RQ SUHVHQW
YDOXH RI EHQHILW REOLJDWLRQ DQG IDLU YDOXH RI SODQDVVHWV 3OHDVH VHH 1RWH  RI  DXGLWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQW
Q $FFUXHGUHQWRI3PLOOLRQUHSUHVHQWVWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHUHQWH[SHQVHFRPSXWHGRQD
VWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVDQGWKHDFWXDOUHQWDOSD\PHQWVPDGH
R 'HIHUUHGLQFRPHWD[OLDELOLWLHVQHWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU3OHDVHVHH1RWHERI
DXGLWHG)6
S 5HYDOXDWLRQ LQFUHPHQW RQ ODQG LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ WKH
UHYDOXHGDPRXQWEDVHGRQWKHYDOXDWLRQFRQGXFWHGE\LQGHSHQGHQWDSSUDLVDOFRPSDQLHV
T 5HPHDVXUHPHQWV RQ DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  'XH WR
H[SHULHQFHDGMXVWPHQWVDQGFKDQJHVLQDFWXDULDODVVXPSWLRQV
U 5HWDLQHGHDUQLQJVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHQHWHIIHFWRILQFRPH
DQGWKHGHFODUDWLRQRIFDVKGLYLGHQGVGXULQJWKH\HDU3OHDVHVHHVWDWHPHQWVRIFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\
RIDXGLWHG)6




C

 3ODQ2I2SHUDWLRQ

7KLV \HDU 0%& ZLOO EULQJ D KRVW RI SURPLVLQJ HYHQW SHUIRUPDQFHV FUHDWLQJ D SLSHOLQH RI UHYHQXH
VWUHDPVWKDWZLOOFRPSOHPHQWWKHH[LVWLQJDLUWLPHUHYHQXHV$VLGHIURPWKHVXFFHVVIXOPRYLHSUHPLHU
VKRZLQJDQGRQDLUDQGILHOGSURPRWLRQV0%&KDVRQFHDJDLQVHWDOLQHXSRIHYHQWVWKDWZLOOVXUHO\
SURYLGHPD[LPXPYDOXHIRUDGYHUWLVHUVDQGWKHOLVWHQLQJSXEOLF

x )LUVWLVWKH0DQLOD%D\6HD6SRUWV)HVWLYDOZKLFKZDVKHOGODVW0DUFKZKHUHDQHOLWH
URVWHURISDUWLFLSDQWVZDVLQYLWHGWRMRLQWKHHYHQW2UJDQL]HGE\0DQLOD%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\
DQG WKH &LW\ RI 3DVD\ LQ FRRSHUDWLRQ ZLWK WKH 3KLOLSSLQH &RDVW *XDUG WKLV \HDU·V 6HD 6SRUWV
IHVWLYDOIHDWXUHGPL[HGWHDPFKDPSLRQVKLSVIRUWKH'UDJRQ%RDW5DFHVWRFNDQGIRUPXODUDFHV
LQ WKH PRWRUL]HG EDQFD FRPSHWLWLRQ &RQYHUJLQJ DORQJ 5R[DV %RXOHYDUG·V %D\ZDON ZDWHU
HQWKXVLDVWVDQGKREE\LVWVFKHHUHGRQWKHSDUWLFLSDQWVLQWKHVHSRSXODUVSHFWDWRUVSRUWV
x 7KHPXFKDQWLFLSDWHGHYHQWRIWKHFRPSDQ\WKH$OLZDQ)LHVWDWREHKHOGODVW$SULO
ZLOOEULQJWKHEHVWELJJHVWORXGHVWDQGWKHPRVWFRORUIXOILHVWDVIURPDOORYHUWKH3KLOLSSLQHVWR
0DQLOD1RZRQLWVWK\HDUWKHIHVWLYDORQFHDJDLQZLOOVKRZFDVHWKHGDQFHFRPSHWLWLRQZKHUH
WKH FRQWLQJHQWV SUHVHQW IDEXORXVO\ FKRUHRJUDSKHG URXWLQHV LQ IXOO FRVWXPHG JORU\ 7KH WKUHH
RWKHUFDWHJRULHVRIWKHHYHQWZHUHWKH)ORDW&RPSHWLWLRQ5H\QDQJ$OLZDQDQGWKH7XJWRJQJ
$OLZDQ)HVWLYDO0XVLF6KRZGRZQ
x 0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQZLOOEHKHOGLQ-XO\DW&&3*URXQG3DVD\&LW\7KHDLPRIWKLV
HYHQWLVWRUDLVHIXQGVIRUWKHGULYHWRFOHDQXSWKH0DQLOD%D\RIWUDVKDQGSROOXWDQWVDVZHOODV
WRUDLVHDZDUHQHVVDPRQJ)LOLSLQRVWRWDNHFDUHRIRXUHQYLURQPHQWDQGSUHVHUYHRXUFLW\·VQDWXUDO
EHDXW\VWDUWLQJZLWKWKHSLFWXUHVTXHHFRORJ\RIWKH0DQLOD%D\7KH0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQ
QRZRQLWVWK\HDULVDIXQGGULYHRUJDQL]HGDQGPDQDJHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
x 0%&QDWLRQDO&KRUDO&RPSHWLWLRQZKLFKZLOOWDNHSODFHLQ'HFHPEHUDOVRSURPLVHVWREULQJ
KLJKO\DFFODLPHGFRQWHVWDQWVQRWRQO\IURP0HWUR0DQLODEXWDOORYHUWKHFRXQWU\
x 7KH &RPSDQ\ DOVR SODQV WR WLH XS ZLWK PRYLH DQG UHFRUGLQJ RXWILWV IRU SURPR WRXUV OLYH
SHUIRUPDQFHV DQG IDQV· GD\V LQ PDOOV 7KHUH DUH DOVR VHYHUDO SURPRV LQ WKH SLSHOLQH OLNH WKH
\HDUO\%DJRQJ7DRQ%DJRQJ0LO\RQDQGRWKHUFOLHQWLQLWLDWHGSURPRVWKDWSURPLVHWREHDELJ
KLWDPRQJUDGLROLVWHQHUV

7KH&RPSDQ\DOVRSODQVWRHDUPDUN3PLOOLRQFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHIRULWVYDULRXVSURMHFWVQDPHO\
5+79 EURDGFDVW H[SDQVLRQ RYHU YDULRXV FDEOH DQG 79 FKDQQHOV OHDVHKROG LPSURYHPHQW DW +HDG
2IILFHDXGLRDQGYLGHRVWUHDPLQJRYHUWKHLQWHUQHWDQGLPSURYHPHQWRIH[LVWLQJVWDWLRQV·HTXLSPHQW
DQGIDFLOLWLHVQDWLRQZLGH7KLVZLOOEHIXQGHGE\FDVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 2WKHU'LVFORVXUHPDWWHUV

D 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV
E 7KHUHDUHQRXVXDOLWHPVDIIHFWLQJDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVHTXLW\QHWLQFRPHRUFDVKIORZV
F 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRULQWHULPSHULRGVRIWKHFXUUHQW
ILQDQFLDO\HDURULQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRUILQDQFLDO\HDUV
G 7KHUHDUHQRPDWHULDOHYHQWVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHHQGRIWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGWKDWKDYHQRWEHHQ
UHIOHFWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHSHULRG
H 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQWKHFRPSRVLWLRQRIWKHLVVXHUGXULQJWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGLQFOXGLQJ
EXVLQHVV FRPELQDWLRQV DFTXLVLWLRQ RU GLVSRVDO RI VXEVLGLDULHV DQG ORQJWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV
UHVWUXFWXULQJVDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
I 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVRUFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVVLQFHWKHODVWDQQXDOEDODQFH
VKHHWGDWH
J 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO FRQWLQJHQFLHV DQG DQ\ HYHQWV RU WUDQVDFWLRQV WKDW DUH PDWHULDO WR WKH
XQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHFXUUHQWLQWHULPSHULRG
K 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ WUHQGV GHPDQGV FRPPLWPHQWV HYHQWV RU XQFHUWDLQWLHV WKDW ZLOO KDYH D
PDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VOLTXLGLW\
L 7KHUHDUHQRNQRZQWUHQGVHYHQWVRUXQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDWKDGRUWKDWDUHUHDVRQDEO\H[SHFWHGWR
KDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHQHWVDOHVRUUHYHQXHVRULQFRPHIURPFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
M 7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW HOHPHQWV RI LQFRPH RU ORVV WKDW GLG QRW DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V
FRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV




C

5 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV
O 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO WULJJHU GLUHFW RU FRQWLQJHQW ILQDQFLDO REOLJDWLRQ WKDW LV
PDWHULDOWRWKH&RPSDQ\LQFOXGLQJDQ\GHIDXOWRUDFFHOHUDWLRQRIDQREOLJDWLRQ
P 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO RIIEDODQFH VKHHW WUDQVDFWLRQV DUUDQJHPHQWV REOLJDWLRQV LQFOXGLQJ
FRQWLQJHQWREOLJDWLRQV DQGRWKHUUHODWLRQVKLSVRIWKH&RPSDQ\ZLWKXQFRQVROLGDWHGHQWLWLHVRU
RWKHUSHUVRQVFUHDWHGGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
Q 7KHUHDUHQREXVLQHVVRIJHRJUDSKLFDOVHJPHQWVIRUZKLFKLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHSRUWHGWRWKH
%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV %2' DQGFKLHIH[HFXWLYHRIILFHU
R 7KHUHZHUHQRFKDQJHVLQDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGIRUVHJPHQWUHSRUWLQJWKDWKDYHDPDWHULDO
HIIHFWRQVHJPHQWLQIRUPDWLRQ


) 2WKHU'LVFORVXUH5HTXLUHPHQWV3HU$QQH[0SDUDJUDSKHRI5XOH

D 0DUNHWDEOH6HFXULWLHV
7KHDJJUHJDWHFRVWRUPDUNHWYDOXHRIVKRUWWHUPLQYHVWPHQWVFRQVWLWXWHVOHVVWKDQRIWRWDO
DVVHWVDVRI'HFHPEHU
E 7KHDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHRIPRUHWKDQ3RURQHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVIURP'LUHFWRUV
2IILFHUV(PSOR\HHV5HODWHG3DUWLHVDQG3ULQFLSDO6WRFNKROGHUV -RVH07DUXF-U²3 
F 7KHDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVRI3LQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWGRHVQRWH[FHHG
ILYHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVDQGKDYHQRPDWHULDOFKDQJHVLQWKHLQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGWREHILOHG
IURPWKDWODVWSUHYLRXVO\UHSRUWHG
G 7KHUHZHUHQRDPRXQWVGXHIURPDIILOLDWHVLQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWWKDWH[FHHGILYHSHUFHQW
RIWRWDODVVHWV3OHDVHVHHQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
H ,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV2WKHU$VVHWV²3OHDVHUHIHUWRQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
I /RQJWHUP'HEW²1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
J ,QGHEWHGQHVVWR5HODWHG3DUWLHV33OHDVHUHIHUWR1RWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
K *XDUDQWHHVRI6HFXULWLHVRI2WKHU,VVXHUV²1RWDSSOLFDEOH
L &DSLWDO6WRFN²WKHUHZHUHQRVLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHVVLQFHWKHGDWHRIWKHODVWEDODQFHVKHHWILOHG
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'LVFXVVLRQRQ.H\3HUIRUPDQFH,QGLFDWRUV   

D 526LQFUHDVHGIURPWRSULPDULO\GXHWRKLJKHUQHWLQFRPHHDUQHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
E 7KH(36LQFUHDVHGE\3SHUVKDUHGXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQQHWLQFRPHIRUWKH\HDUZLWKWKHWRWDO
QXPEHURXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW
F &XUUHQWUDWLRLQFUHDVHGIURPWRPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
\HDUHQGEDODQFH
G 7KHGHEWHTXLW\UDWLRGHFUHDVHGWRIURPLQPDLQO\GXHWRWKHGHFUHDVHLQWKH
FRPSDQ\·VOLDELOLWLHVSDUWLFXODUO\WKH&RPSDQ\·VDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGH[SHQVHVDVZHOODV
WDOHQWIHHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQSD\DEOH
H 7KH ERRN YDOXH SHU VKDUH LQFUHDVHG E\  7KLV LV PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ UHYDOXDWLRQ
LQFUHPHQW RQ ODQG DQG WR WKH LQFUHDVH RI UHWDLQHG HDUQLQJV GXULQJ WKH \HDU ZLWK WKH QXPEHU RI
RXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW




YV

 5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV

7KH&RPSDQ\·VWRWDO UHYHQXHDPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQWKDWLV  KLJKHUWKDQWKHUHYHQXH
SRVWHG ODVW \HDU PDLQO\ GXH WR DGYHUWLVHPHQW VSHQGLQJ E\ SROLWLFDO FDQGLGDWHV LQ OLQH ZLWK WKHLU
HOHFWLRQFDPSDLJQ2QWKHRWKHUKDQGFRVWRIVHUYLFHVDQGRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVERWKLQFUHDVHGE\
3 PLOOLRQ DQG 3 PLOOLRQ UHVSHFWLYHO\ 7KH LQFUHDVH LQ FRVW RI VHUYLFHV ZDV PDLQO\ GXH WR
DGGLWLRQDOVHUYLFHIHHVLQFXUUHGDVDUHVXOWRIKLJKHUUHYHQXHV7KHLQFUHDVHLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZDV
PDLQO\GXHWRKLJKHUSHUVRQQHOH[SHQVHVVSHFLILFDOO\SHUIRUPDQFHERQXVJLYHQ WRHPSOR\HHVDQG
YDULDEOHH[SHQVHVDVDUHVXOWRILQFUHDVHGUHYHQXHVWKLV\HDU

2WKHULQFRPHQHWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFRPHJHQHUDWHGE\WKH
&RPSDQ\IURPLWVVSRQVRUVKLSVLQVHYHUDOVKRZVFRQFHUWVGXULQJWKH\HDU,QWHUHVWLQFRPHGHFUHDVHG
E\  FRPSDUHG WR ODVW \HDU·V DPRXQW PDLQO\ GXH WR UHGXFHG LQYHVWPHQW EDODQFH RQ PRQH\
PDUNHWSODFHPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDU

$VDUHVXOWWKH&RPSDQ\UHJLVWHUHGDQHWLQFRPHRI3PLOOLRQLQDQLQFUHDVHRI3PLOOLRQ
RUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ


 )LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG&KDQJHVLQ)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQ

0%&LVQRWKDYLQJRUGRHVQRWDQWLFLSDWHKDYLQJZLWKLQWKHQH[WPRQWKVDQ\FDVKIORZRUOLTXLGLW\
SUREOHPV QHLWKHU LV LW LQ GHIDXOW RU LQ EUHDFK RI DQ\ QRWH ORDQ OHDVH RU RWKHU LQGHEWHGQHVV RU
ILQDQFLQJDUUDQJHPHQWUHTXLULQJLWWRPDNHSD\PHQWVQRUDVLJQLILFDQWDPRXQWRIWKHUHJLVWUDQW·V
WUDGHSD\DEOHVKDYHQRWEHHQSDLGZLWKLQWKHVWDWHGWUDGHWHUPV




C


 &DXVHVRI0DWHULDO&KDQJHVIURP3HULRGWR3HULRG  

D &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR
3PLOOLRQLQPDLQO\GXHWRGHFUHDVHGQHWFDVKIORZVJHQHUDWHGIURPRSHUDWLRQV3OHDVH
VHHVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVRIWKHDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV 
E 'XH IURP DIILOLDWHV UHSUHVHQWV WKH LQWHUHVWIUHH DGYDQFHV PDGH E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WR (OL]DOGH
+ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ &HEX %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ 3KLOLSSLQH %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ DQG
3DFLILF %URDGFDVWLQJ 6\VWHP ,QF DOO RI ZKLFK DUH DIILOLDWHG FRPSDQLHV SOHDVH VHH QRWH  RI
DXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV 7KHEDODQFHDVRI'HFHPEHUDPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQ
F 0DWHULDOVDQGVXSSOLHVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUGXHWRWKHGHFUHDVHLQWKH&RPSDQ\·V
H[GHDO,QYHQWRU\
G 3UHSDLGH[SHQVHVDQGRWKHUFXUUHQWDVVHWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUEHFDXVHLQ
WKHFXUUHQWSRUWLRQRILQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGVDUHFODVVLILHGXQGHUSUHSDLGH[SHQVHVDQGRWKHU
FXUUHQWDVVHWVZKLOHLQWKHFXUUHQWSRUWLRQRILQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGVDUHFODVVLILHGXQGHU
RWKHUQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
H 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDWUHYDOXHGDPRXQWLQFUHDVHGE\DOPRVW3PLOOLRQRU 7KH
LQFUHDVHLVPDLQO\GXHWRWKHDSSUDLVDOLQFUHDVHLQODQG
I ,QYHVWPHQWSURSHUWLHVDPRXQWLQJWR3PLOOLRQDVRI'HFHPEHUUHSUHVHQWWKHQHW
EDODQFHRQWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIODQGDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQRIEXLOGLQJLQLQWHQGHGIRUIXWXUHXVH
RIWKH&RPSDQ\7KHVDLGSURSHUW\LVFXUUHQWO\EHLQJOHDVHGRXWRQD\HDUO\EDVLVWRJHQHUDWH
UHYHQXH LQ RUGHU WR VXVWDLQ LWV PDLQWHQDQFH FRVWV 7KH GHFUHDVH RI 3 PLOOLRQ RU 
UHSUHVHQWVGHSUHFLDWLRQFKDUJHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
J ,QWDQJLEOH DVVHWV DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. ZKLFK EHFDPH HIIHFWLYH RQ
2FWREHU7KHGHFUHDVHRI3PLOOLRQRUUHSUHVHQWVDPRUWL]DWLRQFRVWVGXULQJ
WKH\HDU
K 2WKHUQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWVLQFUHDVHGIURP3PLOOLRQLQWR3PLOOLRQLQDQLQFUHDVH
RI3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQPLVFHOODQHRXVGHSRVLWVDQGLQSXWWD[RQ
FDSLWDOJRRGV
L 'XHWRDIILOLDWHVKDYHD]HUREDODQFHDWWKHHQGRIIURPDEDODQFHRI3PLOOLRQLQ
SOHDVHVHHEDERYHRQGLVFXVVLRQRQGXHIURPDIILOLDWHV 
M 'LYLGHQGSD\DEOHLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUDVWKHSD\PHQWRIGLYLGHQGVGHFODUHGLQ
LVVWLOOGXHRQ-DQXDU\
N 7DOHQWIHHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQVSD\DEOHLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRLQFUHDVHG
SODFHPHQWRIFOLHQWLQLWLDWHGSURPRVGXULQJWKH\HDU
O ,QFRPHWD[SD\DEOHGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHWLPLQJGLIIHUHQFHLQ
WKH FROOHFWLRQ RI FUHGLWDEOH ZLWKKROGLQJ WD[ FHUWLILFDWHV DQG SD\PHQWV PDGH LQ WKH SUHYLRXV
TXDUWHUV
P $FFUXHGUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRUHPHDVXUHPHQW
JDLQ RQ DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV FORVHG WR HTXLW\ FRQVLVWLQJ RI DFWXDULDO JDLQV RQ SUHVHQW
YDOXH RI EHQHILW REOLJDWLRQ DQG IDLU YDOXH RI SODQDVVHWV 3OHDVH VHH 1RWH  RI  DXGLWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQW
Q $FFUXHGUHQWRI3PLOOLRQUHSUHVHQWVWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHUHQWH[SHQVHFRPSXWHGRQD
VWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVDQGWKHDFWXDOUHQWDOSD\PHQWVPDGH3OHDVHVHH1RWHRIWKHDXGLWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
R 'HIHUUHGLQFRPHWD[OLDELOLWLHVQHWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU3OHDVHVHH1RWHERI
DXGLWHG)6
S 5HYDOXDWLRQ LQFUHPHQW RQ ODQG LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ WKH
UHYDOXHGDPRXQWEDVHGRQWKHYDOXDWLRQFRQGXFWHGE\LQGHSHQGHQWDSSUDLVDOFRPSDQLHV
T 5HVHUYHIRUIOXFWXDWLRQLQDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU
GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHTXRWHGVKDUHVRIVWRFNDVGHWHUPLQHGEDVHGRQTXRWHG
PDUNHWSULFH
U 5HPHDVXUHPHQWRQDFFUXHGUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUDVDUHVXOW
RIWKHLPSDFWRIWKHDGRSWLRQRI3$653OHDVHVHHPDERYH
V 5HWDLQHGHDUQLQJVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHQHWHIIHFWRILQFRPH
DQGWKHGHFODUDWLRQRIFDVKGLYLGHQGVGXULQJWKH\HDU3OHDVHVHHVWDWHPHQWVRIFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\
RIDXGLWHG)6





C

 3ODQ2I2SHUDWLRQ
7KLV \HDU 0%& ZLOO EULQJ D KRVW RI SURPLVLQJ HYHQW SHUIRUPDQFHV FUHDWLQJ D SLSHOLQH RI UHYHQXH
VWUHDPVWKDWZLOOFRPSOHPHQWWKHH[LVWLQJDLUWLPHUHYHQXHV$VLGHIURPWKHVXFFHVVIXOPRYLHSUHPLHU
VKRZLQJDQGRQDLUDQGILHOGSURPRWLRQV0%&KDVRQFHDJDLQVHWDOLQHXSRIHYHQWVWKDWZLOOVXUHO\
SURYLGHPD[LPXPYDOXHIRUDGYHUWLVHUVDQGWKHOLVWHQLQJSXEOLF

x )LUVWLVWKH0DQLOD%D\6HD6SRUWV)HVWLYDOZKLFKZDVKHOGODVW0DUFKZKHUHDQHOLWH
URVWHURISDUWLFLSDQWVZDVLQYLWHGWRMRLQWKHHYHQW2UJDQL]HGE\0DQLOD%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\
DQG WKH &LW\ RI 3DVD\ LQ FRRSHUDWLRQ ZLWK WKH 3KLOLSSLQH &RDVW *XDUG WKLV \HDU·V 6HD 6SRUWV
IHVWLYDOIHDWXUHGPL[HGWHDPFKDPSLRQVKLSVIRUWKH'UDJRQ%RDW5DFHVWRFNDQGIRUPXODUDFHV
LQ WKH PRWRUL]HG EDQFD FRPSHWLWLRQ &RQYHUJLQJ DORQJ 5R[DV %RXOHYDUG·V %D\ZDON ZDWHU
HQWKXVLDVWVDQGKREE\LVWVFKHHUHGRQWKHSDUWLFLSDQWVLQWKHVHSRSXODUVSHFWDWRUVSRUWV
x 7KHPXFKDQWLFLSDWHGHYHQWRIWKHFRPSDQ\WKH$OLZDQ)LHVWDWREHKHOGODVW$SULO
EURXJKWWKHEHVWELJJHVWORXGHVWDQGWKHPRVWFRORUIXOILHVWDVIURPDOORYHUWKH3KLOLSSLQHVWR
0DQLOD1RZRQLWVWK\HDUWKHIHVWLYDORQFHDJDLQZLOOVKRZFDVHWKHGDQFHFRPSHWLWLRQZKHUH
WKH FRQWLQJHQWV SUHVHQW IDEXORXVO\ FKRUHRJUDSKHG URXWLQHV LQ IXOO FRVWXPHG JORU\ 7KH WKUHH
RWKHU FDWHJRULHV RI WKH HYHQW ZHUH WKH )ORDW &RPSHWLWLRQ 5H\QD QJ $OLZDQ DQG WKH 3KRWR
&RPSHWLWLRQ
x 0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQKHOGLQ-XO\DW&&3*URXQG3DVD\&LW\7KHDLPRIWKLVHYHQWLVWR
UDLVHIXQGVIRUWKHGULYHWRFOHDQXSWKH0DQLOD%D\RIWUDVKDQGSROOXWDQWVDVZHOODVWRUDLVH
DZDUHQHVV DPRQJ )LOLSLQRV WR WDNH FDUH RI RXU HQYLURQPHQW DQG SUHVHUYH RXU FLW\·V QDWXUDO
EHDXW\VWDUWLQJZLWKWKHSLFWXUHVTXHHFRORJ\RIWKH0DQLOD%D\7KH0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQ
QRZRQLWVWK\HDULVDIXQGGULYHRUJDQL]HGDQGPDQDJHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
x 0%&QDWLRQDO&KRUDO&RPSHWLWLRQZKLFKZLOOWDNHSODFHLQ'HFHPEHUDOVRSURPLVHVWREULQJ
KLJKO\DFFODLPHGFRQWHVWDQWVQRWRQO\IURP0HWUR0DQLODEXWDOORYHUWKHFRXQWU\
x 7KH &RPSDQ\ DOVR SODQV WR WLH XS ZLWK PRYLH DQG UHFRUGLQJ RXWILWV IRU SURPR WRXUV OLYH
SHUIRUPDQFHV DQG IDQV· GD\V LQ PDOOV 7KHUH DUH DOVR VHYHUDO SURPRV LQ WKH SLSHOLQH OLNH WKH
\HDUO\%DJRQJ7DRQ%DJRQJ0LO\RQDQGRWKHUFOLHQWLQLWLDWHGSURPRVWKDWSURPLVHWREHDELJ
KLWDPRQJUDGLROLVWHQHUV

7KH&RPSDQ\DOVRSODQVWRHDUPDUN3PLOOLRQFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHIRULWVYDULRXVSURMHFWVQDPHO\
5+79 EURDGFDVW H[SDQVLRQ RYHU YDULRXV FDEOH DQG 79 FKDQQHOV OHDVHKROG LPSURYHPHQW DW +HDG
2IILFHDXGLRDQGYLGHRVWUHDPLQJRYHUWKHLQWHUQHWDQGLPSURYHPHQWRIH[LVWLQJVWDWLRQV·HTXLSPHQW
DQGIDFLOLWLHVQDWLRQZLGH7KLVZLOOEHIXQGHGE\FDVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 2WKHU'LVFORVXUHPDWWHUV

D 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV
E 7KHUHDUHQRXVXDOLWHPVDIIHFWLQJDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVHTXLW\QHWLQFRPHRUFDVKIORZV
F 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRULQWHULPSHULRGVRIWKHFXUUHQW
ILQDQFLDO\HDURULQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRUILQDQFLDO\HDUV
G 7KHUHDUHQRPDWHULDOHYHQWVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHHQGRIWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGWKDWKDYHQRWEHHQ
UHIOHFWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHSHULRG
H 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQWKHFRPSRVLWLRQRIWKHLVVXHUGXULQJWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGLQFOXGLQJ
EXVLQHVV FRPELQDWLRQV DFTXLVLWLRQ RU GLVSRVDO RI VXEVLGLDULHV DQG ORQJWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV
UHVWUXFWXULQJVDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
I 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVRUFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVVLQFHWKHODVWDQQXDOEDODQFH
VKHHWGDWH
J 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO FRQWLQJHQFLHV DQG DQ\ HYHQWV RU WUDQVDFWLRQV WKDW DUH PDWHULDO WR WKH
XQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHFXUUHQWLQWHULPSHULRG
K 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ WUHQGV GHPDQGV FRPPLWPHQWV HYHQWV RU XQFHUWDLQWLHV WKDW ZLOO KDYH D
PDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VOLTXLGLW\
L 7KHUHDUHQRNQRZQWUHQGVHYHQWVRUXQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDWKDGRUWKDWDUHUHDVRQDEO\H[SHFWHGWR
KDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHQHWVDOHVRUUHYHQXHVRULQFRPHIURPFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
M 7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW HOHPHQWV RI LQFRPH RU ORVV WKDW GLG QRW DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V
FRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
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5 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV
O 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO WULJJHU GLUHFW RU FRQWLQJHQW ILQDQFLDO REOLJDWLRQ WKDW LV
PDWHULDOWRWKH&RPSDQ\LQFOXGLQJDQ\GHIDXOWRUDFFHOHUDWLRQRIDQREOLJDWLRQ
P 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO RIIEDODQFH VKHHW WUDQVDFWLRQV DUUDQJHPHQWV REOLJDWLRQV LQFOXGLQJ
FRQWLQJHQWREOLJDWLRQV DQGRWKHUUHODWLRQVKLSVRIWKH&RPSDQ\ZLWKXQFRQVROLGDWHGHQWLWLHVRU
RWKHUSHUVRQVFUHDWHGGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
Q 7KHUHDUHQREXVLQHVVRIJHRJUDSKLFDOVHJPHQWVIRUZKLFKLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHSRUWHGWRWKH
%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV %2' DQGFKLHIH[HFXWLYHRIILFHU
R 7KHSULFLQJRILQWHUVHJPHQWWUDQVIHUVZDVEDVHGRQFRVWDWWKHWLPHRIWUDQVDFWLRQ
S 7KHUHZHUHQRFKDQJHVLQDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGIRUVHJPHQWUHSRUWLQJWKDWKDYHDPDWHULDO
HIIHFWRQVHJPHQWLQIRUPDWLRQ


) 2WKHU'LVFORVXUH5HTXLUHPHQWV3HU$QQH[0SDUDJUDSKHRI5XOH
D 0DUNHWDEOH6HFXULWLHV
7KHDJJUHJDWHFRVWRUPDUNHWYDOXHRIVKRUWWHUPLQYHVWPHQWVFRQVWLWXWHVOHVVWKDQRIWRWDO
DVVHWVDVRI'HFHPEHU
E 7KHDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHRIPRUHWKDQ3RURQHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVIURP'LUHFWRUV
2IILFHUV(PSOR\HHV5HODWHG3DUWLHVDQG3ULQFLSDO6WRFNKROGHUV -RVH07DUXF-U²3 
F 7KHDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVRI3LQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWGRHVQRWH[FHHG
ILYHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVDQGKDYHQRPDWHULDOFKDQJHVLQWKHLQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGWREHILOHG
IURPWKDWODVWSUHYLRXVO\UHSRUWHG
G 7KHUHZHUHDPRXQWVGXHIURPDIILOLDWHVLQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWWKDWH[FHHGILYHSHUFHQWRI
WRWDODVVHWV3OHDVHVHHQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
H ,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV2WKHU$VVHWV²3OHDVHUHIHUWRQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
I /RQJWHUP'HEW²1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
J ,QGHEWHGQHVVWR5HODWHG3DUWLHV1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
K *XDUDQWHHVRI6HFXULWLHVRI2WKHU,VVXHUV²1RWDSSOLFDEOH
L &DSLWDO6WRFN²WKHUHZHUHQRVLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHVVLQFHWKHGDWHRIWKHODVWEDODQFHVKHHWILOHG

7LWOHRI,VVXH
&RPPRQ6KDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHDXWKRUL]HG
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVLVVXHGDQGRXWVWDQGLQJ
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVUHVHUYHGIRURSWLRQVZDUUDQWV
1,/
FRQYHUVLRQDQGRWKHUULJKWV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\UHODWHGSDUWLHV
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\GLUHFWRUVRIILFHUVDQG
VKDUHV
HPSOR\HHV
2WKHUV
VKDUHV
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5HWXUQRQ6DOHV 526 

1HW,QFRPH

'LYLGHE\6DOHV

526






















(DUQLQJV3HU6KDUH (36 
1HW,QFRPH
'LYLGHE\1RRI6KDUHV2XWVWDQGLQJ
(36




















&XUUHQW5DWLR
&XUUHQW$VVHWV
'LYLGHE\&XUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQW5DWLR
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'HEW(TXLW\5DWLR
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV
'LYLGHE\6WRFNKROGHUV·(TXLW\
'HEW(TXLW\5DWLR


















%RRN9DOXH3HU6KDUH
7RWDO6WRFNKROGHUV·(TXLW\
'LYLGHE\1RRI6KDUHV2XWVWDQGLQJ
%RRN9DOXH3HU6KDUH














'LVFXVVLRQRQ.H\3HUIRUPDQFH,QGLFDWRUV   

D 526GHFUHDVHGIURPWRPDLQO\GXHKLJKHUFRVWVDQGH[SHQVHVLQFRPSDUHG
ZLWK
E 7KH (36 LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 SHU VKDUH GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ QHW LQFRPH ZLWK WKH WRWDO QXPEHU
RXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW
F &XUUHQWUDWLRLQFUHDVHGIURPWRPDLQO\WRWKHKLJKEDODQFHRIUHFHLYDEOHVIURPDIILOLDWHV
GXULQJWKH\HDU
G 7KHGHEWHTXLW\UDWLRLQFUHDVHG WR  IURP LQ PDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKH
FRPSDQ\·VDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGH[SHQVHVDVZHOODVGHIHUUHGLQFRPHWD[OLDELOLWLHV
H 7KH ERRN YDOXH SHU VKDUH LQFUHDVHG IURP  WR  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH UHPHDVXUHPHQWV RQ
DFFUXHGUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDQGQHWLQFRPHGXULQJWKH\HDUZLWKWKHQXPEHURIRXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHV
UHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW


([WHUQDO$XGLW)HHV
7KH&RPSDQ\·VH[WHUQDODXGLWRULV6\FLS*RUUHV9HOD\R &R&3$·V,QFRPSOLDQFHZLWK6(&
0HPRUDQGXP &LUFXODU 1R  VHULHV RI  FKDQJHV ZHUH PDGH LQ WKH DVVLJQPHQW RI
(QJDJHPHQW3DUWQHUVZLWKLQWKHJURXSDWOHDVWHYHU\ILYH  \HDUV

$XGLW5HODWHG)HHV


7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVHWVRXWWKHDJJUHJDWHIHHVELOOHGIRUHDFKRIWKHODVWFDOHQGDU\HDUVIRU
SURIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHVUHQGHUHGE\6\FLS*RUUHV9HOD\R &R&3$·V

$XGLWDQG$XGLW5HODWHG)HHV



5HJXODU$XGLW



5HYLHZRI3URSRVHG,QFUHDVHLQ$&6



/RQJ)RUP$XGLW



5HYLHZRI)RUHFDVW



$OO2WKHU)HHV



7RWDO$XGLWDQG$XGLW5HODWHG)HHV




%XVLQHVVDQG*HQHUDO,QIRUPDWLRQ

 %XVLQHVV'HYHORSPHQW

2YHU WKH \HDUV UDGLR KDV VWRRG LWV JURXQG WR SURYH WKDW LW LV WKH PRVW SRZHUIXO PHGLXP RI
FRPPXQLFDWLRQ *LYHQ WKH DUFKLSHODJLF QDWXUH RI WKH 3KLOLSSLQH ,VODQGV UDGLR FRQWLQXHV WR EH DQ
LQGLVSHQVDEOH PHGLXP IRU LQIRUPDWLRQ HQWHUWDLQPHQW DQG DGYHUWLVLQJ ZK\ QRW ZKHQ LW KDV WKH
DIIRUGDELOLW\ SRUWDELOLW\ DQG PRELOLW\ ZKLFK RWKHU PHGLD GR QRW KDYH 7R EHJLQ ZLWK DOPRVW DOO
3KLOLSSLQHKRXVHKROGVRZQDWOHDVWRQHUDGLRVHW5DGLRVDUHHDVLO\WUDQVIHUUHGIURPRQHVHFWLRQRI
WKHKRXVHWRDQRWKHU,WWUDYHOVZLWKLWVOLVWHQHUVEHWKH\LQWKHLUSULYDWHFDUVRULQMHHSQH\VWD[LVDQG
);





C





$IHZ\HDUVEDFNKRZHYHUWKHQHZPLOOHQQLXPXVKHUHGLQDQXQFKDUWHUHGHUDIRUWKHPHGLDLQGXVWU\
DQG 0DQLOD %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ 0%&RU WKH &RPSDQ\  KDV WDNHQ EROG PRYHV WR DGGUHVV WKH
FKDQJLQJQHHGVRIWKHFKDQJLQJWLPHV

7RGD\0%&KDVJRQHEH\RQGLWVXVXDOUROHDVDPHGLXPDQGKDVDPHVVDJHLWVHOILQWHUPVRIWKH
IROORZLQJ

-D  (YHQWV

0%&KDVH[SDQGHGLWVRSHUDWLRQVWRHPEUDFHERWKEURDGFDVWLQJDQGRUJDQL]LQJVSHFLDOHYHQWV
2XUFXUUHQWEXVLQHVVPRGHOSURYLGHVDGYHUWLVHUVZLWKDFRPELQDWLRQRIEHQHILWV²WKHWUDGLWLRQDO
DSSHDORIRXU$0DQG)0QHWZRUNVSOXVWKHKLJKLPSDFWH[SRVXUHJHQHUDWHGE\VSHFLDOHYHQWV

$OLZDQ)LHVWD
2QHRIWKHPRVWVXFFHVVIXOHYHQWV$OLZDQ)LHVWDKDVFHOHEUDWHGLWVWK\HDUDQQLYHUVDU\ODVW
$SULO,WVWDUWHGLQZKHQ0%&LQFROODERUDWLRQZLWK6WDU&LW\DQG$OLZ7KHDWHU
YHQWXUHGWREULQJWRJHWKHULQ0DQLODWKHDZDUGZLQQLQJSHUIRUPHUVDQGSHUIRUPDQFHVIURP
WKHPRVWSRSXODUIHVWLYDOVDOORYHUWKH3KLOLSSLQHV$VGDXQWLQJDVWKLVWDVNPD\KDYHVHHPHG
DWILUVW´$OLZDQ)LHVWDµWXUQHGRXWWREHDVWHUOLQJVXFFHVVGUDZLQJWHQVRIWKRXVDQGVWRWKH
VWUHHWVPDNLQJLWWKH3KLOLSSLQHV·JUDQGHVWILHVWD

3DVNRQJ3LQR\
3DVNRQJ3LQR\VWDUWHGLQKLJKOLJKWHGE\+LPLJQJ3DVNR&KLOGUHQ·V&KRLUFRPSHWLWLRQ
DQG,ODZQJ3DVNRDSDUROPDNLQJFRPSHWLWLRQ7KHHYHQW·VLQVWDQWVXFFHVVOHGWRDELJJHU
3DVNRQJ3LQR\LQDGGLQJDQRSHQFDWHJRU\WR+LPLJQJ3DVNRIRUDFDGHPLFLQVWLWXWLRQV
FKXUFKHVVSHFLDOLQWHUHVWJURXSVDVZHOODVFRPSDQLHVRUDJHQFLHVLQWKHSXEOLFDQGSULYDWH
VHFWRUV,Q0%&KDVDJDLQH[SDQGHGLWVVFRSHE\WXUQLQJWKHHYHQWLQWRDQDWLRQZLGH
FRPSHWLWLRQ ZKLFK ZDV SDUWLFLSDWHG E\ WKH EHVW FKRUDO FRQGXFWRUV DQG DUUDQJHUV LQ WKH
FRXQWU\

)ROORZLQJWKHWUDGLWLRQRI0%&·VDQQXDOQDWLRQDOFKRUDOFRPSHWLWLRQODVW'HFHPEHU
WKHHYHQWZHQWLQWHUQDWLRQDOIRUWKHILUVWWLPHDV,QWHUNXOWXULQFROODERUDWLRQZLWK0%&DQG
WKH3KLOLSSLQH&KRUDO'LUHFWRUV$VVRFLDWLRQ 3&'$ SURXGO\SUHVHQWHGWKH6LQJ1·-R\0DQLOD
WKH3KLOLSSLQH,QWHUQDWLRQDO&KRUDO&RPSHWLWLRQ7KLVYHU\VXFFHVVIXOHYHQWZDVMRLQHG
E\FKRLUVIURPYDULRXVFRXQWULHVDFURVV$VLD

6HD6SRUWV)HVWLYDO
0%&DQGWKH&LW\RI0DQLODLQFRRSHUDWLRQZLWKWKH3KLOLSSLQHV&RDVW*XDUGODXQFKHGLQ
 RI ZKDW ZDV WKHQ FDOOHG %DQNDWKRQ )HVWLYDO &RPSULVLQJ D 0RWRUL]HG EDQFD
FRPSHWLWLRQ DQG 'UDJRQ ERDW UDFH QRZ FDOOHG WKH 6HD 6SRUWV )HVWLYDO FRQYHUJH DW WKH
%D\ZDON5R[DV%RXOHYDUGHYHU\0DUFK

0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQ
'ULYHQ E\ LWV GHVLUH WR IXOILOO LWV FRPPLWPHQW LQ JLYLQJ EDFN WR WKH HQYLURQPHQW 0%&
ODXQFKHGLWVIXQGUDLVLQJSURMHFWWKDWZLOOEHQHILWWKH0DQLOD%D\WKH0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS
5XQZKLFKVWDUWHGLQ,W·VDIULHQGO\UDFHWKDWDLPVWRUDLVHIXQGVWKDWZLOOKHOSUHVWRUH
DQGPDLQWDLQWKHEHDXW\RIWKH0DQLOD%D\DVZHOODVWRSURPRWHDZDUHQHVVDPRQJ)LOLSLQRV
WKHEHQHILWVRIH[HUFLVHLQNHHSLQJRQHVHOIILWDQGKHDOWK\

'XULQJWKHVHUHFHQW\HDUV0%&KDVDOVRJRQHLQWRSURGXFLQJDQGVSRQVRULQJFRQFHUWVIHDWXULQJ
WRSORFDODUWLVWV2QVSHFLDORFFDVLRQVWKH&RPSDQ\·V)0VWDWLRQVZRXOGPRXQWPRYLHSUHPLHUV
ZKLOH JLYLQJ DZD\ WLFNHWV WR OR\DO OLVWHQHUV 7KH FRPSDQ\ DOVR KDV WLH XSV ZLWK PRYLH DQG
UHFRUGLQJRXWILWVIRUSURPRWRXUVOLYHSHUIRUPDQFHVDQGIDQV·GD\VLQPDOOV7KLVZD\0%&FDQ
UHDFKLWVFXVWRPHUVLQVHYHUDOZD\VRQDLUZKHQRXUFXVWRPHUVOLVWHQWRUDGLRVWDWLRQVRQWKH
VWUHHWVZKHUHWKHUHDUHVWUHDPHUVDQGSRVWHUVRIWKHHYHQWVDQGLQWKHQHZVSDSHUVDQG79ZKHQ
PHGLDFRYHUWKHVHHYHQWV
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-:/ <UDQGLQJ


)RU/RYH5DGLRLWLV´.DLODQJDQSDEDQJLPPHPRUL]H¶\DQ"µIRU<HV)0LWLV´+D\DKD\µIRU(DV\
5RFNLWLV´-XVWWKH5LWH5RFNµDQGIRU'=5+LWLV´5+$JDGµ


,QGHHGWKHVHWDJOLQHVLQYRNHDSHUVRQDOLW\DFKDUDFWHUWKDWIRUPVDSHUVRQDODQGHPRWLRQDOERQG
ZLWKOLVWHQHUVVRPXFKVRWKDWOR\DOW\LVIRUPHGDQGLVYHU\KDUGWREUHDN


F  &UHDWLYH&RQWHQW

$IDUFU\IURPWKHWUDGLWLRQDOSURGXFHGDGVWKHUHLVPXFKQRZVXFKDWKLQJDV´FUHDWLYHFRQWHQWµ
7KLVLVZKHQDGYHUWLVLQJPHVVDJHVDUHQRZFDVXDOO\HPEHGGHGLQDQQRXQFHUV·DQG'-V·DGOLEV
DQGLQVRDSRSHUDVFULSWV7KLVUHQGHUVWKHPHVVDJHPRUHFUHGLEOHPRUHIXQWROLVWHQWRDQGLQ
VRPDQ\ZD\VWKDQRQHPRUHHIIHFWLYH

G  3URPRWLRQV

5DGLRSURPRVPD\EHKHOGDVROGDVWLPHEXWWKH\DUHJLYHQQHZ WZLVWV QRZDGD\V0RVWDUH
WDLORUPDGHDFFRUGLQJWRWKHVSHFLILFDWLRQVDQGQHHGVRIDSDUWLFXODUDGYHUWLVHU7KHVHSURPRV
JLYHDGYHUWLVHUVERWKWUDGLWLRQDOUHDFKRI $0DQG )0 VWDWLRQV DQGWKHKLJKLPSDFWH[SRVXUH
JHQHUDWHGE\VSHFLDOHYHQWVDQGSURPRWLRQV

H  ,PSURYHG5HVHDUFK

0DMRUDJHQFLHVDQGDGYHUWLVHUVQRZDUHSURYLGHGZLWKWKHODWHVWDQGPRVWUHOLDEOHGDWDWRKHOS
WKHPEX\LQWRUDGLR7KH.DSLVDQDQQJPJD%URDGNDVWHUQJ3LOLSLQDV .%3 RIZKLFK0%&LVDQ
DFWLYH PHPEHU EULGJHV WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ JDS EHWZHHQ DGYHUWLVHUV DQG UDGLR ZLWK WKH 0DUNHW
5HDGHUVDQG$&1LHOVHQVWXGLHV

:LWK WKH $VVRFLDWLRQ RI $FFUHGLWHG $GYHUWLVLQJ $JHQFLHV $·V  DQG 3KLOLSSLQH $VVRFLDWLRQ RI
1DWLRQDO$GYHUWLVHUV 3$1$ .%3KDVDOVRUHDFWLYDWHGWKH5DGLR5HVHDUFK&RXQFLO 55& DVWKH
RIILFLDO UDGLR UHVHDUFK DUP :LWK WKLV WKH UDGLR LQGXVWU\ FDQ QRZ EH PHDVXUHG ZLWK D VLQJOH
XQLIRUP\DUGVWLFN

I  *OREDOL]DWLRQ

7KURXJKWKHLQWHUQHWUDGLRVWUHDPLQJ)LOLSLQRVDOORYHUWKHZRUOGDUHQRZDEOHWROLVWHQWR0%&·V
UDGLR VWDWLRQV UHDO WLPH WKXVDGGLQJ DGGLWLRQDO YHQXH IRU SURGXFWV DQG VHUYLFHV WKDW QHHG WR
UHDFK)LOLSLQRVDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVZRUOGZLGH,WLVDFDVHRIDZRUOGWKDWKDVJRQHVPDOOHUDQGZH
KDYHUDGLRODUJHO\WRWKDQNIRU

/RRNLQJ EDFN DQG PRYLQJ IRUZDUG QRQH RI WKHVH YHQWXUHV ZRXOG EH D VXFFHVV ZLWKRXW WKH
LQYDOXDEOHVXSSRUWRIRXUSDUWQHUVRXUDGYHUWLVHUV0XFKLQWKHVDPHZD\WKDWWKH&RPSDQ\·V
EXVLQHVV PRGHO LV HYROYLQJ WLPHWHVWHG UHODWLRQVKLSV ZLWK DGYHUWLVHUV DUH DOVR FKDQJLQJ¬
JURZLQJVWURQJHUDQGWUDQVFHQGLQJWKHFRQYHQWLRQDOERXQGDULHVRIUDGLR



J  $FTXLVLWLRQRI6WDWLRQ':5. QRZ(DV\5RFN 

0DQLOD %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ PDUNHG DQRWKHU PLOHVWRQH LQ WKH KLVWRU\ RI 3KLOLSSLQH UDGLR
WKURXJK LWV DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. LQ 2FWREHU  XQGHU D 0HPRUDQGXP RI $JUHHPHQW ZLWK
$&:68QLWHG%URDGFDVWLQJ1HWZRUN,QFDQG([RGXV%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\

&XUUHQWO\ WKH WRSUDWLQJ QLFKH VWDWLRQ LQ 0HWUR 0DQLOD ':5.·V HQWU\ LQWR WKH 0%& IDPLO\³
DOUHDG\WKHKRPHRIWKHWZRKLJKHVWUDWLQJVWDWLRQVRQWKH)0EDQG³LVYLHZHGDVDQHYHQELJJHU
ERRVWWRWKHQHWZRUN·VRYHUDOODXGLHQFHVKDUHZLWKDJJUHJDWHDGYHUWLVLQJUHYHQXHVVHWWRSURSHO
WRHYHQKLJKHUOHYHOV$UPHGZLWKWKHVDPHEXVLQHVVIRUHVLJKWWKDWKDVVHHQLWWKURXJKVHYHQ
GHFDGHVDVDPHGLDFRQJORPHUDWHWRUHFNRQZLWK0%&QRZVHWVRXWWRFDUYHLWVQLFKHDPRQJ
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\RXWKIXO$%OLVWHQHUV ZKR IDYRUOLJKWURFNPXVLF':5. QRZ SRSXODUO\NQRZQDV(DV\5RFN
SUHVHQWVWKHFUHDPRIDGXOWFRQWHPSRUDU\PXVLFIURPWKHVVVVDQGV

-/ 5+79

$VSDUWRI0%&·VLQWHJUDWHGPHGLDDSSURDFKVHHLQJKRZUDGLRKDVJRQHPXOWLSODWIRUPLQHIIRUWV
WRUHVSRQGWRWKH)LOLSLQRGLDVSRUDSKHQRPHQRQDQGWKHUHE\H[SDQGLQJERWKOLVWHQHUVKLSDQG
YLHZHUVKLSWKHORQJHVWUXQQLQJ$0UDGLRVWDWLRQLQWKHFRXQWU\LVQRZRQWHOHYLVLRQ

'=5+ WKH IODJVKLS VWDWLRQ RI 0%& DQG FRQVLGHUHG WKH VWDQGDUGEHDUHU RI EURDGFDVWLQJ
H[FHOOHQFH LQ WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV VWDUWHG LWV KRXU EURDGFDVW RQ 2FWREHU   RYHU 'UHDP
&KDQQHO DQG&DEOHOLQN &KDQQHO $WSUHVHQWWKURXJKWKHDJUHHPHQWVLJQHGZLWKYDULRXV
PHPEHUVRIWKH)HGHUDWLRQRI,QWHUQDWLRQDO&DEOH79$VVRFLDWLRQRIWKH3KLOLSSLQHVRSHUDWLQJ
WKURXJKRXWWKHFRXQWU\5+79LVQRZDFFHVVLEOHWRDQDWLRQZLGHDXGLHQFHYLDLWVSURYLQFLDOFDEOH
RSHUDWRUVDQGDW&LJQDO79 &KDQQHO DQG&DEOHOLQN0HWUR0DQLOD &KDQQHO 


 %XVLQHVVRI,VVXHU

0%&LVHQJDJHGLQWKHUDGLREURDGFDVWLQJEXVLQHVV,WVEDQQHUVWDWLRQLV'=5+WKHRQO\QDWLRQZLGH
YLDVDWHOOLWH$0VWDWLRQLQWKHFRXQWU\/RYH5DGLR<(6)0DQG(DV\5RFNDUHWKHWKUHHWRSUDWHG)0
QHWZRUNVEHLQJRSHUDWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\7KHVHVWDWLRQVXWLOL]HDQDGXOWFRQWHPSRUDU\PXVLFIRUPDW
ZKLFK FRPELQHV QHZ FKDUWWRSSLQJ KLWV ZLWK IDPLOLDU VRQJV WKDW DUH DFNQRZOHGJHG DV WLPHOHVV
IDYRULWHVLQRUGHUWRDWWUDFWOLVWHQHUVIURPYLUWXDOO\HYHU\DJHJURXSDQGHFRQRPLFEDFNJURXQG$NV\RQ
5DG\R LV 0%&·V QHWZRUN FRPSRVHG RI SURYLQFLDO $0 VWDWLRQV 7KH FRPSDQ\ DOVR RSHUDWHV 5DG\R
1DWLQWKHODUJHVWQHWZRUNRIFRPPXQLW\UDGLRVWDWLRQVLQWKHFRXQWU\ZLWKRYHUVPDOO)0VWDWLRQV
WKURXJKRXWWKHDUFKLSHODJR

0%&HQJDJHVWKHVHUYLFHVRIYDULRXVORFDODQGIRUHLJQVXSSOLHUVLQWKHPDLQWHQDQFHDQGXSJUDGHRI
LWV H[LVWLQJ VWDWLRQV DQG IRU LWV QHZ VWDWLRQV ,WV UHJXODU VXSSOLHUV LQFOXGH (QHUJ\ 2QL[ %URDGFDVW
(TXLSPHQW %URDGFDVW :RUOG 3KLOV 6\VWHP ,QF %URDGFDVW (OHFWURQLFV ,QF %LQDULDQJ 6DWHOOLWH RI
0DOD\VLD6KDQJKDL7HQJ'D%URDGFDVWLQJ(TXLSPHQW&R/WG$UUD\6ROXWLRQ% ))RWR(OHFWURQLFV
6SLQ(OHFWURQLFV

0%&LVWKHODUJHVWUDGLRQHWZRUNLQWKHFRXQWU\,WVSULQFLSDOFRPSHWLWRUVLQFOXGH%RPER5DG\R5DGLR
0LQGDQDR 1HWZRUN *0$ 1%& WKH 9HUD *URXS DQG $%6&%1 0%& DQG LWV FRPSHWLWRUV DUH DOO
HQJDJHGLQWKHVDOHRIUDGLRDLUWLPHIRUDGYHUWLVLQJ

0%&ERDVWVRI WRSUDWHG VWDWLRQV LQ DOPRVW DOO DUHDV RI WKH FRXQWU\ EHFDXVHRI LWV JRRG SURJUDP
IRUPDW WDOHQWHG EURDGFDVWHUV DQG VWDWHRIWKHDUW HTXLSPHQW 0%& JHQHUDWHV VDOHV WKURXJK
DGYHUWLVLQJWKDWDFFRXQWVIRUPRUHWKDQRIWKHFRUSRUDWHUHYHQXH,WKDVDUHJXODUWHDPRIVDOHV
H[HFXWLYHVKDQGOLQJGLUHFWSODFHPHQWVIURPDGYHUWLVHUVDQGRUFRRUGLQDWHVZLWKDGYHUWLVLQJDJHQFLHV
ZLWKUHJDUGWRWKHLUDGYHUWLVHPHQWSODFHPHQWVIRUWKHLUUHVSHFWLYHFOLHQWV

,QYLHZRILWVOHDGHUVKLSLQVL]H0%&LVFDSDEOHRIRIIHULQJWRFOLHQWVDQHIIHFWLYHDGYHUWLVLQJSDFNDJH
DWDORZHUFRVW%LJQHWZRUNVVXFKDV0%&FDQEHH[SHFWHGWREULQJLQPRUHDGYHUWLVLQJUHYHQXHV
EHFDXVHLWFDQPDUNHWLWVVWDWLRQVPRUHHIIHFWLYHO\%\SDFNDJLQJWKHVWDWLRQV0%&FDQOXPSVWDWLRQV
ZLWKORZOLVWHQHUVKLSOHYHOLQVRPHDUHDVZLWKVWDWLRQVRIKLJKOLVWHQHUVKLSLQRWKHUDUHDV

7KH&RPSDQ\QRZKDVVHYHQ  SURJUDPPLQJIRUPDWVQDPHO\'=5+$NV\RQ5DG\R/RYH5DGLR
<HV)0(DV\5RFN5DG\R1DWLQDQG5+79ZKLFKUHSUHVHQWDERXWDQG
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5. Market Price and Dividends required by Part V of Annex C as amended
1. Market Information
MBC shares are traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange. The shares are not actively traded in
the market. The last known transaction of MBC shares was last 14 September 2016 at P19.06
per share involving 2,300 shares. There was no transaction of MBC shares after the said date.
Stock Prices
2016
High
1st Qtr
NT
2nd Qtr
20.00
3rd Qtr
NA
4th Qtr
NA
*NT – No Transaction

Low
High
NT
NT
19.02
48.45
NA
NT
NA
NT
*NA – Not Applicable

2015

2014
Low
NT
40.00
NT
NT

High
NT
NT
NT
3.35

Low
NT
NT
NT
3.35

2. Holders
a. There are 603 Stockholders as of 18 August 2016.
b. The top 20 Stockholders as of 18 August 2016 are as follows:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Elizalde Holdings Corporation
Elizalde Land, Inc.
Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc & Delos Angeles
Cebu Broadcasting Company
AQG Corporation
Sunshine Inns, Inc.
Philippine Broadcasting Corporation
PCD Nominee Corporation
Tansengco Uy & Co., Inc.
Estate of Allen Cham
Luis M. Alberto &/or Manuel C. Alberto
L.V.N. Pictures, Inc.
A. &/or J.O. Del Rosario
Ernestina U. De Garcia
Consuelo Fajardo
Luis G. Ablaza
Joaquina Tirona
Agapito D. Balagtas
Beatriz Hidalgo De Miranda
Fabian Carmona, Jr.

No. of Shares
(Common)
139,558,774
87,000,000
69,910,993
50,000,000
33,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
2,040,387
659,892
626,099
553,368
447,961
363,592
122,338
121,149
121,149
114,719
105,370
105,370
101,696

% Age
34.65%
21.60%
17.36%
12.41%
8.19%
2.48%
1.24%
0.51%
0.16%
0.16%
0.14%
0.11%
0.09%
0.03%
0.03%
0.03%
0.03%
0.03%
0.03%
0.03%

3. Dividends
The following are the dividend declarations for the last three years:
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Amount in Pesos
0.3000
0.0625
0.2500
0.1800

Cash Dividends (per share)
Declaration Date
Record Date
May 16, 2016
May 31, 2016
Dec. 07, 2015
Dec. 21, 2015
Dec. 05, 2014
Dec. 19, 2014
Dec. 16, 2013
Jan. 10, 2014

Payment Date
June 15, 2016
Jan. 15, 2016
Dec. 29, 2014
Jan. 31, 2014

There are no existing restrictions that limit the payment of dividends on common shares.
4. Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction
There have been no known recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities of the company.
Item 13. Discussion on Compliance with Leading Practices in Corporate Governance
The Company, thru its Compliance Officer, evaluates the level of compliance of the Board of the
Directors and top-level management with the Manual of Corporate Governance semi-annually.
The members of the Audit, Nominating and Compensation Committees have been appointed and
will be recommended for re-appointment once the new Board is constituted. The Company
continues to strive to integrate the mandate of good corporate governance in its daily life. No
deviation from the Company’s manual of Corporate Governance was noted during the year.
The company has taken steps to establish systems and processes to protect the interests of and
add value to its diverse stakeholder groups such as its shareholders, employees, customers, vendors
and community. Two (2) independent members of the Board of Directors were elected to help
clarify the direction and values of the organization, oversee performance of the company and
protect stakeholder interests. Audit, Nominating and Compensation Committees have also been
formed as part of the company’s plan to improve good corporate governance practices. The
company advocates continuous improvement in governance processes by monitoring the progress
of the following attributes:
Attributes
Legal and Regulatory

Challenge
Maintaining an understanding of the compliance
requirements in the dynamic regulatory
environment

Business Practices and Ethics

Establishing ethical business practices that keep up
with the expectations of stakeholders

Disclosure and Transparency

Ensuring that stakeholders receive the information
they need in a understandable way

Risk and Performance Management

Dealing with both Risk Management and
Performance Enhancement as two sides of the same
coin to increase shareholder value.

Communication

Finding ways to improve the interactions between
the stakeholders within various components of the
Corporate Governance Framework.
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UNDERTAKING
The Company undertakes that a copy of its Annual Report on Form 17-A shall be provided
without any charge to any stockholder who makes a written request for such copy or to any
person solicited. At the discretion of management, a charge may be made for exhibits limited
to reasonable expenses incurred by the registrant in furnishing such exhibits. Any written
request shall be addressed as follows:

MANILA BROADCASTING COMPANY
MBC Bldg., V. Sotto St.,, CCP Complex,
Pasay City 1307 Philippines
Attention: Atty. Rudolph Steve E. Jularbal

Audited Financial Statements and Interim Financial Statements
Enclosed is a copy of the Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements, Map
of the Relationships of the Companies within the Group, 2015 Audited Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules and June 30, 2016 17-Q filed as part of this Form 20-IS.
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MANILA BROADCASTING COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information
Manila Broadcasting Company (the Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on
September 30, 1947. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of radio broadcasting.
The registered office address of the Company is MBC Building, V. Sotto Street, CCP Complex,
Pasay City. On May 20, 1971, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
approved the amendment of the Companys Articles of Incorporation to extend its corporate term
for another period of 50 years from and after June 11, 1971.
In 2002, the Hating Kapatid system (the System) was devised to change the way the Company
was handling the operations of the radio stations as well as its marketing, engineering,
administrative, and financial functions (support functions). Under the System, the operations of
each radio station and support functions were outsourced to service companies managed and
operated by former station managers and officers of the Company (affiliated service companies).
As such, substantially all employees of the Company were separated. As approved by the BOD,
the Company shall provide financial support to certain radio stations through advances as well as
payment of certain operating expenses of the said radio stations until these radio stations can
financially sustain their operations.
As a result of the System, the Company entered into service agreements with affiliated service
companies. These affiliated service companies provide production and creative services,
promotions, accounting, personnel, collection, procurement, engineering, and other related
services. The Company pays the affiliated service companies a certain percentage of collection as
service fee.
The Company is 72%-owned by Elizalde Holdings Corporation (EHC), a Philippine entity, the
ultimate parent company.
The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors (BOD) on
April 5, 2016.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared using the historical cost convention,
except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, which have been measured at fair value, and
land under property and equipment, which is carried at revalued amount.
The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (Peso), which is the Companys
functional and presentation currency. Amounts are rounded to the nearest Peso unless otherwise
indicated.
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).
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Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
that the Company has adopted the following amended standards as at January 1, 2015. The
adoption of the following standards or interpretations did not have an impact on the financial
position and result of operations of the Company:


Amendments to PAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 cycle) are effective from July 1, 2014. These amendments
have no impact on the Companys financial statements. They include:



PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition



PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination



PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of then
Total of the Reportable Segments Assets to the Entitys Assets



PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method
- Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization



PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 Cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) are effective July 1, 2014. These amendments have
no impact on the Companys financial statements. They include:



PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements



PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception



PAS 40, Investment Property

The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been
issued but is not yet effective.
Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when
these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption
of these new and amended standards and interpretations to have significant impact on its financial
statements.
Pronouncements Issued but Not yet Effective
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective as at December 31, 2015 are listed below. These
pronouncements are those that the Company reasonably expects to have an impact on its
accounting policies or disclosures unless otherwise indicated. The Company intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when they become effective.
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Deferred


Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11
or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and
where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis
will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until
the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of
the Philippine real estate industry is completed. Adoption of the interpretation when it
becomes effective will not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Effective January 1, 2016


PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures - Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments)
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity
that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services to the investment
entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investor (that is not an
investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture), when applying the
equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate
or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments are not applicable to the
Company.



PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments)
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Companys financial statements.



PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests (Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 11 require a joint operator that is accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business (as defined by PFRS 3), to apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business
combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a
joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
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PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control,
including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.


PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments)
The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. They clarify the following:
x That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immaterial information; or aggregating material items
that have different natures or functions
x That specific line items in the statement of income and other comprehensive income and
the statement of financial position may be disaggregated
x That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial
statements
x That the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and
classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.
Early application is permitted and entities do not need to disclose that fact as the amendments
are considered to be clarifications that do not affect an entitys accounting policies or
accounting estimates. The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on
its financial statements.



PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial
position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of income and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures on
the nature of, and risks associated with, the entitys rate regulation and the effects of that rateregulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016. Since the Company is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard would
not apply.



PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply.
After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost
(before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
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plants, PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to
have any impact to the Company as the Company does not have any bearer plants.


PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments)
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company. They
include:


PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.



PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The
amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative
disclosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period
in which the entity first applies the amendments.



PFRS 7- Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent
annual report.
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PAS 19, Employee Benefits - regional market issue regarding discount rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.



PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - disclosure of information elsewhere in the interim
financial report
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective January 1, 2018


PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The new
standard (renamed as PFRS 9) reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and
replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective
application is required, but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge
accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited
exceptions. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is
permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015. The Company did not
early adopt PFRS 9.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

In addition, the IASB has issued the following new standards that have not yet been adopted
locally by the SEC and FRSC.


International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 by the IASB and establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue.
The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the
new standard on the required effective date once adopted locally.
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IFRS 16, Leases
On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued its new standard, IFRS 16, Leases, which replaces
International Accounting Standards (IAS) 17, the current leases standard, and the related
Interpretations.
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or
finance leases in accordance with IAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on
their balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest
on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for
which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under IAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Entities may early adopt IFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. When adopting IFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition
reliefs. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new
standard on the required effective date once adopted locally.

Significant Accounting Policies
Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as AFS financial assets, and non-financial
assets such as land classified as property and equipment at revalued amount, at fair value at the end
of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
x
x

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participants ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
x
x
x

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. For the purpose of fair value
disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the assets or liabilities and the level of the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value hierarchy is disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements.
Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when:
 It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
 It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and cash in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of up to
three months and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Directly attributable
transaction costs, if any, are included in the initial measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, except for any financial instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL). The Company recognizes a financial asset or financial liability in the statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
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way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits.
Financial instruments are classified as either financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, or other financial
liabilities, as appropriate.
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, reevaluates this designation at each financial
year-end.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Companys financial instruments include loans and
receivables, AFS financial assets and other financial liabilities.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost in the statement of
financial position. Amortization is determined using the effective interest rate method. Loans and
receivables are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the statement of
financial position date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
Included under this category are the Companys cash in banks and cash equivalents, receivables
and due from affiliates as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as such or are not
classified in any of the other categories. Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as AFS if they are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity
requirements or changes in market conditions. Included under this category are the Companys
quoted and unquoted equity investments as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. After initial
recognition, quoted AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized
as a separate component of equity and as other comprehensive income (OCI) until the investment
is derecognized or until the investment is determined to be impaired. Unquoted AFS financial
assets, on the other hand, are carried at cost, net of impairment, until the investment is
derecognized. These financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless the intention is to
dispose such assets within 12 months from reporting date.
Other financial liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are neither held for trading nor designated as at
FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or
borrowings.
The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at
amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest rate method of
amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable
transaction costs.
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Included under this category are the Companys accounts payable and accrued expenses,
dividends payable, talent fees and commissions payable as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
Day 1 Difference
When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 difference) in profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where data used is not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction,
the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 difference amount.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of financial position.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of similar financial assets)
is derecognized when:
x
x
x

the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement; or
the Company has transferred its right to receive cash from the financial asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the financial asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash from a financial asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset nor transferred
control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Companys
continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or has expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit
or loss.
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Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has
occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets carried at amortized cost
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Financial assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
shall be recognized in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.
Loans, together with the associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company.
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance for impairment losses account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at reversal date.
In relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the
Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Receivables together with the related allowance are written-off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery.
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AFS financial assets
For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair value after
impairment are recognized as OCI.
Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in, first-out
method) and net realizable value (NRV). Cost includes the invoice price and related charges such
as freight, insurance, and taxes, among others. NRV is the current replacement cost.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value.
The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes, and any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional cost of property and equipment. When
assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and amortization, and any
impairment in value are eliminated from the accounts. Any gain or loss resulting from the
disposal is included in profit or loss.
Land is stated at revalued amount based on the fair market value of the property determined by an
independent firm of appraisers as of reporting period. The increase in the valuation of land, net of
deferred income tax liability, is credited to Revaluation increment on land in the statement of
financial position and recognized as OCI. Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
increment realized in respect of the previous valuation will be released from the revaluation
increment in OCI directly to retained earnings. Decreases that offset previous increases in respect
of the same property are charged against the revaluation increment. All other decreases are
charged against current operations.
Depreciation commences when an asset is in its location and condition is capable of being
operated in the manner intended by management. It is computed using the straight-line method,
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Building
Broadcasting and transmission equipment
Furniture and equipment
Transportation equipment

Years
7-17
8-11
5
4

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or life of the building and
improvements ranging from seven to seventeen years, whichever is shorter.

*SGVFS018034*

- 13 -

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost, including
cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such
time that the relevant assets are completed and ready for operational use.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of
property and equipment.
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use.
Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently,
investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value, if any. The
carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time
that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing of an investment property.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale. These transfers are recorded using the
carrying amount of the investment property at the date of change in use.
Building and other property classified as investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten years and eight years, respectively.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of frequency and intellectual property rights. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.
The Companys intangible assets are assessed as finite and are amortized over the estimated useful
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that these may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized
in profit or loss.
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Amortization commences when the intangible asset is acquired and is capable of being owned and
operated in the manner intended by management. It is computed using the straight-line method,
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Frequency
Intellectual property rights

Years
13
3

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the fair value of the acquirees net identifiable assets. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other assets
The carrying values of property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other
nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing is required, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amounts, the assets or the cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts.
The recoverable amount of the assets is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value-inuse. The fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Any impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.
Goodwill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment for goodwill is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the
goodwill relates. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss when the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
Capital Stock
Capital stock is the portion of the paid in capital representing the total par value of the shares
issued.
Additional Paid-in Capital
Additional paid-in capital represents the amount paid in excess of the par value of the shares
issued. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss, net of any dividend
declaration and other capital adjustments.
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OCI
OCI comprises items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss in accordance
with PFRS. The Companys OCI includes net changes in fair values of AFS financial assets,
revaluation increment on land carried at revalued amount and remeasurement gains (losses) on
accrued retirement benefits.
Treasury Stock
Treasury stocks are shares of the Company which are reacquired and are measured at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Companys own equity instrument.
Revenue
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
or the services have been rendered to the customer, the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, regardless of when
the amount is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, excluding discounts and rebates. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or an agent. The
Company recognizes revenue on a gross basis with the amount remitted to the other party being
accounted for as part of costs and expenses.
The following specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Broadcasting fees are recognized as income when the program is broadcasted or the advertisement
is aired, net of agency commissions, incentives and discounts.
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is recognized on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues.
Processing income is recognized as the services are rendered.
Agency Commissions and Discounts
Agency commissions are recognized at a standard rate of 15%. These are presented under
Operating Expenses.
Cost of Services and Operating Expenses
Cost of services and operating expenses are recognized when incurred. They are measured at the
fair value of the consideration paid or payable.
Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:
x where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable; and
x receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.
The net amount of output VAT is presented under Accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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Retirement Benefits
Accrued retirement benefits, as presented in the statement of financial position, is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan
assets, adjusted for the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. Retirement benefits costs consist of service costs, net interest on the
net defined benefit liability or asset and remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on nonroutine settlements are recognized in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by an independent
qualified actuary.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Plan assets are assets that are held in trust and managed by a trustee bank. Plan assets are not
available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. The fair
value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available, the
fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal
date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the
related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
The Companys right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.
Income Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or
loss is recognized under OCI in equity.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting date.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set-off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or,
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.
When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d as mentioned above,
and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario b.
Company as lessor
Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
Company as lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Rent expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

*SGVFS018034*

- 18 -

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year and adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
common shares, if any.
In determining both the basic and the diluted earnings per share, the effect of stock dividends, if
any, is accounted for retroactively.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies (i.e., currencies other than the Peso) are initially recorded using
the functional currency exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the functional currency closing
exchange rate at the end of reporting period. All differences are taken to profit or loss.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected
in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial statements.
Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Companys position at the
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the
financial statements. The judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements
are based upon managements evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances that are believed to
be reasonable as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from such
estimates.
The judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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Judgment
In the process of applying the Companys accounting policies, management has made the
following judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
The Company has a lease agreement with a third party, covering its satellite communications
services and with a related party for its office space and transmitter site. The Company has
determined that the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying properties are retained by the
lessors since the lease does not transfer ownership of the assets to the Company, the lease term is
not for the major part of the economic life of the assets and the Company has no option to
purchase the assets at the end of the lease agreements. Accordingly, the leases were accounted for
as operating leases and were recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Rent expense
amounted to =
P15.9 million, =
P16.4 million and =
P12.9 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 15).
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor
The Company has arrangements with various lessees covering the building units it offers for lease,
the ownership over which was determined to have been retained by the Company. Accordingly,
these leases were accounted for as operating leases. Rent income amounted to =
P8.6 million,
=
P8.5 million and =
P9.0 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Classification of financial instruments
The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition, as a
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its
classification in the statement of financial position. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total
carrying value of the Companys financial assets amounted to P
=810.6 million and =
P623.7 million,
respectively, while its total financial liabilities amounted to =
P218.6 million and =
P173.4 million,
respectively.
Details of the Companys financial assets and liabilities follow:

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents*
Receivables
Due from affiliates
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses**
Dividends payable
Talent fees and commissions payable

2015

2014

P
=120,943,730
337,902,488
309,347,902
42,419,455
P
=810,613,575

=
P143,705,784
335,381,359
102,191,218
42,419,455
=623,697,816
P

P
=179,117,007
8,938,390
30,542,034
P
=218,597,431

=129,616,379
P
13,354,072
30,442,034
=173,412,485
P

*Amounts are exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P 573,000 and =
P 538,000 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
**Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P 80,621,694 and =
P 59,070,377 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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Classification of property
The Company determines whether a property is classified as property and equipment or
investment property as follows:


Property and equipment which are occupied for use by, or in the operations of, the Company
and not for sale in the ordinary course of business.



Investment property comprises building spaces and improvements which are not occupied for
use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business,
but are held primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation.

The Company considers each property separately in making its judgment.
Estimations
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
Estimation of allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company reviews its loans and receivables, at each financial reporting date to assess whether
an allowance for impairment should be recorded in profit or loss. In particular, judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a
number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes in the allowance.
The Company evaluates specific balances where management has information that certain
amounts may not be collectible. In these cases, the Company uses judgment, based on available
facts and circumstances, and review of the factors that affect collectibility of the accounts
including, but not limited to, the age and status of the receivables, collection experience and past
loss experience. The review is made by management on a continuing basis to identify accounts to
be provided with allowance. These specific reserves are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional
information received affects the amount estimated. In addition to specific allowance against
individually significant receivables, the Company also makes a collective impairment allowance
against exposures which, although not specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance,
have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This collective allowance is based on
historical default experience, current economic trends, changes in customer payment terms and
other factors that may affect the Companys ability to collect payments. The amount and timing
of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or
utilized different methodologies. An increase in allowance for doubtful accounts would increase
the recorded expenses and decrease current assets.
Management regularly reviews and updates its provisioning rates for collective impairment
assessment. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, management has evaluated that its current
provisioning rates are reflective of its historical loss experience.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to =
P69.1 million
and =
P63.5 million, respectively. Receivables, net of related allowance, amounted to
=
P337.9 million and =
P335.4 million of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 6).
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Estimation of net realizable value of materials and supplies
The Company writes down the cost of materials and supplies whenever the NRV becomes lower
than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence or other causes. The lower of cost
and NRV of materials and supplies is reviewed on a quarterly basis to reflect the accurate
valuation in the financial records. Materials and supplies identified to be obsolete and unusable
are provided with allowance. The amount of estimate is based on a number of factors which
include, among others, the age and status of inventories and the Companys experience.
Allowance for inventory obsolescence amounted to =
P0.9 million and =
P4.8 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Materials and supplies, net of related allowance for
inventory obsolescence, amounted to =
P5.7 million and =
P5.1 million as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.
Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets
The Company estimated the useful lives of its property and equipment, depreciable investment
properties, and intangible assets based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The Company annually reviews the estimated useful lives of property and
equipment, depreciable investment properties, and intangible assets based on factors that include
asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental changes and
anticipated use of the assets. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying value of depreciable property and equipment
amounted to =
P114.1 million and =
P94.1 million, respectively (see Note 8). The net carrying value
of depreciable investment properties amounted to P
=0.001 million and P
=6.0 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 9). Carrying value of net intangible assets
amounted to =
P67.9 million and =
P79.8 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see
Note 10). Total depreciation and amortization relating to property and equipment, investment
properties, and intangible assets charged to operations amounted to P
=33.7 million, =
P38.0 million
and =
P47.7 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Notes 8, 9, 10 and 15).
Revaluation of property and equipment
The Company carries land classified under property and equipment at revalued amounts, with
changes in fair value being recognized in OCI. The Company engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess the fair value as at the financial reporting date. The key assumptions used to
determine the fair value of the properties are provided in Note 8. As of December 31, 2015 and
2014, the carrying value of the land, carried at fair value, amounted to =
P191.5 million and
=
P189.2 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, revaluation increment on land
(net of deferred tax) amounted to =
P127.0 million and =
P125.4 million, respectively (see Note 8).
Assessment of impairment of noncurrent nonfinancial assets except goodwill
The Company assesses the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the
Company considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
a. significant adverse changes in the technological, market, or economic environment in which
the Company operates;
b. significant decrease in the market value of an asset;
c. significant increase in the discount rate used for the value-in-use calculations;
d. evidence of obsolescence and physical damage;
e. significant changes in the manner in which an asset is used or expected to be used;
f. plans to restructure or discontinue an operation; and,
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g. evidence is available from internal reporting that the economic performance of an asset is, or
will be, worse than expected.
Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and value-in-use.
The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arms length
transaction while value-in-use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable
amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount represents the value-in-use, determined as the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets. The estimated
cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historical experience and business plans and
are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Based on managements evaluation, no impairment loss needs to be recognized on the Companys
property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets (except goodwill) and other
noncurrent assets in 2015 and 2014. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total carrying values
of the Companys noncurrent nonfinancial assets, excluding goodwill, amounted to =
P423.9 million
and =
P418.3 million, respectively (see Notes 8, 9 and 10).
Assessment of impairment of goodwill
For goodwill, the Company determines whether it is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is
allocated. The impairment test for goodwill is based on value in use calculations that use a
discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years
and do not include restructuring activities that the Company has not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset based of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model
as well, as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate for extrapolation purposes. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying value of goodwill amounted to P
=38.0 million. The key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the goodwill, including sensitivity
analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 10.
Recognition of deferred income tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilized.
Based on managements evaluation, there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which
the deferred income tax assets can be applied. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, recognized
deferred income tax assets amounted to =
P29.7 million and =
P29.2 million, respectively
(see Note 18).
Assessment of impairment of AFS financial assets
The Company performs its impairment analysis of AFS financial assets with quoted market prices
by considering whether the investment incurs significant or prolonged decline in fair value. The
determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. The Company performs
its impairment analysis of AFS financial assets with no quoted bid prices by considering changes
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in the issuers industry and sector performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in
technology, and other factors that affect the recoverability of the Companys investments. No
impairment loss on unquoted AFS financial asset was recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013.
Management has determined that no impairment loss needs to be recognized on the Companys
quoted AFS financial assets in 2015, 2014 and 2013.
The carrying value of AFS financial assets amounted to P
=42.4 million as of December 31, 2015
and 2014 (see Note 7).
Estimation of retirement benefits cost and liability
The determination of the obligation and retirement benefits cost is dependent on assumptions used
by the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 17 and
include among others, discount rates which are determined by using risk-free interest rate of
government bonds consistent with the estimated term of the obligation and salary increase rates.
In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the Companys assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized
expense and recorded obligation in such future periods. While the Company believes that the
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the retirement benefits obligation.
Accrued retirement benefits amounted to =
P27.6 million and =
P27.3 million as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 17).
Provisions
The Company provides for present obligations (legal or constructive) where it is probable that
there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that will be required to settle
said obligations. An estimate of the provision is based on known information at the end of the
reporting date, net of any estimated amount that may be reimbursed to the Company. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pretax rate that reflects
the risks specific to the liability. The amount of provision is being reassessed at least on an annual
basis to consider new relevant information. There were no provisions recognized as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 (see Note 24).

4. Segment Information
The Company is organized into only one operating division, radio broadcasting, which is its
primary activity. The Company has six programming formats, namely DZRH and Aksyon
Radyo stations, Love Radio, YES FM, Hot-FM, Radyo Natin, and Easy Rock.
For management purposes, the Company considers the entire business as one segment.
Management monitors the operating results of the business for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
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Broadcasting fee (shown as Revenue in the statement of comprehensive income), net income,
total assets and total liabilities as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
are the same as reported elsewhere in the accompanying financial statements.
2015
P
=1,081,223,178
148,408,857
1,279,687,431
388,704,034

Broadcasting fee
Net income
Total assets
Total liabilities

2014
=945,512,702
P
132,688,908
1,085,864,809
319,994,610

2013
=912,752,174
P
99,202,686
1,042,066,215
325,670,570

The Company has no revenue from transactions with a single external customer accounting for
more than 10% or more of the broadcasting fee. All customers of the Company are located in the
Philippines.

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2015
P
=121,516,711
19
P
=121,516,730

Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents

2014
=55,095,071
P
89,148,713
=144,243,784
P

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
Interest income amounted to =
P0.3 million, =
P0.5 million and =
P0.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

6. Receivables

Trade
Advances to stations (see Note 21)
Others
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

2015
P
=358,079,194
31,175,183
17,781,660
407,036,037
69,133,549
P
=337,902,488

2014
=356,590,917
P
22,918,556
19,362,186
398,871,659
63,490,300
=335,381,359
P

Trade receivables and advances to stations are noninterest-bearing and have credit terms of
approximately 90 days.
Movement of allowance for doubtful accounts by class is as follows:

January 1, 2014
Provisions (see Note 15)
December 31, 2014
Provisions (see Note 15)
December 31, 2015

Trade
=
P53,252,177
4,651,744
57,903,921
4,003,411
P
=61,907,332

Advances to
stations
=
P379,906
54,899
434,805

P
=434,805

Others
P
=855,398
4,296,176
5,151,574
1,639,838
P
=6,791,412

Total
=
P54,487,481
9,002,819
63,490,300
5,643,249
P
=69,133,549
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The table below shows the amount of allowance for doubtful accounts from individual impairment
and from collective impairment:
2015

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

Trade
P
=31,840,013
30,067,319
P
=61,907,332

Advances to
stations
P
=434,805

P
=434,805

Trade
=
P34,028,896
23,875,025
=
P57,903,921

Advances to
stations
=
P434,805

=
P434,805

Others
P
=
6,791,412
P
=6,791,412

Total
P
=32,274,818
36,858,731
P
=69,133,549

Others
=
P
5,151,574
=
P5,151,574

Total
=
P34,463,701
29,026,599
=
P63,490,300

2014

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

7. Available-for-sale Financial Assets
The carrying value of AFS financial assets as of December 31 follows:
Unquoted
Less allowance for impairment losses
Quoted

2015
P
=42,754,730
455,275
42,299,455
120,000
P
=42,419,455

2014
=42,754,730
P
455,275
42,299,455
120,000
=42,419,455
P

The fair value of the quoted shares of stock is determined based on quoted market price
(see Note 22). As of December 31, 2015, the Company has no intention to dispose the unquoted
shares of stock primarily composed of investments in Star Parks Corporation and EHC. These
unquoted shares of stock are carried and presented at cost less impairment losses because the fair
value cannot be measured reliably due to a lack of an active market for an identical instrument.
The movement of reserve for fluctuation in AFS financial assets follows:

Balance at January 1
Fair value gain recognized in OCI
Balance at December 31

2015
P
=90,000

P
=90,000

2014
=90,000
P

=90,000
P

Dividend income from AFS financial assets amounted to nil, =
P3.4 million and nil in 2015, 2014
and 2013, respectively.
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8. Property and Equipment
a. Property and equipment carried at cost consists of:
2015
Broadcasting
and
Building and
Leasehold Transmission Furniture and Transportation
Improvements
Equipment
Equipment
Equipment
Cost
Beginning balances
Additions
Reclassification
Ending balances

P
= 151,406,045

12,234,162
163,640,207

P
= 424,226,796
895,675
26,384,859
451,507,330

P
= 94,778,726
315,315

95,094,041

P
= 40,196,659
2,067,429

42,264,088

Construction
in Progress
P
= 7,896,173
32,569,627
(38,619,021)
1,846,779

Total
P
= 718,504,399
35,848,046

754,352,445

Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Beginning balances
129,880,105
Depreciation and
amortization
(see Note 15)
2,836,668
Ending balances
132,716,773
Net Book Values
P
= 30,923,434

364,404,172

94,579,782

35,541,321



624,405,380

10,023,725
374,427,897
P
= 77,079,433

176,437
94,756,219
P
= 337,822

2,851,161
38,392,482
P
= 3,871,606



P
= 1,846,779

15,887,991
640,293,371
P
= 114,059,074

Building and
Leasehold
Improvements

Broadcasting
and
Transmission
Equipment

Furniture and
Equipment

=
P424,226,796



424,226,796

=
P94,778,726



94,778,726

352,654,566

94,233,761

33,033,820

11,749,606

364,404,172
=
P59,822,624

346,021

94,579,782
=
P198,944

2,807,501
(300,000)
35,541,321
=
P4,655,338

2014

Cost
Beginning balances
=
P141,937,124
Additions

Disposals

Reclassification
9,468,921
Ending balances
151,406,045
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Beginning balances
126,498,174
Depreciation and
amortization
(see Note 15)
3,381,931
Disposals

Ending balances
129,880,105
=
P21,525,940
Net Book Values

Transportation
Equipment
=
P40,496,659

(300,000)

40,196,659

Construction
in Progress

Total

=
P5,888,770 =
P707,328,075
11,476,324
11,476,324

(300,000)
(9,468,921)

7,896,173
718,504,399






=
P7,896,173

606,420,321

18,285,059
(300,000)
624,405,380
=
P94,099,019

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, fully depreciated property and equipment with cost
totaling =
P587.7 million and =
P581.0 million, respectively, are still used in operations.
The Company does not have idle assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
b. Land at revalued amount as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consists of:
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Revaluation increment on land:
Balance at beginning of year
Increase
Balance at end of year

2015

2014

P
=10,066,094
100,100
10,166,194

=10,066,094
P

10,066,094

179,113,706
2,247,600
181,361,306
P
=191,527,500

157,114,606
21,999,100
179,113,706
=189,179,800
P
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In 2015, the Company acquired a parcel of land with a cost of P
=0.1 million.
The revalued amount of =
P191.5 million in 2015 and =
P189.2 million in 2014 is based on the
valuation conducted by independent appraisal companies as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The appraisal companies used the market data or sales comparison approach
where the fair market values are determined by referring to the extent, character and utility,
and sales and holding prices of similar land, significantly adjusted for dissimilarities in the
nature, location or condition of the specific properties.
The fair values of these parcels of land are determined using Level 3 valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(see Note 22). Range of significant unobservable input in 2015 and 2014 follows:
2015
P
=1,200 - P
=14,000

Price per square meter

Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated price per square meter in isolation would
result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value.
The revaluation increment, net of deferred income tax liability, of =
P127.0 million and
=
P125.4 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is included in the equity
section of the statements of financial position (see Note 18).

9. Investment Properties

Cost
Balance at beginning and
end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation (see Note 15)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Cost
Balance at beginning and
end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation (see Note 15)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Land

2015
Building and
Other Property

Total

P
=43,162,500

P
=80,381,524

P
=123,544,024




=43,162,500
P

74,347,952
6,032,522
80,380,474
=1,050
P

74,347,952
6,032,522
80,380,474
=43,163,550
P

Land

2014
Building and
Other Property

Total

=
P43,162,500

=
P80,381,524

=
P123,544,024




=
P43,162,500

66,431,799
7,916,153
74,347,952
=
P6,033,572

66,431,799
7,916,153
74,347,952
=
P49,196,072
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Investment properties are leased to employees and third parties. The total fair value of the
investment properties, based on the recent appraisal reports, amounted =
P67.8 million for land and
=
P89.1 million for building and other property. The latest appraisal report for land and building
and other property was as at March 21, 2014. Management estimates that the fair value
determined as at appraisal report date approximates the fair value as at December 31, 2015. The
fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by an accredited independent
appraiser.
The fair values of these investment properties were determined using Level 3 valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(see Note 22).
The appraiser used the market data or sales comparison approach in determining the fair value of
the land. The valuation was made on the basis of the market value determined by referring to the
extent, character and utility, and sales and holding prices of similar properties, significantly
adjusted for dissimilarities in the nature, location or condition of the specific properties. The fair
value of building and other property, which represent reproduction cost less depreciation, was
arrived at by the appraiser using the cost approach. This method determines the fair value of the
building and other property by estimating the cost to create the same structure with the same
design and using similar construction materials.
The highest and best use of investment properties, as determined by the appraiser, is a mixed
commercial and residential utility, which is similar to their current use.
Rental income generated from these investment properties amounted to =
P8.6 million, =
P8.5 million
and =
P9.0 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Related direct operating expenses
amounted to =
P7.02 million, =
P8.1 million, and =
P8.6 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

10. Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Companys intangible assets and goodwill pertain to a radio station acquired in 2008 at a cost
of P
=229.6 million. The excess of acquisition cost over the adjusted fair values of the identifiable
assets amounting to =
P38.0 million was recognized as goodwill.
The net book values of the intangible assets as of December 31 are as follows:

Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization (see Note 15)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Frequency

2015
Intellectual
Property Rights

Total

P
=153,594,927

P
=5,810,867

P
=159,405,794

73,843,723
11,814,996
85,658,719
P
=67,936,208

5,810,867

5,810,867
P
=

79,654,590
11,814,996
91,469,586
P
=67,936,208
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Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization (see Note 15)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Frequency

2014
Intellectual
Property Rights

Total

=
P153,594,927

=
P5,810,867

=
P159,405,794

62,028,727
11,814,996
73,843,723
=
P79,751,204

5,810,867

5,810,867
=
P

67,839,594
11,814,996
79,654,590
=
P79,751,204

The remaining estimated useful life of frequency license as of December 31, 2015 is 5.75 years.
Impairment Testing of Goodwill
The Company performs its annual impairment test every December of each year. Goodwill is
allocated to only one CGU, which is the DWRK radio station. The recoverable amount of the
CGU determined based on value-in-use, is compared to its carrying amount. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of the CGU, which exceeds the carrying amount of the related goodwill
by =
P786.2 million, =
P667.6 million and =
P568.2 million as of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, has been determined based on the value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections from financial budgets covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rates applied
to the cash flow projections and the expected growth rates used in the extrapolation of the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are shown in the key assumptions disclosure below. The
expected growth rate is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the media industry. As
a result of this analysis, management has determined that there was no impairment loss in 2015,
2014 and 2013 since the value-in-use exceeds the carrying value of the identifiable assets of the
cash-generating unit.
Key Assumptions
The following are the key assumptions used in managements analysis:
Discount rate
Expected growth rate

2015
11.72%
5.53%

2014
11.06%
3.65%

2013
12.43%
7.62%

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
The discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risk specific to the CGU, taking
into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have
not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate is derived from the weighted
average cost of capital, which takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is
derived from the expected return on investment of the Companys investors. The cost of debt is
based on average lending rates. Segment specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta
factors, evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. For the discount rate, an
increase in the discount rate of 30.6% would result to an impairment in 2015.
The expected growth rate is based on the projected growth of the Company, based on historical
experience, economic conditions and the Companys future plans. Even with a growth rate of zero
percent, there would still be no impairment as of December 31, 2015.
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11. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Trade
Accrued expenses:
Separation costs (see Note 17)
Service fees (see Note 12)
Agency commissions
Program cost
Personnel
Communication, light and water
Others
Output VAT - net
Advances from sponsors
Withholding taxes payable
Advance rental
Non-trade
Others

2015
P
=92,655,364

2014
=52,578,453
P

27,080,931
27,482,982
18,953,271
4,769,576
2,917,533
1,815,525
3,441,825
38,803,907
34,529,911
4,384,208
2,008,144

895,524
P
=259,738,701

27,180,772
12,656,212
15,288,515
5,014,966
2,095,747
1,839,372
5,453,140
38,906,007
12,260,084
5,267,585
1,876,231
7,509,202
760,470
=188,686,756
P

Trade payables and accrued expenses consist of amounts due to suppliers and service providers
and are usually payable within 30 days.
Other payables consist of advances from sponsors, withholding taxes payable and dues to various
government agencies which are normally settled within the following year.

12. Related Party Transactions
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among
entities which are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management
personnel, directors or stockholders. Key management personnel, including directors and officers
of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated
with these individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal
form.
In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with the following related parties:
x EHC, parent;
x Cebu Broadcasting Company (CBC), an entity under common control;
x Philippine Broadcasting Corporation (PBC), an entity under common control;
x Pacific Broadcasting System, Inc. (PBSI), an entity under common control; and,
x Other related parties under common control
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The summary of transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are presented below:

Related Party/Nature
Entities under common
control:
EHC
Advances

Dividend declaration

Dividend income
CBC
Advances

Program costs

Dividend declaration

Rent income
PBC
Advances

Program costs

Dividend declaration

Rent income
PBSI
Advances

Program costs

Rent income
Star Parks Corporation
Rent expense

2015
Outstanding
Transactions
Receivable
during the
(Payable)
Year

2014
Outstanding
Transactions
Receivable
during the
(Payable)
Year

P
= 211,203,101

=
P136,860,543

(8,722,423)

P
= 216,128,443

(8,722,423)

(74,975,761)





3,350,964

10,931,133

62,930,912

25,059,342

(157,149,408)



(153,178,052)

(3,125,000)

(3,125,000)

(12,500,000)

=
P89,925,567

Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call
dates; with offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
(74,975,761) 2015 - payable on
January 15, 2016; 2014 payable on December 29,
2014; with offsetting
agreement
 

64,499,778



(12,500,000)

90,000



90,000



5,405,831

18,793,269

4,833,457

18,242,264

(19,264,999)

(312,500)



(312,500)

(17,543,044)

(1,250,000)

90,000



90,000

1,801,005

23,655,201

15,074,058

(55,942,276)

90,000

(4,780,020)







(56,653,567)

90,000

(3,958,410)

Terms and conditions

Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call
dates; with offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
Refer to discussion on
marketing agreements
below.
2015 - payable on
January 15, 2016; 2014 payable on December 29,
2014 with offsetting
agreement


Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call
dates; with offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
 Refer to discussion on
marketing agreements
below.
(1,250,000) 2015 - payable on
January 15, 2016; 2014 payable on December 29,
2014; with offsetting
agreement
 

18,249,370



Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call
dates; with offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
Refer to discussion on
marketing agreements
below.








(Forward)
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Related Party/Nature
Affiliated service companies
Advances

Service fees

Other related parties:
Officers
Advances

Key management personnel
Short-term employee
benefits

2015
Outstanding
Transactions
Receivable
during the
(Payable)
Year

2014
Outstanding
Transactions
Receivable
during the
(Payable)
Year

(P
= 6,668,665)

P
= 4,996,786

(P
=2,038,661)

(109,826,575)

(15,725,391)

(39,882,745)

6,563,556

1,282,279

2,938,057

(15,777,996)



(9,737,395)

Terms and conditions

=
P4,348,706

Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
and no impairment
(7,714,133) Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
and no impairment

5,539,453



Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
and no impairment


The Companys significant related party transactions are as follows:
a. The Company and several affiliated broadcasting companies, which are owned and managed
by certain stockholders and/or members of the BOD of the Company, entered into marketing
agreements, whereby the affiliated broadcasting companies designated the Company as their
sole marketing outfit for the sales, promotion, and marketing of the radio commercial airtime
of all radio broadcast stations of these affiliated broadcasting companies. The original
marketing agreement, which was effective for a period of five years from January 1, 1998, has
been renewed annually, thereafter.
Under the marketing agreements, the Company shall remit to the affiliated broadcasting
companies a certain percentage of the annual revenue from the sale of the commercial time of
the radio broadcast stations after agency commission. Total fees included under Program
costs presented as part of Costs of services in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted to =
P232.4 million in 2015, =
P227.4 million in 2014 and =
P248.0 million in 2013 (see
Note 15). The Company also bills the affiliated broadcasting companies for their share in the
expenses for operating the radio broadcast stations.
b. On December 29, 2015, CBC, PBC and PBSI (collectively referred to herein as the
Networks), the Company and EHC, entered into a Memorandum of Agreement confirming
the agreement among the parties to the net settlement of the respective receivables and
payables as of December 31, 2015. The Networks, the Company and EHC made a similar
agreement on April 1, 2015 for the net settlement of receivables and payables as of December
31, 2014 (see Note 21).
c. The Company grants and obtains short-term interest-free advances to and from its affiliates,
which are owned and managed by certain stockholders and/or members of the BOD of the
Company.
d. The short-term employee benefits of key management personnel amounted to =
P15.8 million,
=
P9.7 million and =
P8.8 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
e. The payable to affiliated service companies amounting to =
P15.7 million and =
P7.7 million in
2015 and 2014, respectively, are included in Accrued expenses as part of Service fees.
The receivables from affiliated service companies and other related parties amounting to
=
P11.6 million and =
P9.9 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, are included in Receivables
as part of Advances to stations.
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13. Capital Stock
The Company was listed with the PSE on October 8, 1949. In its initial public offering, the
Company offered the share at a price of =
P1.05. As at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the
Company had 604, 605 and 606 shareholders on record, respectively.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, capital stock consists of 1,000,000,000 authorized common
shares with par value of =
P1.00 per share, of which 402,803,777 shares have been issued. Total
number of equity shareholders as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is 604 and 605, respectively.
On October 19, 1976, the stockholders approved the increase in the authorized capital stock of the
Company from =
P1.5 million, divided into 1.5 million shares with par value of =
P1.00 each to
=
P5.0 million, divided into 5.0 million shares with par value of =
P1.00 each. On the same date, the
stockholders approved the declaration of 50% stock dividends payable to stockholders of record as
of October 30, 1976.
In 1978, the stockholders reduced the proposed increase to =
P4.0 million, divided into 4.0 million
shares with par value of =
P1.00 each, and approved the payment of the 50% stock dividend to
stockholders of record as of October 30, 1976. The increase in authorized capital stock was
approved by the Philippine SEC on April 28, 1978.
The BOD and stockholders approved on January 29, 1997 and February 26, 1997, respectively, the
increase in the Companys authorized capital stock from =
P4.0 million, divided into 4.0 million
shares with par value of =
P1.00 each to =
P1.0 billion, divided into 1.0 billion shares with the same
par value.

14. Retained Earnings
On December 7, 2015, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P25.2 million or =
P0.0625
per share to stockholders on record as of December 21, 2015 payable on January 15, 2016.
On December 5, 2014, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P100.7 million or =
P0.25
per share to stockholders on record as of December 19, 2014 payable on December 29, 2014.
On December 16, 2013, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to P
=72.5 million or =
P0.18
per share to stockholders on record as of January 10, 2014 payable on January 31, 2014.
The Companys retained earnings are not available for declaration as dividends to the extent of the
cost of treasury stock and recognized deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2015, the
Companys retained earnings available for dividend declaration amounted to =
P337.2 million.

15. Revenue, Cost of Services and Operating Expenses
Revenue
The Companys revenue is composed of broadcasting fees. In 2015, 2014 and 2013, revenue
arising from exchange of goods and services, included in broadcasting fees, amounted to
=
P11.3 million, P
=10.4 million and =
P9.5 million, respectively.
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Processing income
The Company recognized processing income amounting to =
P40.9 million, =
P44.1 million and nil in
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, for the stations share of common expenses, recognized by the
Company.
Cost of services

Program costs (see Notes 12 and 19)
Service fees (see Notes 1 and 12)
Personnel expenses (see Notes 12,
16 and 17)
Depreciation (see Note 8)
Replacement parts

2015
P
=356,867,792
220,949,262

2014
=294,854,232
P
181,637,301

2013
=307,071,087
P
187,807,350

60,133,679
10,023,725
9,264,928
P
=657,239,386

42,446,578
11,749,606
5,929,443
=536,617,160
P

33,735,656
15,281,275
5,421,889
=549,317,257
P

2015
P
=77,552,345
38,613,682
29,831,005

2014
=70,913,858
P
32,204,304
31,255,525

2013
=75,680,195
P
24,641,944
24,589,034

23,711,784
15,861,715
14,801,848
11,783,463
10,846,367
7,469,100
6,448,431
6,043,205

26,266,602
16,359,393
15,252,622
15,560,943
11,285,332
6,603,997
5,779,592
6,564,753

32,400,011
12,882,860
14,692,247
5,384,911
12,971,887
7,721,396
4,696,408
5,638,410

5,643,249
4,415,889
3,972,764
3,208,775
1,889,215
1,376,403

9,002,819
4,669,608
3,866,855
2,379,948
4,060,672
1,211,783


5,405,502
1,726,704
3,892,224
2,631,566
1,417,314

436,338


5,442,628
P
=269,348,206

802,606
9,667,703
3,349,546
6,851,812
=283,910,273
P

2,249,355


6,704,577
=245,326,545
P

Operating expenses:

Personnel (see Notes 12, 16 and 17)
Agency commissions and discounts
Communication, light and water
Depreciation and amortization
(see Notes 8, 9 and 10)
Rent (see Note 19)
Repairs
Taxes and licenses
Travel and transportation
Advertising and promotions
Outside services
Replacement parts
Provision for doubtful accounts
(see Note 6)
Professional fees
Dues and membership
Commissions
Subscription fee
Materials and supplies
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation
Bad debts
Provision for inventory obsolescence
Others

Materials and supplies recognized as cost of services and operating expenses during the year
amounted to =
P2.2 million, =
P2.3 million and =
P2.2 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
These expenses are recognized under Program costs and Materials and supplies accounts.
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16. Personnel Expenses
Salaries, wages and bonuses
Retirement benefits cost (see Note 17)
Other short-term employee benefits

2015
P
=115,774,799
8,570,209
13,341,016
P
=137,686,024

2014
=92,273,929
P
7,974,977
13,111,530
=113,360,436
P

2013
=87,011,562
P
8,851,311
13,552,978
=109,415,851
P

17. Accrued Retirement Benefits and Separation Costs
Separation Costs under the Hating Kapatid System
Substantially all employees of the Company were separated in 2002 upon implementation of the
System (see Note 1). Most of the separated personnel were subsequently employed by the
affiliated service companies. The separated employees expressly agreed in writing to receive their
separation pay from the Company only after their final/actual separation/resignation from the
affiliated service companies. Separation costs of =
P38.2 million were recognized in 2002 in
addition to the amount previously accrued.
In October 2011, the service agreement between the Company and DZRH was cancelled. This
resulted in the transfer of DZRH employees to the Company. In 2011, the Company assumed
accrued retirement benefits to these transferred employees totaling =
P38.2 million. This amount
includes =
P12.7 million representing the separation costs previously accrued under Accrued
expenses account prior to the start of the implementation of the System.
The remaining unpaid balance of the separation costs of P
=27.1 million and =
P27.2 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are included in the Accounts payable and accrued
expenses account in the statements of financial position (see Note 11).
Retirement Benefits
The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all of its
remaining employees. The benefits are based on years of service and compensation on the last
year of employment. The latest actuarial valuation report is as of December 31, 2015.
Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement
pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of a retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employees retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding for the plan.
The components of retirement benefits cost are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest cost

2015
P
=7,355,079
1,215,130
P
=8,570,209

2014
=6,518,880
P
1,456,097
=7,974,977
P

2013
=6,460,968
P
2,390,343
=8,851,311
P
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Remeasurements on accrued retirement benefits recognized in OCI consist of actuarial gains
(losses) on:

Present value of benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

2015
P
=1,444,710
(1,018,008)
P
=426,702

2014
P4,091,390
=
(1,152,784)
=2,938,606
P

2013
=9,110,535
P
5,021,523
=14,132,058
P

Deferred income tax effect of remeasurements amounted to =
P0.1 million, =
P0.9 million and
=
P4.2 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 18).
The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:
Present value of benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Accrued retirement benefits

2015
P
=95,115,859
67,480,805
P
=27,635,054

2014
=85,404,969
P
58,098,684
=27,306,285
P

2015
P
=27,306,285
8,570,209
(426,702)
(7,814,738)
P
=27,635,054

2014
=30,084,652
P
7,974,977
(2,938,606)
(7,814,738)
=27,306,285
P

Movements in the accrued retirement benefits follow:

At beginning of year
Retirement benefits cost
Remeasurement effects in OCI
Contributions
At end of year

The changes in present value of the retirement obligation are as follows:

At beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in assumptions
At end of year

2015
P
=85,404,969
7,355,079
3,800,521

2014
=79,146,775
P
6,518,880
3,830,704

1,837,493
(3,282,203)
P
=95,115,859

(2,496,498)
(1,594,892)
=85,404,969
P

The changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

At beginning of year
Contributions
Interest income included in net interest cost
Return on assets excluding amount included in net
interest cost
At end of year

2015
P
=58,098,684
7,814,738
2,585,391

2014
=49,062,123
P
7,814,738
2,374,607

(1,018,008)
P
=67,480,805

(1,152,784)
=58,098,684
P

The Companys retirement fund (the Fund) is administered by a trustee bank. The management
and the trustee bank review the performance of the Fund on a regular basis and assess whether the
Fund will achieve an investment return which, together with contributions will be sufficient to pay
retirement benefits when they fall due.
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The Fund consists of the following assets and investments:
x

Cash and cash equivalents, which include regular savings and time deposits earning interest at
their respective bank deposit rates

x

Investments in debt securities, consisting of various corporate bonds which earn interest
ranging from 4.37% to 6.27% and have remaining maturities of 1.17 to 6.33 years

x

Investments in government securities, which include retail treasury bonds and fixed treasury
notes that bear interest ranging from 2.9% to 9.0% and will mature in 1.75 to 21.92 years, and

x

Investment in unsecured debt security which pertain to an unsecured subordinated note from a
financing company which earn interest at 6.7% and will mature in 1.4 years.

The objective of the plans portfolio is capital preservation by earning higher than regular deposit
rates over a long period given a small degree of risk on principal and interest. Asset purchases and
sales are determined by the plans trustee bank, who have been given discretionary authority to
manage the distribution of the assets to achieve the plans investment objectives. In order to
minimize the risks of the fund, the committee monitors compliance with target asset allocations
and composition of the investment portfolio on a regular basis.
The Company expects to contribute =
P19.4 million in 2016. The Company does not have any asset
liability matching strategy.
The categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets as of
December 31 are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in government securities:
Fixed treasury notes
Retail treasury bonds
Investments in debt securities:
Banks
Holding firm
Utilities
Property
Telecommunications
Receivables
Investment in unsecured debt security

2015
30.52%

2014
17.37%

35.92%
10.88%

39.12%
15.21%

10.20%
5.30%
4.08%
1.05%
1.00%
0.50%
0.55%
100.00%

14.10%
5.48%
4.50%
1.46%
1.34%
0.71%
0.71%
100.00%

The assumptions used to determine retirement benefits of the Company as of January 1 are as
follows:

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

2015
4.45%
10.00%

2014
4.84%
10.00%

2013
5.31%
10.00%
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the reasonably possible change of
each significant actuarial assumption on the retirement obligation as of December 31, 2015
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase
(decrease)
Discount rate:
Sensitivity 1
Sensitivity 2
Salary increase rate:
Sensitivity 1
Sensitivity 2

Increase (decrease)
in retirement
benefit obligation

1.00%
(1.00%)

(=
P18,258,857)
1,230,988

(2.50%)
(5.00%)

(34,227,783)
(26,807,581)

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of
December 31, 2015:
Plan year
Within one year
More than one year to five years
More than five years to 10 years
More than 10 years to 15 years
More than 15 years to 20 years
More than 20 years

Expected Benefit Payment
=
P43,818,563
16,153,815
17,398,696
11,837,778
52,688,510
1,131,447,806

The defined benefit retirement plan is funded by other participating companies, which are related
parties of the Company. The plan contributions are based on the actuarial present value of
accumulated plan benefits and fair value of plan assets are determined using an independent
actuarial valuation. The net defined benefit cost and the contributions to the plan are specifically
identifiable, such that, the Companys PVBO pertains only to the benefit of the Companys
employees and the FVPA, pertains only to the contributions made by the Company. The
Company shall contribute to the Fund such amounts as shall be required, under actuarial
principles, to provide the benefits and the expenses incident to the operation and administration of
the Fund.

18. Income Taxes
a. The provision for income tax consists of:

Regular corporate income tax Current income tax
Final tax
Deferred tax Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

2015

2014

2013

P
=65,370,448
54,437
65,424,885

=
P62,034,834
102,374
62,137,208

=
P42,116,956
109,779
42,226,735

(620,469)
P
=64,804,416

(4,535,043)
=57,602,165
P

209,800
=42,436,535
P
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b. Deferred income tax charged directly to equity during the year follows:

Revaluation increment on land
Remeasurements on accrued
retirement benefits

2015
P
=674,280

2014
=6,599,730
P

2013
=2,970,840
P

128,011
P
=802,291

881,582
=7,481,312
P

4,239,617
=7,210,457
P

c. The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate to provision for income tax
as shown in profit or loss follows:

Statutory income tax
Additions to (reductions in)
income tax resulting from:
Nondeductible expenses
Dividend income exempt from
tax
Interest income subjected to
final tax at a lower rate
Provision for income tax

2015
P
=63,963,982

2014
=57,087,322
P

2013
=42,491,766
P

867,837

1,571,646





(1,005,289)



(27,403)
P
=64,804,416

(51,514)
=57,602,165
P

(55,231)
=42,436,535
P

d. The components of the Companys net deferred income tax liabilities consist of the tax effects
of the following:

Deferred income tax assets on Allowances for:
Doubtful accounts (see Note 6)
Inventory obsolescence
Accrued retirement benefits and unamortized
contribution to past service cost
Accrued rent
Deferred income tax liabilities on Revaluation increment on land (see Note 8)

2015

2014

P
=20,740,065
280,165

=19,047,090
P
1,449,470

6,932,296
1,740,282
29,692,808

7,157,855
1,545,935
29,200,350

54,408,392

53,734,112

P
=24,715,584

=24,533,762
P

19. Lease Commitments
a. The Company leases satellite communications capacity for the performance of its
broadcasting services called the Transponder Lease, which considers certain space segment
capacity and transponder power. The lease agreement is for a period of five years from
November 1, 2007 and was renewed for another five years commencing on November 1,
2012. Rent expense on this lease agreement amounted to =
P5.4 million in 2015, =
P5.1 million in
2014 and 2013, included under Program costs presented as part of Costs of services in the
statements of comprehensive income.
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Future minimum lease payments as of December 31 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

2015
P
=5,393,076
4,494,230
P
=9,887,306

2014
=5,124,912
P
9,395,672
=14,520,584
P

b. The Company renewed its lease agreement with a related party for its office space and
transmitter site for a period of 11 years commencing from January 1, 2013. The annual rent
expense for the first year amounted to =
P3.3 million, subject to annual escalation of 10%. Rent
expense on this lease agreement amounted to =
P5.6 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, included
under Rent presented as part of Operating expenses in the statements of comprehensive
income. Future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

2015
P
=4,957,564
25,308,858
26,427,722
P
=56,694,144

2014
=4,506,876
P
23,008,053
33,686,091

=61,201,020
P

c. The Company has lease agreements with various individuals for the rent of transmitter sites.
Rent expense on these lease agreements amounted to =
P4.9 million, =
P5.7 million, =
P2.2 million
in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively included under Rent presented as part of Operating
expenses in the statements of comprehensive income. Future minimum lease payments as of
December 31 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

2015
P
=4,852,061
13,264,599
6,651,453
P
=24,768,113

2014
=4,193,646
P
11,449,974
7,551,298

=23,194,918
P

20. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Companys principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to fund the Companys operations. The other financial
assets and financial liabilities arising directly from its operations are receivables, due from
affiliates, AFS financial assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, talent fees and dividends
payable and commissions payable.
The main risks arising from the Companys financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks.
Credit Risk
Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of control and
monitoring procedures. It is the Companys policy that all clients who wish to trade on credit
terms are subjected to credit verification procedures. Receivables and due from affiliates balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Companys exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to its receivables as
low, as its customers are located in several industries and operate in largely independent markets.
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With respect to credit risk arising from the Companys cash in banks and cash equivalents, the
Companys exposure arises from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company deals only with financial institutions
duly evaluated and approved by the BOD. The Company avoids concentrations of credit risk on
its liquid assets as these are spread over several financial institutions.
The maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is equal
to the carrying values of the financial assets. The Company does not hold collaterals as security.
Credit quality of financial assets
The tables below summarize the credit quality of the Companys financial assets as of
December 31:
2015
Neither past due nor impaired
Standard
High grade
grade
Loans and receivables:
Cash in banks*
Cash equivalents
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates
AFS financial assets:
Quoted
Unquoted

Allowance for doubtful
accounts for loans and
receivables:
Individual impairment
Collective impairment

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired

Total

P
= 120,943,711
19

P
=


P
=


P
=


P
= 120,943,711
19

17,479,927
6,563,556

309,347,902

109,428,386
6,314,582
627,418


152,636,060
15,243,352
6,190,514


78,534,821
3,053,693
10,963,728


358,079,194
31,175,183
17,781,660
309,347,902

120,000

P
= 454,455,115


42,299,455
P
= 158,669,841



P
= 174,069,926


455,275
P
= 93,007,517

120,000
42,754,730
P
= 880,202,399

P
=

P
=

P
=
1,100,557
P
= 1,100,557

P
=
10,152,653
P
= 10,152,653

P
= 32,274,818
25,605,521
P
= 57,880,339

P
= 32,274,818
36,858,731
P
= 69,133,549

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired

Total

*Amounts are exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P 573,000 as of December 31, 2015.

2014
Neither past due nor impaired
Standard
High grade
grade
Loans and receivables:
Cash in banks*
Cash equivalents
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates
AFS financial assets:
Quoted
Unquoted

Allowance for doubtful
accounts for loans and
receivables:
Individual impairment
Collective impairment

=
P54,557,071
89,148,713

=
P


=
P


=
P


=
P54,557,071
89,148,713

27,645,310
5,539,453

102,191,218

125,278,029
5,890,426
5,796,999


132,223,636
8,589,974
13,565,187


71,443,942
2,898,703



356,590,917
22,918,556
19,362,186
102,191,218

120,000

=
P279,201,765


42,299,455
=
P179,264,909



=
P154,378,797


455,275
=
P74,797,920

120,000
42,754,730
=
P687,643,391

=
P

=
P

=
P
1,294,584
=
P1,294,584

=
P
10,528,007
=
P10,528,007

=
P34,463,701
17,204,008
=
P51,667,709

=
P34,463,701
29,026,599
=
P63,490,300

*Amounts are exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P 538,000 as of December 31, 2014.
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Financial assets classified as high grade are those cash in banks and cash equivalents transacted
with reputable local banks and receivables and due from affiliates with no history of default on the
agreed contract terms. Financial instruments classified as standard grade are those financial
assets with little history of default on the agreed terms of the contract. A financial asset is
considered past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
Past due but not impaired financial assets are items with history of frequent default.
Nevertheless, the amounts due are still collectible. Lastly, Impaired items are those that are
long outstanding and have been specifically identified as impaired.
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The tables below summarize the aging analysis of past due but not impaired financial assets as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014:
31-60
Days

61-90
Days

P
= 35,667,052
2,629,542
P
= 38,296,594

P
= 21,479,590
1,620,401
9,627
P
= 23,109,618

<30 Days

31-60
Days

=
P47,802,897
1,221,601
19,425
=
P49,043,923

=
P26,349,390
1,107,755
100,000
=
P27,557,145

<30 Days
Loans and receivables:
Receivables
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

Loans and receivables:
Receivables
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

P
= 60,587,527
6,158,138
2,578
P
= 66,748,243



2015
91-120
Days

P
= 7,029,057

Over 120
Days

Total

1,995
P
= 7,031,052

P
=27,872,834
7,464,813
3,546,772
P
= 38,884,419

15,243,352
6,190,514
P
= 174,069,926

61-90
Days

2014
91-120
Days

Over 120
Days

Total

=
P16,926,348
703,365
1,165,784
=
P18,795,497

=
P12,985,074
1,214,709
1,361,377
=
P15,561,160

=
P28,159,927
4,342,544
10,918,601
=
P43,421,072

=
P132,223,636
8,589,974
13,565,187
=
P154,378,797



P
= 152,636,060

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when obligations are not met when they fall due. It is the Companys
objective to finance capital expenditures, services, and maturing obligations as scheduled. To
cover the Companys financing requirements and at the same time, manage its liquidity risk, the
Company uses internally generated funds and proceeds from debt. Projected and actual cash flow
information are regularly evaluated and funding sources are continuously assessed.
The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Companys financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On demand
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Dividends payable
Talent fees and commissions
payable

2015
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

Total

P
=57,317,443
8,938,390

P
=68,064,463


P
=53,735,101


P
=179,117,007
8,938,390

18,172,510
P
=84,428,343

7,788,219
P
=75,852,682

4,581,305
P
=58,316,406

30,542,034
P
=218,597,431

*Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P 80,621,694 as of December 31, 2015.
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On demand
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Dividends payable
Talent fees and commissions
payable

2014
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

Total

=
P41,477,241
13,354,072

=
P49,254,224


=
P38,884,914


=
P129,616,379
13,354,072

18,113,010
=
P72,944,323

7,762,718
=
P57,016,942

4,566,306
=
P43,451,220

30,442,034
=
P173,412,485

*Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P 59,070,377 as of December 31, 2014.

The following tables show the profile of financial assets used by the Company to manage its
liquidity risk:

Cash in banks
Cash equivalents
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates

Cash in banks
Cash equivalents
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates

On
Demand
P
=120,943,711
19
120,943,730
126,908,313
12,878,138
627,418
309,347,902
P
=570,705,501

On
Demand
=
P54,557,071

54,557,071
152,923,339
11,429,879
5,796,999
102,191,218
272,341,435
=
P326,898,506

2015
Less than
3 Months
P
=


117,734,169
7,778,539
2,641,747

P
=128,154,455

2014
Less than
3 Months
=
P
89,148,713
89,148,713
91,078,635
3,032,721
1,285,209

95,396,565
=
P184,545,278

3 to 12
Months
P
=



Total
P
=120,943,711
19
120,943,730

34,901,891
7,464,813
3,548,767

P
=45,915,471

279,544,373
28,121,490
6,817,932
309,347,902
P
=744,775,427

3 to 12
Months
=
P



Total
=
P54,557,071
89,148,713
143,705,784

41,145,001
5,557,253
12,279,978

58,982,232
=
P58,982,232

285,146,975
20,019,853
19,362,186
102,191,218
426,720,232
=
P570,426,016

Equity Price Risk
The Companys exposure to the risk of changes in equity price relates primarily to its quoted AFS
financial asset. Management believes that the Companys exposure to equity price risk is minimal
since the balance of quoted AFS financial asset is not material (see Note 7).
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Companys capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014.
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The Company monitors its use of capital using debt to equity ratio (total liabilities/total equity)
which is 43.63% and 41.78% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The following table summarizes the Companys capital structure as of December 31:
2015
P
=402,803,777
79,354
347,651,290
(120,787)
P
=750,413,634

Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock

2014
=402,803,777
P
79,354
224,410,103
(120,787)
=627,172,447
P

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

21. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying values are equal to their estimated fair values.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:
AFS financial assets
The fair value of the quoted shares of stock as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is based on quoted
market price (Level 1). Unquoted shares of stock amounting to =
P42.3 million as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 are carried and presented at cost since the fair values of such investments cannot be
reliably determined.
Other financial assets and financial liabilities
Due to the short-term nature of other financial assets and financial liabilities, the fair value of cash
in banks and cash equivalents, receivables, due from affiliates, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, dividends payable, and talent fees and commissions payable approximate the carrying
value as of the reporting date.
Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The Company offsets its receivable and payable to its affiliates as the Company intends to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (see Note 12). The
gross amounts of the due from and due to its affiliates and the amounts disclosed in the statement
of financial position as of December 31 are as follows:

Due from related
Parties(c)
Due to related
Parties(d)

Gross amounts

2015
Amounts
offset(a)

Reported amounts (b)

Net
exposure

P
= 321,507,825

P
= 12,159,923

P
= 309,347,902

P
= 309,347,902

12,159,923

12,159,923





(a) Amounts offset under PAS 32
(b) Reported amounts in the statement of financial position
(c) Total advances in Note 12
(d) Dividends declared in Note 12
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Gross amounts
Due from related
Parties(c)
Due to related
Parties(d)

2014
Amounts
offset(a)

Reported amounts(b)

Net
exposure

=
P190,916,979

=
P88,725,761

=
P102,191,218

=
P102,191,218

88,725,761

88,725,761





(a) Amounts offset under PAS 32
(b) Reported amounts in the statement of financial position
(c) Total advances in Note 12
(d) Dividends declared in Note 12

22. Fair Value Measurement
The following table provides the fair value hierarchy of the Companys assets measured at fair
value and for which fair values are disclosed as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Total
Assets measured at fair value:
AFS financial assets Quoted equity securities (see
Note 7)
Land at revalued amount (see Note 8)
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment properties (see Note 9):
Land
Building and other property

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

P
=120,000
191,527,500

P
=120,000


P
=


P
=
191,527,500

67,792,600
89,089,500







67,792,600
89,089,500

Total
Assets measured at fair value:
AFS financial assets Quoted equity securities (see
Note 7)
Land at revalued amount (see Note 8)
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment properties (see Note 9):
Land
Building and other property

2015
Fair value measurement using
Significant
Quoted prices in
observable
active markets
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

2014
Fair value measurement using
Significant
Quoted prices in
observable
active markets
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

=
P120,000
189,179,800

=
P120,000


=
P


=
P
189,179,800

67,792,600
89,089,500







67,792,600
89,089,500

There were no transfers between the different hierarchy levels in 2015 and 2014.
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23. Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of issued and outstanding common
shares during each year. Diluted EPS is computed as if the potential common share or instrument
that may entitle the holder to common share were exercised as of the beginning of the year. When
there are no potential common shares or other instruments that may entitle the holder to common
shares, diluted EPS, is the same as the basic EPS.
There are no dilutive financial instruments in 2015, 2014 and 2013, hence, diluted EPS is the same
as the basic EPS.
The Companys EPS were computed as follows:

(a) Net income
(b) Weighted average number of
shares outstanding
Basic/ diluted EPS (a/b)

2015

2014

2013

P
=148,408,857

=
P132,688,908

=
P99,202,686

402,682,990

402,682,990

402,682,990

P
=0.37

=
P0.33

=
P0.25

24. Other Matter
The Company is and may become a defendant/respondent in various cases and assessments which
are pending in the courts or under protest. Management and its legal counsels believe that the
liability, if any, that may result from the outcome of these cases and investigation will not
materially affect its financial position and results of operations.

25. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010
In compliance with Bureau of Internal Revenue Regulations 15-2010 issued on November 25,
2010, mandating all taxpayers to disclose information on taxes and license fees paid and accrued
during the taxable year, summarized below are the taxes paid and accrued by the Company in
2015.
a. Output VAT declared by the Company amounted to =
P137,224,330 based on receipts of
=
P1,143,536,080. Outstanding net output tax payable amounted to =
P6,241,449 as of
December 31, 2015.
The Companys revenue on which output VAT is declared, is based on collections, hence,

may not be the same as the amounts accrued in the statement of comprehensive income.
The total output VAT includes deferred output VAT, hence, may not be the same as the
amount of net output tax payable declared in the returns.
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b. Movements in input VAT are as follows:
Balance, January 1
Current year payments for capital goods
subject to amortization
Total available input VAT during the period
Claims for tax credit and other adjustments
Balance, December 31

=4,780,651
P
85,512,199
90,292,850
(90,292,850)
=
P

c. Taxes and licenses paid by the Company are as follows:
Business permits
Other taxes
Permits and fees
Real property taxes
Others

=3,510,784
P
3,588,221
2,298,931
1,385,974
999,553
=11,783,463
P

d. Withholding taxes paid and accrued by the Company are as follows:
Expanded withholding tax
Withholding tax on compensation
and benefits
Final withholding taxes
e.

Paid
=21,615,512
P

Accrued
=2,008,781
P

Total
=23,624,293
P

9,135,106
3,170,778

1,771,433
603,994

10,906,539
3,774,772

The Company has no ongoing tax assessments or tax cases as of December 31, 2015.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Manila Broadcasting Company as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in
Note 25 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of Manila Broadcasting Company. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Christine G. Vallejo
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 99857
SEC Accreditation No. 1402-A (Group A),
March 13, 2014, valid until March 12, 2017
Tax Identification No. 206-384-906
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001988-105-2014,
March 10, 2014, valid until March 9, 2017
PTR No. 5321704, January 4, 2016, Makati City
April 5, 2016
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MANILA BROADCASTING COMPANY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning
Adjustments:
Deferred income tax assets, beginning
Cost of treasury shares

Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted to
available for dividend declaration, beginning
Add: Net income actually earned/realized during the year
Net income during the year closed to retained earnings
Decrease in deferred income tax
Less dividend declaration during the year
Total retained earnings available for dividend declaration, end

=224,410,103
P
(10,302,981)
(120,787)
(10,423,768)

213,986,335
148,408,857
(65,757)
148,343,100
(25,167,670)
=337,161,765
P
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MANILA BROADCASTING COMPANY
Schedule of Effective Standards and Interpretations as at December 31, 2015

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable







Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate







Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for Firsttime Adopters







Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters







Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters







Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans







Amendments to PFRS 1: Borrowing Costs







Amendment to PFRS 1: Meaning of Effective PFRSs







Share-based Payment







Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations







Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions







Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics



PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary



Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1

PFRS 2

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards



Amendment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting Condition
PFRS 3

PFRS 4

PFRS 5

Business Combinations







Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Combination







Amendment to PFRS 3:Scope Exceptions for Joint
Arrangements







Insurance Contracts







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts







Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations







Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposals
PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Not early adopted
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Financial Instruments: Disclosures







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition







Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments







Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets







PFRS 7

PFRS 8

PFRS 9

PFRS 10

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures  Servicing Contracts

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 7: Applicability of the Amendments
to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

Not early adopted

Operating Segments







Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the Reportable
Segments Assets to the Entitys Assets







Financial Instruments

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9: Hedge accounting and
amendments to PFRS 9 and PAS 39 (2013 version)

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9 (2014 version)

Not early adopted

Consolidated Financial Statements







Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities







Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Applying the
Consolidation Exception



Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
PFRS 11

PFRS 12

PFRS 13

Not early adopted

Joint Arrangements







Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations







Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities







Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities







Fair Value Measurement







Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Payables













Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
PFRS 14

Adopted

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Not early adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards
Presentation of Financial Statements







Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures







Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation







Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income







Amendments to PAS 1: Clarification of the Requirements
for Comparative Presentation







PAS 2

Inventories







PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows







PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors







PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period







PAS 11

Construction Contracts







PAS 12

Income Taxes

























PAS 1
(Revised)

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment
Amendments to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing
Equipment
Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation Method Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation /
Amortization



Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants

Not early adopted

PAS 17

Leases







PAS 18

Revenue







PAS 19

Employee Benefits







Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and Disclosures







Employee Benefits







Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and Disclosures







Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions







PAS 19
(Revised)

Amendments to PAS 19: Regional Market Issue Regarding
Discount Rate
PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

Not early adopted
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
PAS 21

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates







Amendments to PAS 21: Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation







PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs







PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclosures







Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel







PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans







PAS 27

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements







PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements







Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities







Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements







PAS 28

Investments in Associates







PAS 28
(Amended)

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures







Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture







PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies







PAS 31

Interests in Joint Ventures







PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation







Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation







Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

















Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
PAS 33

Earnings per Share







PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting







Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilities







Amendments to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report







Impairment of Assets







Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets







PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets







PAS 38

Intangible Assets













PAS 36

Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization**
PAS 39

PAS 41

Not
Applicable

Not early adopted

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement







Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities







Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions













Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition







Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives







Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items







Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting











Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

PAS 40

Not
Adopted

Investment Property
Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property as
Investment Property or Owner-Occupied Property







Agriculture







Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants
Philippine Interpretations

Not early adopted






IFRIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities







IFRIC 2

Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments







IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease







IFRIC 5

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds







IFRIC 6

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment







IFRIC 7

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29,
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies







IFRIC 8

Scope of PFRS 2







IFRIC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives







Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives







Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment







IFRIC 10
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

IFRIC 11

PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions







IFRIC 12

Service Concession Arrangements







IFRIC 13

Customer Loyalty Programmes







IFRIC 14

The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction







Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14,
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement







IFRIC 16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation







IFRIC 17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners







IFRIC 18

Transfers of Assets from Customers







IFRIC 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments







IFRIC 20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine







IFRIC 21

Levies







SIC-7

Introduction of the Euro

SIC-10

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating
Activities







SIC-12

Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities







Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12







SIC-13

Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions
by Venturers







SIC-15

Operating Leases - Incentives







SIC-25

Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
Shareholders







SIC-27

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease







SIC-29

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.







SIC-31

Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services







SIC-32

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs









Note: Standards and interpretations tagged as Not Applicable are those standards and interpretations
which were adopted but the entity has no significant covered transaction as at and for the year
ended December 31, 2015.
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VKRUWHUSHULRGWKHUHJLVWUDQWZDVUHTXLUHGWRILOHVXFKUHSRUWV 
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3OHDVHVHHDWWDFKHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVIRU-XQH



,WHP0DQDJHPHQW V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLVRI)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV

3OHDVHVHHDWWDFKHGPDQDJHPHQW'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLVRI)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG5HVXOWV
RI2SHUDWLRQV
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&XUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
$FFRXQWVSD\DEOH DFFUXHGH[SHQVHV
'LYLGHQGVSD\DEOH
,QFRPHWD[SD\DEOH
7RWDO&XUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
1RQFXUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
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0DQLOD %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ WKH &RPSDQ\  ZDV LQFRUSRUDWHG LQ WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV RQ
6HSWHPEHU7KH&RPSDQ\LVSULPDULO\HQJDJHGLQWKHEXVLQHVVRIUDGLREURDGFDVWLQJ
7KHUHJLVWHUHGRIILFHDGGUHVVRIWKH&RPSDQ\LV0%&%XLOGLQJ96RWWR6WUHHW&&3&RPSOH[
3DVD\ &LW\ 2Q 0D\   WKH 3KLOLSSLQH 6HFXULWLHV DQG ([FKDQJH &RPPLVVLRQ 6(& 
DSSURYHGWKHDPHQGPHQWRIWKH&RPSDQ\·V$UWLFOHVRI,QFRUSRUDWLRQWRH[WHQGLWVFRUSRUDWH
WHUPIRUDQRWKHUSHULRGRI\HDUVIURPDQGDIWHU-XQH

,QWKH´+DWLQJ.DSDWLGµV\VWHP WKH6\VWHP ZDVGHYLVHGWRFKDQJHWKHZD\WKH&RPSDQ\
ZDV KDQGOLQJ WKH RSHUDWLRQV RI WKH UDGLR VWDWLRQV DV ZHOO DV LWV PDUNHWLQJ HQJLQHHULQJ
DGPLQLVWUDWLYHDQGILQDQFLDOIXQFWLRQV VXSSRUWIXQFWLRQV 8QGHUWKH6\VWHPWKHRSHUDWLRQVRI
HDFKUDGLRVWDWLRQDQGVXSSRUWIXQFWLRQVZHUHRXWVRXUFHGWRVHUYLFHFRPSDQLHVPDQDJHGDQG
RSHUDWHG E\ IRUPHU VWDWLRQ PDQDJHUV DQG RIILFHUV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DIILOLDWHG VHUYLFH
FRPSDQLHV $VVXFKVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOHPSOR\HHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\ZHUHVHSDUDWHG$VDSSURYHG
E\ WKH %2' WKH &RPSDQ\ VKDOO SURYLGH ILQDQFLDO VXSSRUW WR FHUWDLQ UDGLR VWDWLRQV WKURXJK
DGYDQFHVDVZHOODVSD\PHQWRIFHUWDLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVRIWKHVDLGUDGLRVWDWLRQVXQWLOWKHVH
UDGLRVWDWLRQVFDQILQDQFLDOO\VXVWDLQWKHLURSHUDWLRQV

$VDUHVXOWRIWKH6\VWHPWKH&RPSDQ\HQWHUHGLQWRVHUYLFHDJUHHPHQWVZLWKDIILOLDWHGVHUYLFH
FRPSDQLHV 7KHVH DIILOLDWHG VHUYLFH FRPSDQLHV SURYLGH SURGXFWLRQ DQG FUHDWLYH VHUYLFHV
SURPRWLRQV DFFRXQWLQJ SHUVRQQHO FROOHFWLRQ SURFXUHPHQW HQJLQHHULQJ DQG RWKHU UHODWHG
VHUYLFHV7KH&RPSDQ\SD\VWKHDIILOLDWHGVHUYLFHFRPSDQLHVDFHUWDLQSHUFHQWDJHRIFROOHFWLRQ
DVVHUYLFHIHH




   ! "# " !""

""
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG XVLQJ WKH KLVWRULFDO FRVW
FRQYHQWLRQH[FHSWIRUDYDLODEOHIRUVDOH $)6 ILQDQFLDODVVHWVZKLFKKDYHEHHQPHDVXUHGDW
IDLUYDOXHDQGODQGXQGHUSURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWZKLFKLVFDUULHGDWUHYDOXHGDPRXQW

7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSURYLGHFRPSDUDWLYHLQIRUPDWLRQLQUHVSHFWRIWKHSUHYLRXVSHULRG

7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH SUHVHQWHG LQ 3KLOLSSLQH SHVR 3HVR  ZKLFK LV WKH &RPSDQ\·V
IXQFWLRQDO DQG SUHVHQWDWLRQ FXUUHQF\ $PRXQWV DUH URXQGHG WR WKH QHDUHVW 3HVR XQOHVV
RWKHUZLVHLQGLFDWHG





 ! 
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK3KLOLSSLQH)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV 3)56 


$" ! "# " !""
7KHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGDUHFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKRVHRIWKHSUHYLRXVILQDQFLDO\HDUH[FHSW
IRU WKH DGRSWLRQ RI WKH IROORZLQJ QHZ DQG DPHQGHG VWDQGDUGV HIIHFWLYH IRU WKH &RPSDQ\
EHJLQQLQJ-DQXDU\8QOHVVRWKHUZLVHLQGLFDWHGWKHDGRSWLRQRIWKHVHVWDQGDUGVGLGQRW
KDYHDQLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

x $PHQGPHQWVWR3$6       

      ! " !## $
7KH DQQXDO ,PSURYHPHQWV WR 3)56  F\FOH  DUH HIIHFWLYH IURP -XO\   7KHVH
DPHQGPHQWVKDYHQRLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH\LQFOXGH

x
x

3)56% "   " & ' 

3)56       " ## '   '         
 


x

x

3)56( '' "''' ( ''  ##    %
)  %  ' *    %  *   

3$6  +   , + 3$6 '   -  . %
-   
 ## #   / 


3$6    #   -0.  '    

      !!" !1# $
7KH $QQXDO ,PSURYHPHQWV WR 3)56V  F\FOH  DUH HIIHFWLYH -XO\   7KHVH
DPHQGPHQWVKDYHQRLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH\LQFOXGH

x 3)56    -#2#  3  ' 

x 3)56 & .  -   2# 

x 3$6    

7KH&RPSDQ\KDVQRWHDUO\DGRSWHGDQ\RWKHUVWDQGDUGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQRUDPHQGPHQWWKDWKDV
EHHQLVVXHGEXWLVQRW\HWHIIHFWLYH


)XWXUH&KDQJHVLQ$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV
7KHFRPSDQ\ZLOODGRSWWKHIROORZLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQVHQXPHUDWHGEHORZZKHQ
WKHVH EHFRPH HIIHFWLYH ([FHSW DV RWKHUZLVH LQGLFDWHG WKH &RPSDQ\ GRHV QRW H[SHFW WKH
DGRSWLRQRIWKHVHQHZDQGDPHQGHGVWDQGDUGVDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQVWRKDYHVLJQLILFDQWLPSDFW
RQLWVILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV



#   4  # 
3URQRXQFHPHQWVLVVXHGEXWQRW\HWHIIHFWLYHDVDW'HFHPEHUDUHOLVWHGEHORZ7KHVH
SURQRXQFHPHQWV DUH WKRVH WKDW WKH &RPSDQ\ UHDVRQDEO\ H[SHFWV WR KDYH DQ LPSDFW RQ LWV
DFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVRUGLVFORVXUHVXQOHVVRWKHUZLVHLQGLFDWHG7KH&RPSDQ\LQWHQGVWRDGRSW
WKHIROORZLQJSURQRXQFHPHQWVZKHQWKH\EHFRPHHIIHFWLYH
x





'HIHUUHG
3KLOLSSLQH,QWHUSUHWDWLRQ,)5,&'  % #  


7KLVLQWHUSUHWDWLRQFRYHUVDFFRXQWLQJIRUUHYHQXHDQGDVVRFLDWHGH[SHQVHVE\HQWLWLHVWKDW
XQGHUWDNH WKH FRQVWUXFWLRQ RI UHDO HVWDWH GLUHFWO\ RU WKURXJK VXEFRQWUDFWRUV 7KH
LQWHUSUHWDWLRQUHTXLUHVWKDWUHYHQXHRQFRQVWUXFWLRQRIUHDOHVWDWHEHUHFRJQL]HGRQO\XSRQ
FRPSOHWLRQH[FHSWZKHQVXFKFRQWUDFWTXDOLILHVDVDFRQVWUXFWLRQFRQWUDFWWREHDFFRXQWHG
IRU XQGHU 3$6  RU LQYROYHV UHQGHULQJ RI VHUYLFHV LQ ZKLFK FDVH UHYHQXH LV UHFRJQL]HG
EDVHGRQVWDJHRIFRPSOHWLRQ&RQWUDFWVLQYROYLQJSURYLVLRQRIVHUYLFHVZLWKFRQVWUXFWLRQ
PDWHULDOVDQGZKHUHWKHULVNVDQGUHZDUGVDUHWUDQVIHUUHGWRWKHEX\HURQDFRQWLQXRXV
EDVLVZLOODOVREHDFFRXQWHGIRUEDVHGRQWKHVWDJHRIFRPSOHWLRQ7KH6(&DQGWKH)LQDQFLDO
5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV&RXQFLO )56& KDYHGHIHUUHGWKHHIIHFWLYLW\RIWKLVLQWHUSUHWDWLRQXQWLO
WKHILQDO5HYHQXH6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ,$6% DQGDQHYDOXDWLRQRIWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKHILQDO
5HYHQXHVWDQGDUGDJDLQVWWKHSUDFWLFHVRIWKH3KLOLSSLQHUHDOHVWDWHLQGXVWU\LVFRPSOHWHG
$GRSWLRQRIWKHLQWHUSUHWDWLRQZKHQLWEHFRPHVHIIHFWLYHZLOOQRWKDYHDQ\LPSDFWRQWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\

# 3  !+ !5

x 3)56    #   + 3$6   #   3 
&  -      ' %   2#  $

7KHVH $PHQGPHQWV FODULI\ WKH H[HPSWLRQ RQ 3)56  IURP SUHVHQWLQJ FRQVROLGDWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDSSOLHVWRDSDUHQWHQWLW\WKDWLVDVXEVLGLDU\RIDQLQYHVWPHQWHQWLW\
WKDWPHDVXUHVDOORILWVVXEVLGLDULHVDWIDLUYDOXHDQGWKDWRQO\DVXEVLGLDU\RIDQHQWLW\WKDW
LV QRW DQ LQYHVWPHQW HQWLW\ DQG WKDW SURYLGHV VXSSRUW VHUYLFHV WR WKH LQYHVWPHQW HQWLW\
SDUHQWLVFRQVROLGDWHG7KHDPHQGPHQWVDOVRDOORZDQLQYHVWRU WKDWLVQRWDQLQYHVWPHQW
HQWLW\DVVRFLDWHRUMRLQWYHQWXUH ZKHQDSSO\LQJWKHHTXLW\PHWKRGWRUHWDLQWKHIDLUYDOXH
PHDVXUHPHQWDSSOLHGE\WKHLQYHVWPHQWHQWLW\DVVRFLDWHRUMRLQWYHQWXUHWRLWVLQWHUHVWVLQ
VXEVLGLDULHV 7KHVH DPHQGPHQWV DUH HIIHFWLYH IRU DQQXDO SHULRGV EHJLQQLQJ RQ RU DIWHU
-DQXDU\7KHVHDPHQGPHQWVDUHQRWDSSOLFDEOHWRWKH&RPSDQ\

x 3$6      #     - ,  . %      #    
 $

7KHDPHQGPHQWVZLOODOORZHQWLWLHVWRXVHWKHHTXLW\PHWKRGWRDFFRXQWIRULQYHVWPHQWVLQ
VXEVLGLDULHV MRLQW YHQWXUHV DQG DVVRFLDWHV LQ WKHLU VHSDUDWH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV (QWLWLHV
DOUHDG\DSSO\LQJ3)56DQGHOHFWLQJWRFKDQJHWRWKHHTXLW\PHWKRGLQLWVVHSDUDWHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVZLOOKDYHWRDSSO\WKDWFKDQJHUHWURVSHFWLYHO\7KHDPHQGPHQWVDUHHIIHFWLYH
IRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\ZLWKHDUO\DGRSWLRQSHUPLWWHG
7KHVHDPHQGPHQWVZLOOQRWKDYHDQ\LPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV




x 3)563  ' -## '#,      $

7KHDPHQGPHQWVWR3)56UHTXLUHDMRLQWRSHUDWRUWKDWLVDFFRXQWLQJIRUWKHDFTXLVLWLRQ
RIDQLQWHUHVWLQDMRLQWRSHUDWLRQLQZKLFKWKHDFWLYLW\RIWKHMRLQWRSHUDWLRQFRQVWLWXWHVD
EXVLQHVV DV GHILQHG E\ 3)56   WR DSSO\ WKH UHOHYDQW 3)56  SULQFLSOHV IRU EXVLQHVV
x



RPELQDWLRQVDFFRXQWLQJ7KHDPHQGPHQWVDOVRFODULI\WKDWDSUHYLRXVO\KHOGLQWHUHVWLQD
MRLQWRSHUDWLRQLVQRWUHPHDVXUHGRQWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIDQDGGLWLRQDOLQWHUHVWLQWKHVDPH
MRLQWRSHUDWLRQZKLOHLQMRLQWFRQWUROLVUHWDLQHG,QDGGLWLRQDVFRSHH[FOXVLRQKDVEHHQ
DGGHGWR3)56WRVSHFLI\WKDWWKHDPHQGPHQWVGRQRWDSSO\ZKHQWKHSDUWLHVVKDULQJ
MRLQWFRQWUROLQFOXGLQJWKHUHSRUWLQJHQWLW\DUHXQGHUFRPPRQFRQWURORIWKHVDPHXOWLPDWH
FRQWUROOLQJSDUW\

7KHDPHQGPHQWVDSSO\WRERWKWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIWKHLQLWLDOLQWHUHVWLQDMRLQWRSHUDWLRQDQG
WKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIDQ\DGGLWLRQDOLQWHUHVWVLQWKHVDPHMRLQWRSHUDWLRQDQGDUHSURVSHFWLYHO\
HIIHFWLYHO\IRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\ZLWKHDUO\DGRSWLRQ
SHUPLWWHG7KHVHDPHQGPHQWVDUHQRWWRKDYHDQ\LPSDFWWRWKH&RPSDQ\

x 3$6    #   -'LVFORVXUH,QLWLDWLYH $PHQGPHQWV 

7KHDPHQGPHQWVDUHLQWHQGHGWRDVVLVWHQWLWLHVLQDSSO\LQJMXGJPHQWZKHQPHHWLQJWKH
SUHVHQWDWLRQDQGGLVFORVXUHUHTXLUHPHQWVLQ3)567KH\FODULI\WKHIROORZLQJ
x 7KDW HQWLWLHV VKDOO QRW UHGXFH WKH XQGHUVWDQGDELOLW\ RI WKHLU ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV E\
HLWKHU REVFXULQJ PDWHULDO LQIRUPDWLRQ ZLWK LPPDWHULDO LQIRUPDWLRQ RU DJJUHJDWLQJ
PDWHULDOLWHPVWKDWKDYHGLIIHUHQWQDWXUHVRUIXQFWLRQV
x 7KDWVSHFLILFOLQHLWHPVLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRILQFRPHDQGRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH
DQGWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQPD\EHGLVDJJUHJDWHG
x 7KDW HQWLWLHV KDYH IOH[LELOLW\ DV WR WKH RUGHU LQ ZKLFK WKH\ SUHVHQW WKH QRWHV WR WKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
x 7KDW WKH VKDUH RI RWKHU FRPSUHKHQVLYH LQFRPH RI DVVRFLDWHV DQG MRLQW YHQWXUHV
DFFRXQWHG IRUXVLQJWKHHTXLW\ PHWKRGPXVWEHSUHVHQWHGLQDJJUHJDWHDVDVLQJOH
LWHPDQGFODVVLILHGEHWZHHQWKRVHLWHPVWKDWZLOOQRWEHVXEVHTXHQWO\UHFODVVLILHGWR
SURILWRUORVV

(DUO\ DSSOLFDWLRQ LV SHUPLWWHG DQG HQWLWLHV GR QRW QHHG WR GLVFORVH WKDW WKH IDFW DV WKH
DPHQGPHQWVDUHFRQVLGHUHGWREHFODULILFDWLRQVWKDWGRQRWDIIHFWDQHQWLW\·VDFFRXQWLQJ
SROLFLHVRUDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV7KH&RPSDQ\LVFXUUHQWO\DVVHVVLQJWKHLPSDFWRIWKHVH
DPHQGPHQWVRQLWVILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

x 3)56'  ## 7

3)56LVDQRSWLRQDOVWDQGDUGWKDWDOORZVDQHQWLW\ZKRVHDFWLYLWLHVDUHVXEMHFWWRUDWH
UHJXODWLRQ WR FRQWLQXH DSSO\LQJ PRVW RI LWV H[LVWLQJ DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV IRU UHJXODWRU\
GHIHUUDODFFRXQWEDODQFHVXSRQLWVILUVWWLPHDGRSWLRQRI3)56(QWLWLHVWKDWDGRSW3)56
PXVWSUHVHQWWKHUHJXODWRU\GHIHUUDODFFRXQWVDVVHSDUDWHOLQHLWHPVRQWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGSUHVHQWPRYHPHQWVLQWKHVHDFFRXQWEDODQFHVDVVHSDUDWHOLQHLWHPV
LQWKHVWDWHPHQWRISURILWRUORVVDQGRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH7KHVWDQGDUGUHTXLUHV
GLVFORVXUHVRQWKHQDWXUHRIDQGULVNVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKHHQWLW\·VUDWHUHJXODWLRQDQGWKH
HIIHFWVRIWKDWUDWHUHJXODWLRQRQLWVILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV3)56LVHIIHFWLYHIRUDQQXDO
SHULRGV EHJLQQLQJ RQ RU DIWHU -DQXDU\   6LQFH WKH &RPSDQ\ LV DQ H[LVWLQJ 3)56
SUHSDUHUWKLVVWDQGDUGZRXOGQRWDSSO\


3$6  +   , +DQG3$6+'# "   

7KH DPHQGPHQWV FKDQJH WKH DFFRXQWLQJ UHTXLUHPHQWV IRU ELRORJLFDO DVVHWV WKDW PHHW WKH
GHILQLWLRQRIEHDUHUSODQWV8QGHUWKHDPHQGPHQWVELRORJLFDODVVHWVWKDWPHHWWKHGHILQLWLRQ
RIEHDUHUSODQWVZLOOQRORQJHUEHZLWKLQWKHVFRSHRI3$6,QVWHDG3$6ZLOODSSO\$IWHU

LQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQEHDUHUSODQWVZLOOEHPHDVXUHGXQGHU3$6DWDFFXPXODWHGFRVW EHIRUH
PDWXULW\  DQG XVLQJ HLWKHU WKH FRVW PRGHO RU UHYDOXDWLRQ PRGHO DIWHU PDWXULW\   7KH
DPHQGPHQWVDOVRUHTXLUHWKDWSURGXFHWKDWJURZVRQEHDUHUSODQWVZLOOUHPDLQLQWKHVFRSHRI
3$6PHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHOHVVFRVWVWRVHOO)RUJRYHUQPHQWJUDQWVUHODWHGWREHDUHUSODQWV
3$6$FFRXQWLQJIRU*RYHUQPHQW*UDQWVDQG'LVFORVXUHRI*RYHUQPHQW$VVLVWDQFHZLOODSSO\
7KH DPHQGPHQWV DUH UHWURVSHFWLYHO\ HIIHFWLYH IRU DQQXDO SHULRGV EHJLQQLQJ RQ RU DIWHU
-DQXDU\ZLWKHDUO\DGRSWLRQSHUPLWWHG7KHVHDPHQGPHQWVDUHQRWH[SHFWHGWRKDYH
DQ\LPSDFWWRWKH&RPSDQ\DVWKH&RPSDQ\GRHVQRWKDYHDQ\EHDUHUSODQWV


3$6  +   , +DQG3$6+ '   " # 
##  . % #   /  $

7KHDPHQGPHQWVFODULI\WKHSULQFLSOHLQ3$6DQG3$6WKDWUHYHQXHUHIOHFWVDSDWWHUQRI
HFRQRPLFEHQHILWV WKDW DUHJHQHUDWHGIURPRSHUDWLQJDEXVLQHVV RIZKLFKWKHDVVHWLVSDUW 
UDWKHUWKDQWKHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVWKDWDUHFRQVXPHGWKURXJKXVHRIWKHDVVHW$VDUHVXOWD
UHYHQXHEDVHGPHWKRGFDQQRWEHXVHGWRGHSUHFLDWHSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDQGPD\
RQO\EHXVHGLQYHU\OLPLWHGFLUFXPVWDQFHVWRDPRUWL]HLQWDQJLEOHDVVHWV7KHDPHQGPHQWVDUH
HIIHFWLYH SURVSHFWLYHO\ IRU DQQXDO SHULRGV EHJLQQLQJ RQ RU DIWHU -DQXDU\   ZLWK HDUO\
DGRSWLRQSHUPLWWHG7KHVHDPHQGPHQWVDUHQRWH[SHFWHGWRKDYHDQ\LPSDFWWRWKH&RPSDQ\

      !" !8## $
7KH$QQXDO,PSURYHPHQWVWR3)56V F\FOH DUHHIIHFWLYHIRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJ
RQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\DQGDUHQRWH[SHFWHGWRKDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\7KH\
LQFOXGH


3)56+4"#   9    # (  "% ' . % 
  

7KHDPHQGPHQWLVDSSOLHGSURVSHFWLYHO\DQGFODULILHVWKDWFKDQJLQJIURPDGLVSRVDOWKURXJK
VDOHWRDGLVSRVDOWKURXJKGLVWULEXWLRQWRRZQHUVDQGYLFHYHUVDVKRXOGQRWEHFRQVLGHUHGWR
EHDQHZSODQRIGLVSRVDOUDWKHULWLVDFRQWLQXDWLRQRIWKHRULJLQDOSODQ7KHUHLVWKHUHIRUHQR
LQWHUUXSWLRQRIWKHDSSOLFDWLRQRIWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVLQ3)567KHDPHQGPHQWDOVRFODULILHV
WKDWFKDQJLQJWKHGLVSRVDOPHWKRGGRHVQRWFKDQJHWKHGDWHRIFODVVLILFDWLRQ




3)56 #    #   "#'  # 

3)56UHTXLUHVDQHQWLW\WRSURYLGHGLVFORVXUHVIRUDQ\FRQWLQXLQJLQYROYHPHQWLQDWUDQVIHUUHG
DVVHWWKDWLVGHUHFRJQL]HGLQLWVHQWLUHW\7KHDPHQGPHQWFODULILHVWKDWDVHUYLFLQJFRQWUDFWWKDW
LQFOXGHVDIHHFDQFRQVWLWXWHFRQWLQXLQJLQYROYHPHQWLQDILQDQFLDODVVHW$QHQWLW\PXVWDVVHVV
WKHQDWXUHRIWKHIHHDQGDUUDQJHPHQWDJDLQVWWKHJXLGDQFHIRUFRQWLQXLQJLQYROYHPHQWLQ3)56
LQRUGHUWRDVVHVVZKHWKHUWKHGLVFORVXUHVDUHUHTXLUHG7KHDPHQGPHQWLVWREHDSSOLHGVXFK
WKDWWKHDVVHVVPHQWRIZKLFKVHUYLFLQJFRQWUDFWVFRQVWLWXWHFRQWLQXLQJLQYROYHPHQWZLOOQHHGWR
EHGRQHUHWURVSHFWLYHO\+RZHYHUFRPSDUDWLYHGLVFORVXUHVDUHQRWUHTXLUHGWREHSURYLGHGIRU
DQ\SHULRGEHJLQQLQJEHIRUHWKHDQQXDOSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHHQWLW\ILUVWDSSOLHVWKHDPHQGPHQWV




3)56 #    %   :    # 


 

7KLV DPHQGPHQW LV DSSOLHG UHWURVSHFWLYHO\ DQG FODULILHV WKDW WKH GLVFORVXUHV RQ RIIVHWWLQJ RI
ILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHQRWUHTXLUHGLQWKHFRQGHQVHGLQWHULPILQDQFLDOUHSRUW
XQOHVVWKH\SURYLGHDVLJQLILFDQWXSGDWHWRWKHLQIRUPDWLRQUHSRUWHGLQWKHPRVWUHFHQWDQQXDO
UHSRUW



3$6  "'  ;  ' ' #  

7KLV DPHQGPHQW LV DSSOLHG SURVSHFWLYHO\ DQG FODULILHV WKDW PDUNHW GHSWK RI KLJK TXDOLW\
FRUSRUDWHERQGV LVDVVHVVHGEDVHG RQWKHFXUUHQF\LQZKLFK WKHREOLJDWLRQ LVGHQRPLQDWHG
UDWKHUWKDQWKHFRXQWU\ZKHUHWKHREOLJDWLRQLVORFDWHG:KHQWKHUHLVQRGHHSPDUNHWIRUKLJK
TXDOLW\FRUSRUDWHERQGVLQWKDWFXUUHQF\JRYHUQPHQWERQGUDWHVPXVWEHXVHG




3$6  #  '" #   < =% % 
 #  *

7KH DPHQGPHQW LV DSSOLHG UHWURVSHFWLYHO\ DQG FODULILHV WKDW WKH UHTXLUHG LQWHULP GLVFORVXUHV
PXVWHLWKHUEHLQWKHLQWHULPILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULQFRUSRUDWHGE\FURVVUHIHUHQFHEHWZHHQ
WKH LQWHULP ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG ZKHUHYHU WKH\ DUH LQFOXGHG ZLWKLQ WKH JUHDWHU LQWHULP
ILQDQFLDOUHSRUW HJLQWKHPDQDJHPHQWFRPPHQWDU\RUULVNUHSRUW 

(IIHFWLYH-DQXDU\


3)56 #   

,Q-XO\WKH,$6%LVVXHGWKHILQDOYHUVLRQRI,)56 #   77KHQHZVWDQGDUG
UHQDPHGDV3)56 UHIOHFWVDOOSKDVHVRIWKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVSURMHFWDQGUHSODFHV3$6
 #   #'  .  DQGDOOSUHYLRXVYHUVLRQVRI3)567KH
VWDQGDUG LQWURGXFHV QHZ UHTXLUHPHQWV IRU FODVVLILFDWLRQ DQG PHDVXUHPHQW LPSDLUPHQW DQG
KHGJHDFFRXQWLQJ3)56LVHIIHFWLYHIRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\
ZLWK HDUO\ DSSOLFDWLRQ SHUPLWWHG  5HWURVSHFWLYH DSSOLFDWLRQ LV UHTXLUHG EXW SURYLGLQJ
FRPSDUDWLYH LQIRUPDWLRQ LV QRW FRPSXOVRU\  )RU KHGJH DFFRXQWLQJ WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV DUH
JHQHUDOO\ DSSOLHG SURVSHFWLYHO\ ZLWK VRPH OLPLWHG H[FHSWLRQV  (DUO\ DSSOLFDWLRQ RI SUHYLRXV
YHUVLRQVRI3)56 DQG LVSHUPLWWHGLIWKHGDWHRILQLWLDODSSOLFDWLRQLVEHIRUH
)HEUXDU\7KH&RPSDQ\GLGQRWHDUO\DGRSW3)56
7KH&RPSDQ\LVFXUUHQWO\DVVHVVLQJWKHLPSDFWRIDGRSWLQJWKLVVWDQGDUG

,QDGGLWLRQWKH,$6%KDVLVVXHGWKHIROORZLQJQHZVWDQGDUGVWKDWKDYHQRW\HWEHHQDGRSWHG
ORFDOO\E\WKH6(&DQG)56&


,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUG ,)56   # = %  

,)56ZDVLVVXHGLQ0D\E\WKH,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ,$6% DQG
HVWDEOLVKHVDQHZILYHVWHSPRGHOWKDWZLOODSSO\WRUHYHQXHDULVLQJIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWK
FXVWRPHUV8QGHU,)56UHYHQXHLVUHFRJQL]HGDWDQDPRXQWWKDWUHIOHFWVWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQ
WRZKLFKDQHQWLW\H[SHFWVWREHHQWLWOHGLQH[FKDQJHIRUWUDQVIHUULQJJRRGVRUVHUYLFHVWRD
FXVWRPHU7KHSULQFLSOHVLQ,)56SURYLGHDPRUHVWUXFWXUHGDSSURDFKWRPHDVXULQJDQG
UHFRJQL]LQJUHYHQXH

7KHQHZUHYHQXHVWDQGDUGLVDSSOLFDEOHWRDOOHQWLWLHVDQGZLOOVXSHUVHGHDOOFXUUHQWUHYHQXH
UHFRJQLWLRQUHTXLUHPHQWVXQGHU,)56(LWKHUDIXOORUPRGLILHGUHWURVSHFWLYHDSSOLFDWLRQLV
UHTXLUHGIRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\(DUO\DGRSWLRQLV
SHUPLWWHG7KH&RPSDQ\LVFXUUHQWO\DVVHVVLQJWKHLPSDFWRI,)56DQGSODQVWRDGRSWWKH
QHZVWDQGDUGRQWKHUHTXLUHGHIIHFWLYHGDWHRQFHDGRSWHGORFDOO\


,)56>  

2Q-DQXDU\WKH,$6%LVVXHGLWVQHZVWDQGDUG,)56>  ZKLFKUHSODFHV
,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,$6 WKHFXUUHQWOHDVHVVWDQGDUGDQGWKHUHODWHG
,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV
8QGHUWKHQHZVWDQGDUGOHVVHHVZLOOQRORQJHUFODVVLI\WKHLUOHDVHVDVHLWKHURSHUDWLQJRU
ILQDQFHOHDVHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$65DWKHUOHVVHHVZLOODSSO\WKHVLQJOHDVVHWPRGHO
8QGHUWKLVPRGHOOHVVHHVZLOOUHFRJQL]HWKHDVVHWVDQGUHODWHGOLDELOLWLHVIRUPRVWOHDVHVRQ
WKHLUEDODQFHVKHHWVDQGVXEVHTXHQWO\ZLOOGHSUHFLDWHWKHOHDVHDVVHWVDQGUHFRJQL]HLQWHUHVW
RQWKHOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVLQWKHLUSURILWRUORVV/HDVHVZLWKDWHUPRIPRQWKVRUOHVVRUIRU
ZKLFKWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWLVRIORZYDOXHDUHH[HPSWHGIURPWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV
7KHDFFRXQWLQJE\OHVVRUVLVVXEVWDQWLDOO\XQFKDQJHGDVWKHQHZVWDQGDUGFDUULHVIRUZDUGWKH
SULQFLSOHVRIOHVVRUDFFRXQWLQJXQGHU,$6/HVVRUVKRZHYHUZLOOEHUHTXLUHGWRGLVFORVH
PRUHLQIRUPDWLRQLQWKHLUILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSDUWLFXODUO\RQWKHULVNH[SRVXUHWRUHVLGXDO
YDOXH
7KHQHZVWDQGDUGLVHIIHFWLYHIRUDQQXDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU-DQXDU\
(QWLWLHVPD\HDUO\DGRSW,)56EXWRQO\LIWKH\KDYHDOVRDGRSWHG,)565HYHQXHIURP
&RQWUDFWVZLWK&XVWRPHUV:KHQDGRSWLQJ,)56DQHQWLW\LVSHUPLWWHGWRXVHHLWKHUDIXOO
UHWURVSHFWLYHRUDPRGLILHGUHWURVSHFWLYHDSSURDFKZLWKRSWLRQVWRXVHFHUWDLQWUDQVLWLRQ
UHOLHIV7KH&RPSDQ\LVFXUUHQWO\DVVHVVLQJWKHLPSDFWRI,)56DQGSODQVWRDGRSWWKHQHZ
VWDQGDUGRQWKHUHTXLUHGHIIHFWLYHGDWHRQFHDGRSWHGORFDOO\


  !""% !"" #""


"$# "$&'(!"
&DVK LQFOXGHV FDVK RQ KDQG DQG LQ EDQNV &DVK HTXLYDOHQWV DUH VKRUWWHUP KLJKO\ OLTXLG
LQYHVWPHQWVWKDWDUHUHDGLO\FRQYHUWLEOHWRNQRZQDPRXQWVRIFDVKZLWKRULJLQDOPDWXULWLHVRI
XSWRVL[PRQWKVRUOHVVDQGWKDWDUHVXEMHFWWRDQLQVLJQLILFDQWULVNRIFKDQJHLQYDOXH


 !"""# !)!"
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGLQLWLDOO\DWIDLUYDOXH'LUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOH
WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVLIDQ\DUHLQFOXGHGLQWKHLQLWLDOPHDVXUHPHQWRIILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDO
OLDELOLWLHVH[FHSWIRUDQ\ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV )93/ 
7KH&RPSDQ\UHFRJQL]HVDILQDQFLDODVVHWRUOLDELOLW\LQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQZKHQ
LWEHFRPHVDSDUW\WRWKHFRQWUDFWXDOSURYLVLRQVRIWKHLQVWUXPHQW

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVOLDELOLWLHVRUHTXLW\LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVXEVWDQFHRI
WKH FRQWUDFWXDO DUUDQJHPHQW ,QWHUHVW GLYLGHQGV JDLQV DQG ORVVHV UHODWLQJ WR D ILQDQFLDO

LQVWUXPHQW RU D FRPSRQHQW WKDW LV D ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLW\ DUH UHSRUWHG DV H[SHQVH RU LQFRPH
'LVWULEXWLRQV WR KROGHUV RI ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV FODVVLILHG DV HTXLW\ DUH FKDUJHG GLUHFWO\ WR
HTXLW\QHWRIDQ\UHODWHGLQFRPHWD[EHQHILWV

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVILQDQFLDODVVHWVRUILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDW)93/ORDQVDQG
UHFHLYDEOHV KHOGWRPDWXULW\ +70  LQYHVWPHQWV $)6 ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV RU RWKHU ILQDQFLDO
OLDELOLWLHVDVDSSURSULDWH

7KH&RPSDQ\GHWHUPLQHVWKHFODVVLILFDWLRQRILWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWLQLWLDO
UHFRJQLWLRQDQGZKHUHDOORZHGDQGDSSURSULDWHUHHYDOXDWHVWKLVGHVLJQDWLRQDWHDFKILQDQFLDO
\HDUHQG


"# ()!"
/RDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVDUHQRQGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDODVVHWVZLWKIL[HGRUGHWHUPLQDEOHSD\PHQWV
WKDWDUHQRWTXRWHGLQDQDFWLYHPDUNHW6XFKDVVHWVDUHFDUULHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWLQWKHEDODQFH
VKHHW $PRUWL]DWLRQ LV GHWHUPLQHG XVLQJ WKH HIIHFWLYH LQWHUHVW UDWH PHWKRG /RDQV DQG
UHFHLYDEOHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVFXUUHQWDVVHWVLIPDWXULW\LVZLWKLQWZHOYHPRQWKVRIWKHEDODQFH
VKHHWGDWH2WKHUZLVHWKHVHDUHFODVVLILHGDVQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV

,QFOXGHG XQGHU WKLV FDWHJRU\ DUH WKH &RPSDQ\·V FDVK LQ EDQNV VKRUWWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV
UHFHLYDEOHVDQGGXHIURPDIILOLDWHV


  !"""
$)6ILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHWKRVHQRQGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWDUHGHVLJQDWHGDVVXFKRUDUH
QRW FODVVLILHG LQ DQ\ RI WKH RWKHU FDWHJRULHV )LQDQFLDO DVVHWV PD\ EH GHVLJQDWHG DW LQLWLDO
UHFRJQLWLRQDV$)6LIWKH\DUHSXUFKDVHGDQGKHOGLQGHILQLWHO\DQGPD\EHVROGLQUHVSRQVHWR
OLTXLGLW\UHTXLUHPHQWVRUFKDQJHVLQPDUNHWFRQGLWLRQV,QFOXGHGXQGHUWKLVFDWHJRU\DUHWKH
&RPSDQ\·VTXRWHGDQGXQTXRWHGHTXLW\LQYHVWPHQWV

$IWHULQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQTXRWHG$)6ILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH ZLWKJDLQVRU
ORVVHV UHFRJQL]HG DV D VHSDUDWH FRPSRQHQW RI HTXLW\ DQG DV 2&, XQWLO WKH LQYHVWPHQW LV
GHUHFRJQL]HG RU XQWLO WKH LQYHVWPHQW LV GHWHUPLQHG WR EH LPSDLUHG 8QTXRWHG )6 ILQDQFLDO
DVVHWV RQ WKH RWKHU KDQG DUH FDUULHG DW FRVW QHW RI LPSDLUPHQW XQWLO WKH LQYHVWPHQW LV
GHUHFRJQL]HG7KHVHILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWVXQOHVVWKHLQWHQWLRQLV
WRGLVSRVHVXFKDVVHWVZLWKLQPRQWKVIURPEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH


$ !!)!"
7KLVFDWHJRU\SHUWDLQVWRILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVWKDWDUHQHLWKHUKHOGIRUWUDGLQJQRUGHVLJQDWHGDV
DW)93/XSRQWKHLQFHSWLRQRIWKHOLDELOLW\7KHVHLQFOXGHOLDELOLWLHVDULVLQJIURPRSHUDWLRQVRU
ERUURZLQJV

7KH ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV DUH UHFRJQL]HG LQLWLDOO\ DW IDLU YDOXH DQG DUH VXEVHTXHQWO\ FDUULHG DW
DPRUWL]HGFRVWWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHLPSDFWRIDSSO\LQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRGRI
DPRUWL]DWLRQ RU DFFUHWLRQ  IRU DQ\ UHODWHG SUHPLXP GLVFRXQW DQG DQ\ GLUHFWO\ DWWULEXWDEOH
WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWV

,QFOXGHGXQGHUWKLVFDWHJRU\DUHWKH&RPSDQ\·VDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGH[SHQVHVGXH
WRDIILOLDWHVGLYLGHQGVSD\DEOHWDOHQWIHHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQVSD\DEOH


!""  !""
7KH&RPSDQ\FODVVLILHVDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWRULWVFRPSRQHQWSDUWVRQLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDV
DILQDQFLDODVVHWDILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\RUDQHTXLW\LQVWUXPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVXEVWDQFHRI

HFRQWUDFWXDODUUDQJHPHQWDQGWKHGHILQLWLRQVRIDILQDQFLDODVVHWDILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\RUDQ
HTXLW\LQVWUXPHQW7KHVXEVWDQFHRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWUDWKHUWKDQLWVOHJDOIRUPJRYHUQV
LWVFODVVLILFDWLRQLQWKHEDODQFHVKHHWV



*! !"""# !!)!"
7KH&RPSDQ\FDUULHVFHUWDLQILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWIDLUYDOXHZKLFKUHTXLUHV
H[WHQVLYHXVHRIDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQGMXGJHPHQW7KHVLJQLILFDQWFRPSRQHQWVRIIDLUYDOXH
PHDVXUHPHQWZHUHGHWHUPLQHGXVLQJYHULILDEOHREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFH




  !"+ ), ("#! "


7KH0DLQULVNDULVLQJIURPWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHFUHGLWULVNOLTXLGLW\ULVNDQG
LQWHUHVWUDWHULVN


x
#"+
&UHGLWULVNRUWKHULVNRIFRXQWHUSDUWLHVGHIDXOWLQJLVFRQWUROOHGE\WKHDSSOLFDWLRQRIFRQWURO
DQGPRQLWRULQJSURFHGXUHV,WLVWKH&RPSDQ\·VSROLF\WKDWDOOFOLHQWVZKRZLVKWRWUDGHRQ
FUHGLW WHUPV DUH VXEMHFW WR FUHGLW YHULILFDWLRQ SURFHGXUHV 5HFHLYDEOHV DQG GXH IURP
DIILOLDWH·V EDODQFHV DUH PRQLWRUHG RQ DQ RQJRLQJ EDVLV WR HQVXUH WKDW WKH &RPSDQ\·V
H[SRVXUHWREDGGHEWVLVQRWVLJQLILFDQW



""--" #"+
7KHPD[LPXPH[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNDVRI-XQHDQG'HFLVDVIROORZV
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7KHWDEOHEHORZVXPPDUL]HGWKHFUHGLWTXDOLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDODVVHWVDVRI-XQH
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'#"+
/LTXLGLW\ULVNDULVHVZKHQREOLJDWLRQVDUHQRWPHWZKHQWKH\IDOOGXH,WLVWKH&RPSDQ\·V
REMHFWLYHWRILQDQFHFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHVVHUYLFHVDQGPDWXULQJREOLJDWLRQVDVVFKHGXOHG
7RFRYHUWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLQJUHTXLUHPHQWVWKH&RPSDQ\XVHVLQWHUQDOO\JHQHUDWHG
IXQGV DQG SURFHHGV IURP GHEW 3URMHFWHG DQG DFWXDO FDVK IORZ LQIRUPDWLRQ LV UHJXODUO\
HYDOXDWHGDQGIXQGLQJVRXUFHVDUHFRQWLQXRXVO\DVVHVVHG

""+
7KH&RPSDQ\·VH[SRVXUHWRWKHULVNRIFKDQJHVLQPDUNHWLQWHUHVWUDWHLVPLQLPDOVLQFHWKH
&RPSDQ\KDVSDLGDOORILWVQRWHVSD\DEOH



 7KH&RPSDQ\KDVQRLQYHVWPHQWRQIRUHLJQVHFXULWLHV

 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDYHDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV

 7KHUHDUHQRXQXVXDOLWHPVDIIHFWLQJDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVHTXLW\QHWLQFRPHRUFDVKIORZV

 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRULQWHULPSHULRGVRIWKHFXUUHQW
ILQDQFLDO\HDURULQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRUILQDQFLDO\HDUV

 7KHUHZHUHQRSD\PHQWVRIEDQNORDQVIRUWKHVL[PRQWKVHQGHG-XQHDVDOOEDQNORDQV
ZHUHIXOO\SDLGDVRI'HFHPEHU


 7KH&RPSDQ\LVRUJDQL]HGLQWRRQO\RQHRSHUDWLQJGLYLVLRQ²UDGLRDQGWHOHYLVLRQEURDGFDVWLQJ
ZKLFK LV LWV SULPDU\ DFWLYLW\ 7KH &RPSDQ\ KDV VHYHQ SURJUDPPLQJ IRUPDWV QDPHO\ '=5+
$NV\RQ 5DG\R /RYH 5DGLR <HV)0 (DV\ 5RFN DQG 5DG\R 1DWLQ DQG 5+79 ZKLFK UHSUHVHQW
DERXWDQGRIWKHWRWDOEURDGFDVWLQJIHHIRUWKHILUVWVL[PRQWKV
RI

 7KH&RPSDQ\SODQVWRHDUPDUN30LOOLRQFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHIRULWVYDULRXVSURMHFWVQDPHO\
SXUFKDVHRIQHZWUDQVPLWWHUVIRUSURYLQFLDO VWDWLRQV 5+79EURDGFDVWH[SDQVLRQRYHUYDULRXV
FDEOHDQG79FKDQQHOVOHDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWRI+HDG2IILFHDXGLRDQGYLGHRVWUHDPLQJRYHU
WKHLQWHUQHWDQGLPSURYHPHQWRIH[LVWLQJVWDWLRQV·HTXLSPHQWDQGIDFLOLWLHVQDWLRQZLGH7KLV
ZLOOEHIXQGHGE\FDVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 7KHUHDUHQRPDWHULDOHYHQWVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHHQGRIWKHLQWHULPSHULRGWKDWKDYHQRWEHHQ
UHIOHFWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHLQWHULPSHULRG

 7KHUH DUH QR FKDQJHV LQ WKH FRPSRVLWLRQ RI WKH LVVXHU GXULQJ WKH LQWHULP SHULRG LQFOXGLQJ
EXVLQHVV FRPELQDWLRQV DFTXLVLWLRQ RU GLVSRVDO RI VXEVLGLDULHV DQG ORQJWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV
UHVWUXFWXULQJVDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV

 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVRUFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVVLQFHWKHODVWDQQXDOEDODQFH
VKHHWGDWH

 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO FRQWLQJHQFLHV DQG DQ\ HYHQWV RU WUDQVDFWLRQV WKDW DUH PDWHULDO WR DQ
XQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHFXUUHQWLQWHULPSHULRG

 7KHUHDUHQRNQRZQWUHQGVGHPDQGVFRPPLWPHQWV HYHQWVRUXQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDWZLOOKDYHD
PDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VOLTXLGLW\

 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ WUHQGV HYHQWV RU XQFHUWDLQWLHV WKDW KDYH KDG RU WKDW DUH UHDVRQDEO\
H[SHFWHGWRKDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHQHWVDOHVRUUHYHQXHVRULQFRPHIURPFRQWLQXLQJ
RSHUDWLRQV

 7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW HOHPHQWV RI LQFRPH RU ORVV WKDW GLG QRW DULVH IURP WKH FRPSDQ\·V
FRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV

 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO WULJJHU GLUHFW RU FRQWLQJHQW ILQDQFLDO REOLJDWLRQ WKDW LV
PDWHULDOWRWKHFRPSDQ\LQFOXGLQJDQ\GHIDXOWRUDFFHOHUDWLRQRIDQREOLJDWLRQ

 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO RIIEDODQFH VKHHW WUDQVDFWLRQV DUUDQJHPHQWV REOLJDWLRQV LQFOXGLQJ
FRQWLQJHQWREOLJDWLRQV DQGRWKHUUHODWLRQVKLSVRIWKHFRPSDQ\ZLWKXQFRQVROLGDWHGHQWLWLHV
RURWKHUSHUVRQVFUHDWHGGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
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7KHIROORZLQJGLVFXVVLRQVKRXOGEHUHDGLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKH&RPSDQ\·VLQWHULPILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHVL[PRQWKVHQGHG-XQH
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7KH&RPSDQ\DFKLHYHGDJJUHJDWLYHQHWUHYHQXHRI3PLOOLRQGXULQJWKHILUVWVL[PRQWKV
RIDQLQFUHDVHRIRYHUWKH3PLOOLRQUHJLVWHUHGIRUWKHVDPHSHULRGLQ
PDLQO\ GXH WR DGYHUWLVHPHQW VSHQGLQJ E\ 3ROLWLFDO &DQGLGDWHV LQ OLQH ZLWK WKHLU HOHFWLRQ
FDPSDLJQDQG6DOHVLQFUHDVHLQ&OLHQWLQLWLDWLYHSURPRDFWLYLWLHV7RWDOFRVWVDQGH[SHQVHVIRU
WKHVL[PRQWKVDPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQZKLFKLQFUHDVHGE\IURP3PLOOLRQODVW
\HDUPDLQO\GXHWRFRUUHVSRQGLQJVHUYLFHIHHVLQFXUUHGDVDUHVXOWRIKLJKHUUHYHQXHV
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7KHWRWDODVVHWVLQFUHDVHGE\WR3PLOOLRQIURP\HDUHQGEDODQFHRI3
PLOOLRQ2IWKHWRWDOFRQVROLGDWHGUHVRXUFHVRI3PLOOLRQ3PLOOLRQZDVDFFRXQWHG
IRU E\ VWRFNKROGHUV· HTXLW\ ZLWK WKH EDODQFH RI 3 PLOOLRQ LQ OLDELOLWLHV 7KH GHFUHDVH LQ
VWRFNKROGHUV· HTXLW\ ZDV GXH WR WKH QHW HIIHFW RI GLYLGHQG GHFODUDWLRQ DPRXQWHG WR 3
PLOOLRQDQGQHWLQFRPHDPRXQWHGWRPLOOLRQIRUWKHVL[PRQWKVHQGHG-XQH7KH
FDVKGLYLGHQGRI3SHUVKDUHZDVGHFODUHGGXULQJWKHSHULRGDQGKDGEHHQWDNHQRXWRIWKH
UHWDLQHGHDUQLQJVRIWKH &RUSRUDWLRQUHIOHFWHGLQ WKH DXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH
&RPSDQ\XVHGLWVFXUUHQWLQFRPHWRILQDQFHH[SDQVLRQDQGRSHUDWLRQDQGSDLGLWVPDWXULQJ
REOLJDWLRQV
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,QWHUHVW5DWH&RYHUDJH5DWLR


1RWDSSOLFDEOHDVWKH&RPSDQ\KDVQRLQWHUHVWEHDULQJORDQEDODQFHVGXULQJWKH
SHULRGXQGHUUHYLHZ
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 5HWXUQRQVDOHVLQFUHDVHGE\YHUVXVWKHVDPHPRQWKSHULRGRISUHYLRXV\HDU,W
PHDQVWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\ZDVDEOHWRPDLQWDLQDQGHYHQLPSURYHLWVJRRGOHYHORIRSHUDWLQJ
HIILFLHQF\

 (36LQFUHDVHGE\3IURP3WR3SHUVKDUH,WLVPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHG
UHSRUWHGQHWLQFRPHGXULQJWKHSHULRGZLWKWKHQXPEHURIVKDUHVRXWVWDQGLQJUHPDLQLQJ
FRQVWDQW

 7KHFXUUHQWUDWLRGHFUHDVHGWRIURP$WWKLVFXUUHQWOHYHOWKH&RPSDQ\ZLOO
EHFDSDEOHRIPHHWLQJLWVPDWXULQJREOLJDWLRQVRQWLPH

 7KHGHEWHTXLW\UDWLRLQFUHDVHGIURPWR$WWKLVOHYHOWKH&RPSDQ\LVQRW
KLJKO\OHYHUDJHGDQGKDVFDSDFLW\IRULQFUHDVLQJLWVFUHGLWOLQHV

 7KHERRNYDOXHSHUVKDUHLQFUHDVHGWRIURPPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKH
&RPSDQ\·V VWRFNKROGHUV HTXLW\ IRU WKH SHULRG ZKLOH WKH QXPEHU RI RXWVWDQGLQJ VKDUHV
UHPDLQHGFRQVWDQW7KLVLQFUHDVHLQ%9SHUVKDUHLVDSRVLWLYHLQGLFDWLRQVLQFHWKLVDPRXQW
H[FHHGVE\WKHSDUYDOXHSHUVKDUHRI3

 7KHDVVHWWRHTXLW\UDWLRLVDILQDQFLDOUDWLRLQGLFDWLQJWKHUHODWLYHSURSRUWLRQRIHTXLW\XVHG
WR ILQDQFH WKH FRPSDQ\·V DVVHWV 7KH UHODWLYHO\ KLJK HTXLW\ UDWLR RI  LQGLFDWHV WKH
FRQVHUYDWLYHDSSURDFKRIWKHFRPSDQ\ZLWKUHVSHFWWRLWVILQDQFLDOOHYHUDJLQJ
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 &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUIURPWKHODVW\HDU·VEDODQFH
RI 3 PLOOLRQ ,W LV PDLQO\ GXH WR LQFUHDVHG QHW FDVK IORZV JHQHUDWHG IURP RSHUDWLQJ
DFWLYLWLHV

 5HFHLYDEOHVQHWGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRHIILFLHQWFROOHFWLRQRI
DFFRXQWVGXULQJWKHSHULRG

 'XH IURP DIILOLDWHV UHSUHVHQWV WKH LQWHUHVWIUHH DGYDQFHV PDGH E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WR LWV
DIILOLDWHGFRPSDQLHV VXFKDV (OL]DOGH+ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ&HEX%URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\
3KLOLSSLQH %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ DQG 3DFLILF %URDGFDVWLQJ 6\VWHP ,QF 7KH GHFUHDVHG RI
3PLOOLRQZDVPDLQO\GXHWRSD\PHQWPDGHE\DIILOLDWHGFRPSDQLHV

 3UHSDLGH[SHQVHVDQGRWKHUFXUUHQWDVVHWVLQFUHDVHGIURP3WR3PLOOLRQ,WLVPDLQO\
GXHWRXQFROOHFWHG&HUWLILFDWHRI:LWKKROGLQJ7D[RIWKHFOLHQWVGXULQJWKHSHULRG

 3URSHUW\ DQG HTXLSPHQW  QHW DW FRVW  LQFUHDVHG IURP 3 PLOOLRQ LQ  WR 3
PLOOLRQDWWKHHQGRIWKHQGTXDUWHULQRUDQLQFUHDVHRI7KLVLVPDLQO\GXHWR
WKHRQJRLQJH[SHQGLWXUHVRIWKHFRPSDQ\VXFKDVSXUFKDVHDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQRIQHZ)0
WUDQVPLWWHUVKHDGRIILFHH[WHQVLRQDQGLPSURYHPHQWV

 ,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDULVHIURPWKH&RPSDQ\·VDFTXLVLWLRQRI':5.7KHGHFUHDVHRI3PLOOLRQ
RUUHSUHVHQWVDPRUWL]DWLRQFRVWVGXULQJWKHSHULRG

 2WKHU QRQFXUUHQW H[SHQVHV LQFUHDVHG WR 3 PLOOLRQ IURP 3 PLOOLRQ PDLQO\ GXH WR
DGGLWLRQDOFDSLWDOJRRGV

 $FFRXQWV3D\DEOHDQGRWKHUDFFUXHGH[SHQVHVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\
GXH WR PD[LPL]LQJ WKH XVH RI FUHGLW WHUPV RI WKH VXSSOLHU ZLWKRXW GHOD\LQJ DQG DFFUXDOV
PDGHE\WKH&RPSDQ\

 'LYLGHQGVSD\DEOHLQFUHDVHGE\RU3PLOOLRQDVDUHVXOWRIGLYLGHQGGHFODUDWLRQ
GXULQJWKHSHULRG

 ,QFRPH WD[ SD\DEOH GHFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ PDLQO\ GXH WR SD\PHQW PDGH E\ WKH
&RPSDQ\GXULQJWKHSHULRGDQGWKHFROOHFWHG&HUWLILFDWHRI:LWKKROGLQJ7D[

 $FFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV GHFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH
FRQWULEXWLRQSD\PHQWVPDGHWRWKH&RPSDQ\·VUHWLUHPHQWIXQGGXULQJWKHSHULRG

 5HWDLQHGHDUQLQJVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRWKHGHFODUDWLRQRI&DVK
'LYLGHQGVGXULQJWKHSHULRG

$"

x

!)!  A"$" "'

7KH&RPSDQ\LVDFRPSOLDQWZLWKWKHSHUFHQWPLQLPXPSXEOLFRZQHUVKLSUHTXLUHPHQW
IRUOLVWHGFRPSDQLHVXQGHU6HFWLRQ$UWLFOH;9,,,RQWKH&RQWLQXLQJ/LVWLQJUHTXLUHPHQWV
RIWKH /LVWLQJDQG'LVFORVXUH 5XOHVRIWKH ([FKDQJH 7KHSXEOLFIORDWRIWKH&RPSDQ\LV
FXUUHQWO\DWSHUFHQW
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7KHUHDUHQRRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQQRWSUHYLRXVO\UHSRUWHGLQ6(&)RUP&WKDWQHHGWREHUHSRUWHG
LQWKLVVHFWLRQ







